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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman) *

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)

Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson *
Mr. Chan Pak Joe #

Dr. Lam Chat Yu *

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter #

Dr. Sun Tai Lun #
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit 1, 4/F, Block B

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

e  The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

° Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

° The Bank of East Asia, Limited

o Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

o Hang Seng Bank Limited

° Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited

SHARE REGISTRARS
e Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

e Cayman Islands
Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

LEGAL ADVISERS
Hong Kong Law

King & Wood Mallesons
Reed Smith Richards Butler

Cayman Islands Law
Maples and Calder Asia

STOCK CODE
896 (ordinary shares)

WEBSITE
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M B

TURNOVER & PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRMES

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
presenting to our shareholders the results of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group” or “Hanison”) for
the year ended 31 March 2014.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the turnover of the
Group was HK$1,626.5 million, being 4.6% higher than
the turnover of HK$1,554.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2013.

Despite the increase in turnover, the Group recorded a
decrease in consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year from HK$188.3 million for the
last financial year to HK$155.7 million for this financial
year. The drop was mainly attributable to the facts
that the profit generated from the sales of units of the
Group's property development has dropped this year and
the gain on change in fair value of investment properties
has been less drastic this year as compared with that of
last year.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK29.0
cents, compared to HK35.1 cents last year.

As at 31 March 2014, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$1,348.0 million (2013: HK$1,219.5
million), representing an increase of 10.5% over last year.
Net asset value per share at 31 March 2014 was HK$2.51
(2013: HK$2.27).

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK3.2
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013:
HK3.2 cents per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 3
September 2014. This together with the interim dividend
of HK1.8 cents per share (2013: HK1.8 cents per share)
gives a total of HK5.0 cents per share for the year (2013:
HK5.0 cents per share). The proposed final dividend will
be paid on 17 September 2014 following approval at
the annual general meeting scheduled to be held on 26
August 2014.

FTANERRESE ([E52]) OB URERER
=ZHanison Construction Holdings Limited
(BifsRZERARLAR) (A7) REM
BAR (GRAAER ]IS [EERZ]E&E
TE-NF=ZA=t—-BHLEFEZXE-

BE_Z—MFE=A=+—HILWH
BEEZER

BE-Z-—NE=ZRA=1t—RALEE K&
$%15 % ¥ 588 %1,626,500,0007T ' B &
E_EZE-—=ZF=ZA=1+-—HLEEZBE
1,554,500,0007C £ F4.6% °

HAEER LA AEERBNALBES
ANERFEEZERMNAEBETBREENS
#5188,300,000t T ZEAXR T HEE W B
155,700,000 Z TR EERHRAFEERE
AEEYERENENHEE RN THREIRE
MEZAFEEH2WNRREFEHREM-

FEESRERBFHBEE29.00L ZFH
#3511l °

RIE—HmNE=A=+—H xEEZEEF
B 5% 11,348,000,0007T (=B — =4 : B
1,219,500,0007T) * B EFE EF10.5% o R =
Z-MFE=A=1+—H SREEFEHBE
251 T (ZE—=F B82277T) ©

Bz 8

EEEEEOR-_ZF-NFAA=AZELRK
RATREREMAZRE  REBE_Z—H
F=ZA=1+—HIEFEZRPRE SRBE
32U (ZZE—Z=ZF  EREWE32) -ERD
KRR ESRBEI8L (ZBE—=F:
FIRAER1.8ML)  2FEHIRE EZRRBHEES.01L

—E-=F GREBES.0) - BEZ2RIK
BEEFER-ZE—NFENAZ-+BETZ
BRRBFASEBEZ E-ZT—NFLA Tt
Bk o

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



BUSINESS REVIEW

During 2013 the global economy was recovering, but
in a low gear. The underlying dynamic of the economic
growth during the year mainly came from the United
States through the recovery of the real estate sector,
increase in household wealth, and easier bank lending
conditions which lead to pick-ups of more business
activities. However, these favourable factors were
moderated by the US Federal Reserve’s unwinding of
the previous monetary stimulus measures such as the
tapering of the quantitative easing policy to reduce the
level of economic stimulation. China’s growth has been
slowing down, affecting the commodity exporters of
both the emerging markets and developed economies.
During the recent years, the pace of Chinese growth has
a significant impact on these economies. The financial
problems of certain Euro areas and the high public debts
situation of many advanced economies were not yet out
of trouble, although the acute phase of their difficulties
has passed. Meanwhile, the unrest of the Middle East
and certain Asian countries were tempering the pace
of global economic recovery. As a whole, the global
economy in 2013 was fragile: over reliant on the United
States, at the risk from China’s economy slow-down and
still dependent on the prop of easy monetary policy.

In Hong Kong, the Gross Domestic Product grew
by approximately 2.9% in real terms in 2013, an
improvement from the growth of 1.5% in 2012. Domestic
demand and exports of services provided the key driving
forces for Hong Kong's overall economic growth in
2013, keeping the labour market in a state of nearly full
employment. Amid favourable labour market conditions,
further support from infrastructure works, vibrant
inbound tourism and expansion of financial activity,
domestic demand and exports of services played an
important stabilising role of the Hong Kong economy in
2013.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F @& =
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EE#HE =2

The HKSAR Government continued its efforts in increasing
land and housing supply to adjust the imbalance of supply
and demand for housing. It also continued to adopt the
cooling measures such as the increase in stamp duties
charges and reduction of loan-to-value ratio for property
mortgage finance to curb away speculators and to
stabilise property prices. The property market has cooled
down and potential buyers were becoming more cautious
under the general expectation of a downward adjustment
of property prices.

The construction industry in Hong Kong has been very
active. Large scale infrastructure construction works by
the HKSAR Government and residential building works by
the private sector continued intensively, adding impetus
to the already busy construction business. The strong
labour demand for the huge volume of construction
works together with an ageing population in Hong
Kong cause the issue of labour shortage to become even
more prominent. The issue of an ageing population will
turn more apparent over time and may restrain Hong
Kong’s medium to longer-term growth. The construction
industry, being a labour intensive sector, has seen
significant impact from the shortage of labour over
the years. The ability to recruit and retain an effective
workforce became the key to success to a construction
company. Faced with intense labour competition and
escalating material costs, our Construction Division had
been working against these headwinds, albeit more
construction contracts on hand.

During the year, the Construction Division and Interior
and Renovation Division both recorded higher turnover
in comparison with last year, which were more than
offset the decline in sales from the Property Development
Division, Building Materials Division and Health Products
Division. The total turnover of the Group for the year
was HK$1,626.5 million which was slightly higher than
last year turnover of HK$1,554.5 million. Although the
sales of the Group’s property development projects were
affected by the cooling measures mentioned above, the
gain from the Property Development Division was still the
main profit contributor of the Group. The value of the
investment properties continued to rise, but at a slower
pace.
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The overall result for the year 2013/14 was acceptable,
despite the profit was lower than that of last year.
The slow-down in property sale and increase in wages
caused by the shortage of labour have been adversely
affecting the profitability of property developers and
building contractors in Hong Kong. The Group does not
expect this situation to change in the near future and
will therefore continue with our efforts to manage costs,
improve efficiency and maintain good quality.

HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Construction Division has been
awarded several large construction works and the
projects on hand have been progressing in phases.

Benefited by the vibrant market conditions of the
construction industry, the Interior and Renovation
Division has been awarded several new contracts,
allowing the division to sustain steady growth. Although
this would mean an even tighter workforce for the
Group, it is a pleasure for us to encounter this joyous
problem.

As for the Property Development Division, the sale of
the last unit of Eight College was recorded during the
year. The Group commenced the sale of The Bedford, the
Group's boutique industrial high-rise at Bedford Road
in Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon and continued the pre-sale of
LUXEAST, the Group’s 49% interests in the parcel of land
situated at FEINDIEBET BRI EBREAR -REFEE
{8 (West of Wenyuan Road and South of Houfutinggang,
Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC) for the development
and construction of office, retail, carparking spaces and
other development pertaining to the land. Nine units of
The Bedford were sold during the year. For LUXEAST, a
total of 47 BmEEEAE (commodity house purchase
and sale contracts) and a total of 22 FEEZ (purchase
letters) were signed up to the end of the reporting
period.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F @& =
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F[EHEE

FUTURE DIRECTIONS AND PROSPECTS

If the US economic recovery could make further
progress with smooth tapering of its quantitative easing
programme causing no significant disturbance to global
financial stability, while the slow Eurozone recovery
would continue, it can be expected that the global
economic outlook for 2014 should continue to make
positive progress.

China’s economy is currently faced with weak exports,
over productions in various industries, high risk of
bad debts and possible economic slow-down due to
spillover effects of the US quantitative easing tapering.
However, it also benefits from mild inflation and stable
employment. With a clear determination to enforce
reform strategy which is required to rebalance its
economy in the long run, China has to sacrifice part of its
growth to implement its reform policies, and therefore
it is expected that the economic growth for 2014 will be
moderated to be lower than the Gross Domestic Product
growth of 7.7% in 2013.

In Hong Kong, since the HKSAR Government has
progressively implemented a series of cooling measures
in property market, buyer sentiments in the near-term
will inevitably be affected. However, we remain confident
on the long-term prospects of the Hong Kong property
sector and demand for residential housing, as such
measures are aimed at curbing speculative investments
and ensuring sustainable growth of the property sector in
the long-run.

With low interest rate, abundant liquidity and modest
inflation rate, the Financial Secretary forecasted the 2014
Gross Domestic Product growth of Hong Kong to be
around 3% to 4%, a bit higher than 2.9% in 2013.
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The Group will continue to stay prudent, quality
conscious and flexible to respond to new changes and
challenges ahead. Backed by a strong order book of
construction, renovation and building materials project
contracts on hand, and a portfolio of land, acquired
previously at relatively low costs, for development, the
Group has every confidence to deliver promising financial
performance and generate sustainable returns to our
shareholders in the years ahead.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders for their continuous
confidence, our business partners for their great trust,
and our management and staff for their persistent faith
and loyalty to Hanison. Together they have laid a strong
foundation for sustainable future growth for Hanison.

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
Chairman

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHEE
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OPERATIONS REVIEW
EY AEI)E

Construction Division

BEE

HK$ Million8# HE T

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

2009/10

Turnover

0 200 400 600 800 1,000 1,200

Interior and Renovation Division

58 R 1S BP

HK$ Million/8#H & T

2013/14
2012/13
2011712
2010/11

2009/10
Turnover

S

0 50 100 150 200 250

Building Materials Division

2SR

HK$ Million/8# B & T

2013/14
2012/13
2011712
2010/11

2009/10

Turnover
=

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



Public rental housing development at Tseung Kwan O Area 65B
HERSBENHEARFEERRIER
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 7% [0 §8

CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The turnover for the Construction Division was
HK$1,151.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2014 (2013: HK$1,041.5 million). During the year, the
Construction Division secured several new building
construction contracts.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2014 was HK$2,771.5 million.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Construction of proposed
industrial redevelopment,
The Bedford, at Nos. 91-93
Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui,
Kowloon

(2) Construction of public rental
housing development at
Tseung Kwan O Area 65B

(3) Construction of proposed
residential redevelopment

BES

BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-RHLLEE BEI
B 3£ 55 A8 %51,151,500,000T (=2 —=
4 1 78%51,041,500,0007T) ° F R - BEIEIS
LHHEFTRESN -

NR-ZZE-NFE=A=1+—-HMWFEESYNEE
458 BB #ED 771,500,000 ©
EEBRNEEIR
(1) EENEAXSEMNIEE

91- 935 MBI XEE
I8 B The Bedford

\

~

#% B HR65BE /Y HiFE

() 2
HEE#RRIAHR

)

(3) EENBETEEH146K
1483V EZREEEREE

at Nos. 146 & 148 Argyle H
Street, Kowloon The Bedford at Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road,
Tai Kok Tsui, Kowloon
Major Projects in Progress LBE K £ NH & 3% 7891-93%5 A The Bedford BTPWEIEIR

(1) Construction of proposed residential
redevelopment, The Austine Place, at No. 38 Kwun
Chung Street, Kowloon

(2) Construction of Composite Development at Nos.
1-21 Dundas Street, Kowloon

(3) Construction of the redevelopment at No. 23 Tong
Chong Street, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

(1) EZENEESBREHSENERETEERE
H The Austine Place

(2 HEEAEBHIEH1-215ESRREIER

(3) EEREBHABRERE3RERER
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 275 [0l §8

Major Projects Awarded EENTEIR
(1) Construction of the proposed residential and (1) EERAEHERFEHFSERZEBREE
commercial development at No. 5 Tung Yuen Street, BRIEE

Yau Tong, Kowloon

(2) Construction of the residential development at (2) EERNEBEEXELTBHNAERNMESE
N.K.L.L. No 6493 Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong 64935 X T ERIEH

(3) Construction of the proposed hotel developments at  (3) EEEFB LR T ET15-165%  FET

Nos. 15-16 Connaught Road West & Nos. 29-31 New #729-3159% - FT AT W #130-325 R R K E
Market Street and Nos. 30-32 New Market Street & 23- 255 B RBIEREER

Nos. 23-25 Tung Loi Lane, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

(4) Construction of the proposed residential 4) EENEEMBEBNREZETZREE
development at No. 11 Grampian Road, Kowloon =

Proposed residential development at No. 11 Grampian Road, Kowloon

NEEMBENREREEHRIER
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OPERATIONS REVIEW 2 75 [0l §8

Awards #I5

During the year, the construction team received the  FRX ZEBBESLUTHKRE:
following awards:

No Site Award Award Body
R e 3] AR
1. Construction of Sports Centre and The building environmental assessment  BEAM Society
Community Hall in Area 101, Tin Shui Wai method (BEAM) for new buildings Limited
with a joint venture partner (4/04 Version) - Platinum Standard ERRREERS
HEELEBHEEIKEINENEERL BERGIMZE WAR) FIEABE
ktEEgE & Al
2. Construction of Student Halls of Residence  The building environmental assessment  BEAM Society
(Homantin) for The Hong Kong method (BEAM) for new buildings Limited
Polytechnic University at No. 15 Fat (4/04 Version) - Platinum Standard ERRREERE
Kwong Street, Homantin, Kowloon BHRBEITEE (404 TFEAEBAEHRI
FERNEAXHBLESREBETIAZ
BAREE (MXHE)
3. Construction of Public Rental Housing Caring Construction Site Award Scheme  Occupational
Development at TKO Area 65B 2013 - Diamond Caring Award Safety and
BEKERBENHEAHEERRERE EBOTHENE013-E0EAKE Health Council
BEZ2RRE
4, Main Contract of the Redevelopment of Caring Construction Site Award Scheme  Occupational
No. 23 Tong Chong Street at Quarry Bay, 2013 - Silver Caring Award Safety and
Hong Kong BOIHETE2013-F0RHR Health Council
BERHABRREBRERBAZEEYN BEZ2RER
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No Site Award Award Body
Wi e 3] miEERE
5. Proposed Composite Development at No. 1 Caring Construction Site Award Scheme  Occupational
- 21 Dundas Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong 2013 - Gold Caring Award Safety and
EBNERTLH - 2N1REERABREE BOINEHAE2013-B02R Health Council
BEZ2RER
6. Proposed Composite Redevelopment at No.  Caring Construction Site Award Scheme  Occupational
38 Kwun Chung Street, Kowloon 2013 - Gold Caring Award Safety and
NEBERESRERREGERER BOThEETE2013-B0&H% Health Council
BEZ2RER
Outlook A=

Over the past few years, the construction industry
in Hong Kong has been very active. Large scale
infrastructure construction works by the HKSAR
Government and residential building works by the
private sector continued intensively. With a solid pipeline
of new construction projects still yet to be undertaken,
the outlook for the construction industry in Hong Kong
looks bright. Meanwhile the strong demand of workers
has put even more strain on an already stretched local
labour market and further intensified the problem of
labour shortage in the construction industry.

BEHF BENERX—HFFEE-FEB
BERFRROAREERZTERLE B
MW ETERETIREEDRET EARUH
EEERNSBST BBEEXNAR—FX
Ao BALL[EIRF  EREEETANEIR+ IR
1 SARERANAME THISERED T
E-SWEEREL TERIVEE-
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Although Construction Industry Council (CIC) has
launched the Enhanced Construction Manpower Training
Scheme in 2010 and implemented the Contractors
Cooperative Training Scheme in collaboration with
the construction industry, there are not too many new
entrants being attracted to join the industry. Together
with the ageing population, the relocation of many
professionals and senior project personnel to Mainland
China and Macau, the number of skilled labourers in the
industry falls short of the number needed to fulfil the
workload. It is expected that construction costs in Hong
Kong will rise sharply over the next two to three years
because of the strong demand-pushed increase in wages
and construction material costs.

Nowadays, the essence of success for a construction
company is its ability to recruit and maintain an effective
workforce. As with other companies facing intense
labour competition coupled with increasing material
costs, the Construction Division will continue to work
against these obstacles to retain and attract talented
professionals and maintain its profit margins. Hanison is
rooted in building construction business and is fortunate
to have a team of loyal workforce who support and are
being supported by companies operating at different
construction sites in Hong Kong and Mainland China over
the years. We believe that continued sustainable business
success depends on the good relationships maintained
with employees, customers and suppliers, and the
continuous efforts to control costs, improve quality and
enhance site safety.

BEREXZECRN - -FTFHEHBLE
EEANRET B R EREESERT [
BEEEFEEIGE ] BEAERRSEEXENH
ABATARZBEAZ -MEAOEL - FLE
FEATREREB AS BB R FEA R
BR CHEEXRWELEIAFAZ AR
TRV EESHFEREEMBEAR BB
BERNEHBERRM=FRAKELF-

Brl BEAREEMEAY BRENRES
REABBERRBEES AT - MEHEMHEERS T
PREHAURMBRA EARBEN AT 25
ASHEBES DR CABRE - B OB RKSIE
FENEZASLREGEF - BERIEERNE
FREXK UEEHA - LBNEEE
B ZFR—E B Wit s S R E R R
MARBREEE EEIXE-RMRE X
WHEDNSHY BREET BFRHESD
MEREEG UREES HESRAN XE
BEERRESHhERZE-
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Special reorganisation works to Core FJ, 7/F of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
BEBETI RELECore INEHTRE

Interior and Renovation Division
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INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Interior and
Renovation Division recorded a turnover of HK$214.5
million, as compared with HK$180.4 million last year.
The Interior and Renovation Division maintained steady
turnover for the year under review.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2014 was HK$170.1 million.

Major Projects Completed

(1) First year's alterations and additions term contract
for building works for The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

(2) Spatial reorganisation works to Core FJ, 7/F of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Renovation work of Ronsdale
Garden at No. 25 Tai Hang
Drive, Jardine's Lookout, Hong
Kong

(2) Second year's alternations and
additions term contract for
building works for The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

(3) Alterations, additions,
repairs and improvement
(AA&I) 2012-13 Centennial
Campus Consequentials -
Reorganisation of space for
the Administration & Common
Area at Pao Siu Loong Building REICIAGILI T
of the University of Hong Kong P R RS,

(4) Renovation and repartitioning works at Un Chau
Shopping Centre for The Link Management Limited

52 B B i 1= 3B

BE-Z-—-NF=ZA=+t—HLFE £&HK
IS IR RS & E5A A E15214,500,0007T > &
FHIA8%180,400,0007T ° £ & R S IR HYE
¥EEOEFTFERERFEE-

NR-ZZE-NE=A=1+—-—HWFEESYNEE
48 58 5 58 #5170,100,0007T ©

EERNEETR

(1) BEBREIRBRETR ZHERINER
HEW (F—F)

2) BBEIXREL#ECore INEATRE

RIENETEIR

(1) FTBEEL KK
REETEMNEST
B

2 BBEIKRBEET
Bz ERMERBE
B (E=F)

() FBEAERBRIKERST
BRASLFEBE
A T—-2012-201380
FEERE G - i
HIERBETRE

Exterior renovation of Ronsdale Garden
at No. 25 Tai Hang Drive, Jardine’s

ERERIMEHEE

(4) FEEERARAFRETHIMNESZE
ERERTRE
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For the renovation of Ronsdale Garden, the exterior
renovation is expected to be completed in early July 2014
and the whole project is expected to be completed in late
October 2014.

Major Projects Awarded

The following projects were awarded subsequent to the
financial year ended 31 March 2014:

(1) Renovation and alteration works at Branksome
Grande at No. 3 Tregunter Path, Hong Kong

(2) Alternations and additions works at TU4 of The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University

(3) Renovation work of Flora Garden at No. 7 Chun Fai
Road, Hong Kong

OPERATIONS REVIEW 275 [0l §8

EEENIIDPEEIREATBER=_Z—N
FLAYRET MEBEIRBETE-Z=—NF
+HAR®EI-

EEMTEIR

THAR=-Z-—NF=ZR=+T—RBYBFE
REEEN-—LFTEEHNTR:

(1) BBHAREBEIRWOEZRERKE
I

2 TEEBIARETUCZHRERMEIR

(3) BERFEEIESREZREIR

Spatial reorganisation works to Core FJ, 7/F of The Hong Interior renovation of Ronsdale Garden at No. 25 Tai

Kong Polytechnic University Hang Drive, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong

EBETREBLECore INEATRE BB ARRREEEENAIDES
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Outlook

Both the turnover for the year and the amount of
contracts on hand at 31 March 2014 have increased as
compared to those of last year.

As public awareness of the importance of building
upkeep for enhancing the property value and recognition
of the property safety as an owner’s legal responsibilities
are enhanced, building renovation and maintenance
works have increased over years.

In early 2010, the building collapse in Ma Tau Wai Road
aroused public concern about the rising problem of
ageing buildings. In June 2012, the HKSAR Government
launched the Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme with
the purpose of resolving the long-standing problems of
building neglect and deterioration, with particular regard
to the existing old private premises. With the increase
in the number of ageing buildings in Hong Kong, the
Buildings Department, Hong Kong Housing Authority,
Hong Kong Housing Society and Urban Renewal
Authority have also initiated many building management
and maintenance schemes to repair and maintain these
buildings in good shape for overall safety of the residents
and the general public.

Under such circumstances, it can be expected that the
repair and maintenance sector will be very busy in
the foreseeable future, and the demand for workers
and materials will increase substantially, leading to an
upsurge in wages and material costs.

5
=R

=

AEENELBENNR - E—NWF=/=+—
BHWFEASNER YBEFEEMER

ARHBERRIEFRELENEANRER
MEEUREIHUYELRZARE LEFESR
F-EREBLSEBFHEERFREIENEER
FRAFE M-

—E-ZFY) FHEEERERFTHRBBM4
SIEARUETFE(CHEIZRENER R
“E-CHERA BBRBERFEL a5
BitE | EEBRAEFECANEFREBERE
LEE FHRRENRELANE -BEE
BECEBTFNHELEN EFE BRREEER
Eg BAREEHERTRERRTCHERS
HRTEERGREE EEHEBRTET
B DERFRIFORR REEFPRARM
ZEo

HEEEBRT HERRETERAHEATRS
REEFEET HEETAREMWERT
BRIEE KB REM AT
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In early 2014, the news about the collapse of a mast-
climbing tower platform of a contractor has alerted
the relevant governmental department to strengthen
the safety measures of the operation of the mast-
climbing tower platform. After the accident, the market
was shocked with skepticism about the use of mast-
climbing tower platforms. Nevertheless, given the steady
performance, stringent safety measures and good
track record of the Interior and Renovation Division
throughout the years, our works have not been affected
by this short-term negative sentiment.

Compared to traditional scaffolding, the mast-climbing
tower platform allows the work platform to be easily
raised or lowered. The platform may be moved vertically
with the work. Unlike with traditional scaffolding, the
work materials do not need to be moved each time the
work platform is raised. Mast-climbing tower platform
also allows better ventilation during the works and
provides safer working conditions for the workers.
The use of mast-climbing tower platforms has become
commonly acceptable in recent years for refurbishment
of external walls and will be widely used in future
renovation projects in the market.

Throughout the years, the Interior and Renovation
Division has gained wide recognition from its clients and
is an acknowledged contractor of high quality renovation
and fitting out works in the market, given its client-
centered approach and the persistent pursuit of quality.

In view of the escalating labour costs and surging
material prices, the operating environment is expected
to remain highly competitive. However, with the support
of our experienced team and sophisticated equipments,
coupled with our prudent approach toward assessing
works, we are well positioned to take advantage of
the present situation to secure more renovation works,
while being mindful of the continuous needs for quality,
productivity and operating efficiency.
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the turnover of
the Building Materials Division was HK$257.2 million,
compared with that of HK$272.2 million last year.

The implementation of various infrastructure projects
and increase in building construction activities have
continued to provide business opportunities for the
Building Materials Division. A number of projects were
undertaken during the year under review.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK")
and Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau)
Limited (“Trigon Macau”) (collectively, “Trigon”)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau are two of the subsidiaries
of the Group under the Building Materials Division,
specialising in the supply and installation of interior
products such as different types of suspended ceiling
system, metal cladding system, demountable partition
system, fire related protection system, decorative
moulding, raised flooring and wood flooring.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) TMTL 447, Tuen Mun Station - Supply and
installation of false ceiling

(2) STTL 502 proposed residential development at Lok
Wo Sha, Ma On Shan - Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling system

(3) TPTL 183 proposed residential development at Fung
Yuen, Tai Po — Supply and installation of suspended
ceiling system for clubhouse

(4) Composite development at Nos. 1-21 Dundas Street,
Kowloon - Supply and installation of drywall system
and 18/F skygarden external ceiling

OPERATIONS REVIEW 275 [0l §8

EEMHEB
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(5)

Proposed residential development at No.1 Ede Road,
Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong (NKIL 6306) — Supply
and installation for external suspended ceiling at
podium level

Major Projects Awarded

(1

)

Proposed residential development at Austin Station
— Site C at K.I.LL. 11126 - Supply and installation of
external Suspended Ceiling System

MTR XRL Project 810B — West Kowloon Terminus
Station South — Supply and installation of acoustic
ceiling panel and fire rated ceiling system

The total amount of contracts on hand of Trigon as at 31
March 2014 amounted to HK$73.0 million.

Tai Kee Pipes Limited (“Tai Kee")

Another subsidiary under the Building Materials Division,
Tai Kee, focuses on the supply of pipes, fittings and other
related accessories through project sales.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1

)

3)

(4)

Science Park Phase 3 — Supply of galvanized steel
pipe and related accessories

Public rental housing development at
Tseung Kwan O Area 65B — Supply of copper pipes
and related accessories

The Paragon at San Hao Ngon, Macau - Supply of
copper pipes and related accessories

Public housing development at Green Island Macau
— Supply of copper pipes and related accessories

(5) BBNEREERBE1R HINENERE
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Major Projects Awarded

(1) Residential development at N.K.I.L. No 6493
Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong — Supply of copper
pipes and related accessories

(2) Public rental housing development at Shatin Area
52 Phase 3 and Phase 4 — Supply of galvanized steel
pipe and related accessories

The total amount of contracts on hand of Tai Kee as at 31
March 2014 amounted to HK$12.3 million.

Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope
HK”) and EEHEZEME (EM)BRRIF("E
#") (collectively “Million Hope")

Million Hope HK and its factory, 32, specialise in the
design, supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Million Hope is one of the authorised manufacturers of
the renowned German brand product “Schiico”.

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) FSSTL 202, Fanling, New Territories — Supply and
installation of aluminium window and curtain wall

(2) Proposed residential and commercial development
at No. 46 Belcher’s Street, Kennedy Town, Hong
Kong — Design, supply and installation of aluminium
louvre, window, grille, curtain wall and cladding

(3) Proposed residential development at No. 11 Warren
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong - Design, supply
and installation of aluminium window, sliding door,
window wall, cladding and balustrade

(4) Area 4-5 (Phase 1) Cheng Nam Xin Qu, Haining -
Design, supply and installation of aluminium door,
window and curtain wall
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Major Projects Awarded

(1

)

@)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Proposed residential development at No.8 Mount
Nicholson Road, The Peak, Hong Kong - Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window,
sliding door and folding door

Proposed residential development at 2 Castle Road,
Mid-Levels West, Hong Kong — Design, supply and
installation of curtain wall, window and louvre

Proposed residential development at No. 4-14 South
Lane, Sai Wan, Hong Kong — Design, supply and
installation of bi-folding door

Proposed detached building in 1.L..9022 at No. 48
Stubbs Road, Hong Kong - Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window system, glass wall,
louvre, glass balustrade, sliding door and folding
door

Proposed residential development at No. 62 Begonia
Road, Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong — Design, supply
and installation of curtain wall and aluminium
window

Proposed residential development No. 18 Tong Chun
Street, Tseung Kwan O, TKOTL119, New Territories
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, sliding door, aluminium cladding and
curtain wall

The total amount of contracts on hand of Million Hope as
at 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$447.2 million.
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Outlook

The market demand for building materials should
continue to remain strong in Hong Kong as various
infrastructure projects are undergoing the construction
phases, the construction of more public housing to
resolve the long lasting housing problem in Hong Kong
has launched, and property developers continue their
active participation in the real estate market.

The global commodity prices peaked in early 2011
and then declined on concerns about the global
macroeconomic and financial outlook and slowing
demanding in emerging markets, notably Mainland
China. After strengthening in early 2013 due to an
improved economic outlook, most industrial commodity
prices have now retreated below their end-2012 levels.

Following the collapse in metal prices that followed the
2008-09 global financial crisis, prices regained strength.
Most of the additional metal supply went to meet
demand from Mainland China, whose consumption share
of world refined metals reached 44.2% at the end of
2012. Metal prices have weakened since 2011. Economists
and analysts argued that this decline, along with the
drop in energy prices and an even sharper decline in
previous metal prices, signaling the so-called commodity
super cycle may be coming to an end.
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The demand for aluminum increased by 6.8% in 2012
according to World Bureau of Metal Statistics (“WBMS"),
led for the second year by double-digit demand growth
in Mainland China of 15% and a 7.5% increase in
demand by India. According to WBMS data, copper
demand expanded by 4.7% in 2012, up from 1.4% the
year before, with Mainland China’s demand increasing
11.7%, versus 7.2% in 2011. The prices for aluminium
and copper fluctuated despite demand growth. Although
there are no physical constraints in metal markets, there
are a number of factors that could push prices higher,
including environmental policy changes and rising energy
costs.

Copper pipe supply business and aluminium door and
window installation business are respectively the main
business for Tai Kee and Million Hope. We are very
cautious and watchful for these commodities price
fluctuation, and will take necessary actions to pledge
against the risks.

Over the past years, our Building Materials Division has
secured a steady client base, both in the public and
private sector. Going forward, we see opportunities
accompanied by challenges and will seize opportunities
to expand our client base and increase our market share,
but with a watchful mind of the possible risks involved.
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The Bedford in Tai Kok Tsui
K AHThe Bedford

Property Development Division
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The Property Development Division recorded a turnover
of HK$233.1 million, representing the sale of the last unit
of Eight College, the Group’s wholly-owned luxurious
residential development in Kowloon Tong, and 9 units of
The Bedford, a boutique industrial high-rise at Nos. 91-93

Bedford Road, Tai Kok Tsui, during the year under review.

Subsequent to the issuance of the occupation permit, the
Group has launched the sale of The Bedford. 9 units of

The Bedford were sold in this financial year. Bfye

Superstructure work of The
Austine Place is in progress and
construction work is expected
to complete by the end of 2014.
The Austine Place is a boutique
residential building with retail
podium, situated at a superb
location of No. 38 Kwun Chung
Street, Kowloon, offering
luxury residences at a nexus of
transportation.

For the pieces of agricultural
land at Tong Yan San Tsuen in
Yuen Long, a land exchange
application for residential use
was made in 2012 with the Lands
Department. It is expected that
the offer of land premium will
be issued soon.

The Bedford - a building with stylish

architectural designs
The Bedford - B g2 2= [
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Another proposed residential development of the Group at
D.D. 129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen Long had completed gazettal
stage and we are waiting for the offer of land premium.

For the proposed residential development project with
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited at So Kwun Wat, Tuen
Mun, planning application to the Town Planning Board
has been completed in the last financial year. Land
exchange application to convert the land to residential
use will be made with the Lands Department in due
course.

In February 2014, the Group acquired 25% interest in a
piece of land located at Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603, Lok Lam
Road, Fo Tan, New Territories for a residential development.

LUXEAST, the Group's 49% interests in the parcel of land
situated at FEIAIEBET B XK EAR - #E =B
fl (West of Wenyuan Road and South of Houfutinggang,
Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC) for the development
and construction of office, retail, carparking spaces and
other development pertaining to the land, pre-sale has
commenced in late 2012. A total of 47 BREEESG
(commodity house purchase and sale contracts) and a
total of 22 RMEE (purchase letters) were signed up to
the end of the reporting period.

The Bedford - chic lobby of Roppongi Hills style

The Bedford — 7SZS K LU B 18 KR E
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Outlook

The residential property market has cooled off visibly
since March 2013 and continued to consolidate in the
first quarter of 2014. Sales and prices of residential
property in Hong Kong are expected to fall in 2014 due
to continued cooling measures. Property sales in Hong
Kong are likely to fall next year compared with around
50,000 in 2013 and over 80,000 in 2012.

Raising flat supply through increasing land supply is
the HKSAR Government's top priority in ensuring the
healthy and stable development of the property market.
In February 2014, the HKSAR Government announced
the 2014-2015 Land Sale Programme which included 34
residential sites capable of providing a total of about
15,500 flats. Combining the various housing land supply
sources including the Land Sale Programme, railway
property development projects, redevelopment projects
of the Urban Renewal Authority, projects subject to
lease modification/land exchange and other sources, it
is estimated that the total housing land supply in 2014-
2015 could provide for some 30,000 private flats.

Since it takes time to increase supply, the HKSAR
Government has put in significant efforts to manage
demand and reduce the possible risks to financial
stability arising from an exuberant property market. The
HKSAR Government's efforts to curb speculation have
yielded notable results. The number of short-term resale
(comprising confirmor transactions and resale within 24
months after assignment) fell to a record low of 77 cases
per month in the first quarter of 2014 compared with
the monthly average of 2,661 cases between January and
November 2010. Purchases by non-local individuals and
non-local companies also stayed lower at 96 cases per
month in the first quarter of 2014, which is much lower
than the monthly average of 365 cases in January to
October 2012, reflecting the effects of the Buyer’s Stamp
Duty.
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The market has turned and entered a downtrend.
Residential prices are expected to drop, but significant
corrections are not expected amid a low mortgage
rate environment. Notwithstanding the recent market
consolidation, the market is mindful for the risks of a
property market bubble. Home purchase affordability
(i.e. the ratio of mortgage payment for a 45-square
metre flat to median income of households, excluding
those living in public housing) stayed high at around 56%
in the first quarter of 2014 and should interest rates rise
to a more normal level, the ratio would soar to over 70%,
which may expel more genuine home buyers from the
property market.

It is believed that the 2014 sales market will continue to
be dominated by primary sales, with beneficiary packages
offered offsetting some impact of the cooling measures,
while secondary sales will be further suppressed with
primary prices being close to or even lower then
secondary prices in the locality and lowering valuation of
second hand units.

However, it is generally agreed that HKSAR Government's
effective measures are needed to address the housing
problem in Hong Kong's property market to allow for
a healthy market adjustment for a more stable and
sustainable environment in the long run.

Over the years, the Group has acquired several pieces
of land at relatively low prices. We have sufficient land
reserve for development over the next few years. This will
ensure steady performance of our Property Development
Division in the coming few years.

OPERATIONS REVIEW 275 [0l §8

THEEERLATITER TEERARS
ETHK BEZBARELNRET BT
SEHRERBE-BEEHTSCHEMER
S DEIERDETSRRNER - RZ-F
—MEF-FE -BEXBEN (BE—ER
BRASFHREMNRBHAEHEFAR
PR EROENEFRIN) KB
FHES6%MN B -MENEREAZRR/EEDN
K BBARERBRAET0% L &
BLEENEXRALKEUAT-

AEEMRE R-ZT-NF . —FRESKHE
BEEETSHBIEMN MEFEIRE—
ERELEETHRRBENTZE BN AR
i —FERBOIEZEREER-FER U
R-FENGEETEHTE —FEEEXSH
#—HZ R

AR MEEEAR  TREERFERERIEA
MR BREERYETEMENEEM
BUEMSEARERAR ARERRESE
EREMATHENRE -

RBEFER AREC UBREERBARIE
iR WMEE TR A LB AT BIERIR
HENMERR - LR ERRAIEBYERR
MERRHFNERERRE

EREAIZZERAERAT | 2013/2014 3

35



Shatin Industrial Centre
DHIZER N

Property Investment Division

E 33841k



PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

The Property Investment Division recorded a turnover
of HK$28.3 million as compared with that of HK$21.9
million last year. The increase was mainly attributable to
the record of rental income for the whole financial year
from CentreHollywood, a commercial building at No.
151 Hollywood Road in Sheung Wan which the Group
acquired in late 2012 and currently has 60% interest.

Leasing performance of Shatin Industrial Centre was
steady, attaining an occupancy rate of 75% at 31 March
2014.

Other investment properties of the Group include No. 31
Wing Wo Street in Sheung Wan and CentreHollywood
in Sheung Wan in which the Group has 60% interest,
some units at Kin Wing Industrial Building in Tuen Mun,
various land lots in D.D. 76 Ping Che in Fanling, various
land lots in D.D. 128 Deep Bay Road in Yuen Long and
Hoi Bun Godown in Tuen Mun in which the Group has
50% interest, all contributed to satisfactory income to the
Group during the year.
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Outlook

The property investment market in Hong Kong continued
to record a mixed economic performance. As a result
of continued HKSAR Government cooling measures in
various property segments, price growth will generally be
limited in 2014.

The commercial and industrial property markets have
cooled off since March 2013, dampened by the latest
demand-side management measures and by uncertainties
arising from the timing and pace of the US’s exit from
its loose monetary policy. Trading activities continued to
shrink, while sale prices and rentals for most segments
were generally flat.

Transactions for office spaces plummeted by 48% to
1,700 cases in 2013 while overall office prices rose by 9%
between December 2012 and December 2013, yet most
of the gain occurred during the first quarter in 2013. The
increase in office prices has slowed down, overall office
prices edged up only by 1% between December 2013 and
March 2014.

The rental expectation gap between landlords and
retailers in various segments of the property investment
market has held up market activity. It is believe that the
market would undergo some short-term adjustment and
resume stable in the long run.

Throughout the years, the Property Investment Division
has been developing its property portfolio with a
mixture of properties in different natures. Bearing
the market circumstances in mind, we will continue to
assess opportunities to build up our investment property
portfolio to generate steady income streams to the
Group.
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Property management services for Golf
Rental collection and leasing agency Parkview, One LaSalle and Eight College

services for The Cameron AEMAS=E One LaSalleREight
#The Cameroniz Uk 18 & 8 5 CI2 BR 1 CollegelR ¥ £ B2 R 7%

Property Agency and Management Division
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PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Agency and Management
Division for the year was HK$17.2 million, compared to
that of HK$13.7 million last year.

During the year, the Property Agency and Management
Division continued to provide project management
service and site supervision service to the large-scale
integrated development project in Haining City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

In Hong Kong, the Property Agency and Management
Division acted as the project manager for two of the
Group's redevelopment projects, The Bedford at Nos. 91-
93 Bedford Road and The Austine Place at No. 38 Kwun
Chung Street as well as for a client in the redevelopment
project at Nos. 11-13 Grampian Road.

This Division also provided property management services
to Golf Parkview in Sheung Shui, One LaSalle and Eight
College in Kowloon Tong, CentreHollywood in Sheung
Wan and The Bedford in Tai Kok Tsui.

Other services of this Division included rental collection
and leasing agency services to 8 Hart Avenue and The
Cameron in Tsim Sha Tsui and CentreHollywood in
Sheung Wan.

Outlook

Looking forward, we will continue to enhance our service
platform to provide high quality, efficient and cost-
effective property management, rental collection and
leasing agency services. We will also ride on the seasoned
experience and expertise of the project management
team to seek further improvement in our service.
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

The Health Products Division of the Group has three
subsidiaries: Care & Health Limited (“Care & Health”),
Healthcorp Trading Limited (“Healthcorp”) and
Retailcorp Limited (“Retailcorp”). They are engaged in
the wholesale of Chinese and Western supplements and
running of retail chain stores respectively.

This year, the Health Products Division recorded a
turnover of HK$55.3 million as compared to HK$56.1
million last year.

Retailcorp runs the businesses of its chain stores under
the trade name of HealthPlus. As at 31 March 2014, there
are 11 retail outlets (including a HealthPlus shop at St.
Teresa’s Hospital in Kowloon) and 1 service centre in
operation. During the year, two HealthPlus shops located
in Wan Chai Road and Metro City were closed due to a
substantial increase in rental by the landlords. To meet
the needs of our customers, 2 new shops have been
opened recently: Tin Hau shop was opened in April 2014
and Yuen Long shop was opened at the end of May 2014.

During the year, the Health Products
Division introduced a new product “King
of Kings” which strengthens kidneys and
enhances the men'’s function.

Healthcorp, Retailcorp and Care &
Health all received the Caring Company
award from the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service for the 1st, 9th and 10th
consecutive year respectively. HealthPlus
has also been awarded with the Quality
Tourism Services Scheme and the No
Fakes Pledge Scheme.
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As for e-Marketing and e-Commerce, we have developed
a fan page on Facebook in order to interact with
potential customers as well as improving customer
relations. We have also implemented e-Shops for our
local customers as well as overseas customers to purchase
our products online, saving traveling time and making
purchase in their own time.

Outlook

Going forward, we will continue to develop our
e-Commerce platform with the purpose of attracting
local customers and reaching out to oversea markets.
We will focus on distributing Chinese and Western
supplements into different retail chains in order to
increase our market share. It is our mission to provide
excellent customer service and healthy products to our
members and customers.
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the turnover of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) was
HK$1,626.5 million, being 4.6% higher than the turnover
of HK$1,554.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Despite the increase in turnover, the Group recorded a
decrease in consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year from HK$188.3 million for the
last financial year to HK$155.7 million for this financial
year. The drop was mainly attributable to the facts that
the profit generated from the sales of units of the Group's
property development has dropped this year and the gain
on change in fair value of investment properties has been
less drastic this year as compared with that of last year.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK29.0
cents, compared to HK35.1 cents last year.

As at 31 March 2014, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$1,348.0 million (2013: HK$1,219.5
million), representing an increase of 10.5% over last year.
Net asset value per share at 31 March 2014 was HK$2.51
(2013: HK$2.27).

GROUP LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are
regularly reviewed.

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain
flexibility in funding, the Group has access to banking
facilities with an aggregate amount of HK$1,312.0
million (HK$872.0 million was secured by first charges
over certain leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties, properties under development for sale
and bank deposits of the Group), of which HK$699.3
million loans have been drawn down and approximately
HK$215.1 million has been utilised mainly for the
issuance of letters of credit and performance bonds as
at 31 March 2014. The bank loans under these banking
facilities bear interests at prevailing market interest rates.
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The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments
and acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder
wealth. The total cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to HK$323.4 million as at 31 March 2014
(2013: HK$293.3 million), and accounted for 19.6% of the
current assets (2013: 19.0%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash inflow of
HK$164.4 million in its operating activities (mainly due
to the increase in amounts payable on contract work and
trade and other payables and the decrease in amounts
receivable on contract work, netting off the increase in
debtors, deposits and prepayments and properties under
development for sale), a net cash outflow of HK$3.4
million in its investing activities (mainly due to advance
to joint ventures, loan to a joint venture and placement
of pledged bank deposits, netting off proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment), and a net
cash outflow of HK$130.9 million in its financing activities
(mainly due to dividends paid to shareholders and
repayment of bank loans, netting off the new bank loans
raised and advance from a non-controlling shareholder).
As a result, the cash and bank balances increased, while
the bank borrowings decreased. Net bank borrowings
(total bank borrowings less total cash and bank balances)
amounted to HK$375.9 million at 31 March 2014 (2013:
net bank borrowings of HK$517.4 million). Accordingly,
the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated on the basis of
the Group’s net bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds,
was 27.9% (2013: 42.4%). The net current assets have
increased by HK$75.3 million to HK$337.1 million as at
the year-end date and the current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 1.26 times (2013: 1.20
times).

With its cash holdings and available banking facilities,
the Group's liquidity position will remain healthy in
the coming year, with sufficient financial resources to
meet its obligations, operation and future development
requirements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW BF %5 Bl B2

AEBREEERSERIFETEEIEE
WHHHERFAEB2RBRESEERED K&
ESHEZEMKIE 2D UWRARERGE -
RZE-—NFEF=A=+—HB AEEZHES
N ER1T 45 SR 42 55 5578 #5323,400,000T (=&
— =4 : ##293,300,0007T)  WIERBEE
19.6% (ZFE—=4% :19.0%) °

FRFAEBEBEEBR2FRERALBE
164,400,000t (EEHRENEHN ITRERIE
HEMNREREMESREE N BWRIRE
RETR EEERRE REEBARE
MBERPCFEVMELAMY) REEK
FIRE R A B 13,400,000t (FERNE
RTFEELE AELECERRENREIR
HETER BKELEVE - BREREREMN
SBREFRY) URBEELHFRESALAS
#£130,900,000T (EFZHRE XK EF I
REFBERTERIRENIGRITERRIE
BREBRREFFE) - Bt WERIIBITHEERE
e MBITERRD RITHEEFEE (BRTT
BFERARSRRTESB) R —NFE=4
=+—HA%8%375,900,000T (ZB—=4:

RITEEFEABEES517,400,0005T) ° F Ik

rEBzEEAGBHLR (REXAEEEFEEFEHE
HBRRESZLHHIFTE) B27.9% (ZF—=
F42.4%) - MNEE B RBEEFEIE B
75,300,0007T & #%£337,100,0007T @ i B EL =&
(RBEERURBER) A1.26EZ (=8 —=
£ :1.2018) o

RAHBAcFERERAHE A ZRITA
B AREZRBESHRRRF S ES R
2R BRERRVBERUBAEARE &
BRARBRER

EREAIZZERAERAT | 2013/2014 F3F

45



46

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bf 7 [l B8

TREASURY POLICY

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to
engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative
products. Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying
financial exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency
exposures of the Group arise mainly from the purchase
of goods. The Group will determine if any hedging is
required, on an individual basis, depending upon the size
and nature of the exposure, and the prevailing market
circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds
with maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and
to minimise cost of funds, the Group'’s treasury activities
are centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash which is generally placed with reputable
financial institutions is mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. Most of the income, expenses, assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group therefore does not have any
significant exposure to gains or losses arising from the
movement of foreign currency exchange rate against the
Hong Kong dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group
were HK$1,348.0 million including reserves of HK$1,294.4
million, an increase of HK$128.6 million from HK$1,165.8
million at 31 March 2013. On that basis, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2014 was
HK$2.51 per share, compared to the consolidated net
asset value of HK$2.27 per share at 31 March 2013.
Increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable to
profits retained after the payments of dividends during
the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of
equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure
over time. During the year under review, the Group
has borrowed Hong Kong dollar loans amounting to
HK$699.3 million from the banks (at 31 March 2013:
HK$810.7 million). The borrowings have been used as
general working capital for financing the properties for
development and investment purposes over the years.
The maturity profile of the loans spread over a period
of five years with HK$621.3 million repayable within the
first year, HK$5.0 million repayable within the second
year, HK$73.0 million repayable within the third to fifth
years. Bank loans that are repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause with carrying amount of
HK$78.0 million have been classified as current liabilities.
Interest is based on HIBOR plus a competitive margin.

COLLATERAL

As at 31 March 2014, certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties, properties under
development for sale of the Group, at the carrying value
of approximately HK$1,153.6 million (at 31 March 2013:
HK$1,168.2 million), were pledged to the banks to secure
the Hong Kong dollar loans of HK$446.3 million (at 31
March 2013: HK$530.7 million). In addition, bank deposits
of HK$49.8 million (at 31 March 2013: HK$24.4 million)
was pledged for bank loans granted to one of the
Group's joint ventures in the PRC.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in
respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group
in respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2014, the directors
are of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty, it is
not practicable to assess the financial effect.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:
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2014 2013
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HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted for but not provided in BTN ERIRGEMBEHRERA
consolidated financial statements
Commitments for the acquisition of BARAME BERSE
property, plant and equipment ZHEYE 2,030 -

In addition, the Group had also committed with another
joint venturer to contribute to the joint venture by means
of shareholder’s loan to finance the expenditure of
property under development if called.

Authorised but not contracted for

As at the end of both reporting periods, the Group had
committed with an independent third party to contribute
HK$231,500,000, representing 23.63% of the anticipated
project costs for the joint development of a site in So
Kwun Wat, Hong Kong.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that
aims to maximise the output of existing staff resources
in order to achieve productivity gains. We believe that
through improving our staff’s job-related competencies,
our overall operational efficiency can be improved
without the need for substantial increase in headcount.

The number of full time monthly employees of the
Group, excluding its joint ventures was around 735 (of
which 153 employees were in Mainland China) as at
31 March 2014. In addition to salary payments, other
benefits include provident fund schemes, discretionary
bonuses, on-the-job training, education sponsorship
subsidies, a medical insurance scheme, a group life and
personal accident insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according
to individual and the Group’s performance, industry
trends, prevailing market conditions, the nature of the
job and value creation. The Group recruits and promotes
individuals based on their development potential, merits
and competencies, and ensures that their remuneration
packages are at a reasonable market level. All directors,
full time employees and consultants of the Group are
entitled to participate in the share option scheme of the
Company. The principal terms of the share option scheme
are summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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Good corporate governance practices are crucial to
enhancing shareholder value. With this in mind, the
directors of the Company are keen on maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. This is reflected in
terms of a quality Board of Directors (“Board”) and the
emphasis on transparency and accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”), except for the
deviations set out below in respect of which remedial

steps for compliance have been taken or considered

reasons are given below:

(a)

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-
executive directors (including the independent
non-executive directors) of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term. However, pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the Company
amended on 2 August 2005, at each annual general
meeting of the Company, one-third of the directors,
including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors shall retire from office by
rotation, and every director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the corporate
governance practices of the Company are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.
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(b)

(@]
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Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, non-
executive director of the Company, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 27 August 2013 as he had other important
business engagement. Details of the directors’
attendance record of meetings are set out in the
“Attendance Record of Directors and Committee
Members” section of the annual report. To ensure
compliance with the CG Code, the Company has
taken and will continue to take all reasonable
measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious
way that all directors can attend the general
meetings.

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates
that the Chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 27 August 2013 as he had other important
business engagement. However, the Managing
Director, present at the annual general meeting,
took the chair of that meeting in accordance with
Article 78 of the Articles of the Association of the
Company.

(b)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
and assumes responsibility for strategy formulation,
corporate governance and performance monitoring. It
develops and reviews the Group's strategies and policies,
formulates business plans and evaluates performance
of the operating divisions against agreed budgets
and targets through regular discussion on key and
appropriate issues in a timely manner. It also exercises
a number of reserved powers, including: approval of
annual and interim results and significant changes in
accounting policy or capital structure, internal control
system, material transactions (in particular those which
may involve conflict of interests), major capital projects,
setting Group remuneration policy, dividend policy,
appointment of directors, supervision of management
and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management, who
fulfill their duties within their scope of authority and
responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible for
different aspects of the businesses. Major functions
delegated to management include preparation of annual
and interim results, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of an
adequate internal control system and compliance with
the relevant statutory requirements.
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All directors are kept informed of major changes that
may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely basis,
and can avail themselves of the advice and services of
the Company Secretary so that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director can have recourse to independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision
making. The biographies of the directors (and their
relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
of this annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of
skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors, representing at least one-third of the
Board. Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 17 July 2013.

Dr. Lam Chat Yu was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 27 August 2013
following the conclusion of the annual general meeting
held on even date in which an ordinary resolution in
respect of his re-election was approved thereat.

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors bring a wealth
of expertise and experiences to the Board, which
contributes to the success of the Group. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all of them make
various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

All independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationships with the Company.
The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company has assessed their independent and
concluded that all independent non-executive directors
are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Company)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart (Managing Director of the Company) together
with Mrs. Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart) indirectly owned as to an aggregate of the
remaining 50% interest in Queentex Industries Limited
and its subsidiaries. If in case a conflict of interest arises,
those directors or any of their associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) who have a material interest will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution(s).

Save for the information (including the relationships,
if any, among the directors) as disclosed in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report and the
business relationship between the Chairman and the
Managing Director as disclosed above, there is no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among the directors and between the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy (the “Policy”) was adopted on 26
March 2013 by the Board and the Nomination Committee
will review at least annually whether board diversity can
be achieved. A summary of the Policy is set out below:

When reviewing board diversity, the Nomination
Committee will consider board diversity from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, which form the measureable objectives of the
Policy. The Nomination Committee will also monitor the
implementation of the Policy and review and recommend
revisions of the Policy to the Board to ensure its
effectiveness.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
20 March 2012 to deal with matters in relation to the
appointment and re-election of Directors.
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Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will identify suitable individuals by making
reference to criteria including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. New directors
are sought mainly through referrals or internal
promotion.

The Company'’s circular sent together with this annual
report contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart respectively. The Board has adopted a set
of written terms setting out the roles and duties of the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of
the Managing Director and senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The Managing Director
is also responsible for formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board'’s approval.
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Directors’ Induction and Development

Every newly appointed director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure
that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/
her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company Secretary from time
to time provides the directors with updates on latest
development and changes to the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements. During the
year ended 31 March 2014, all directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. A summary of training
received by the directors is as follows:

EEARBIIRER

BEFZENESIESHERANREN U
RAGPIH R BNEFERERDBEE NI -
R ER2MERFEER EE RRBKRRM
WRE AARNETKAESEHETRAR
Hib BB EER RO ERZRFEREEHR
NEHER RBE-ZE-—NF=ZA=+—H
LFER FEESERSRISESREEL
BRKEHMPIAAE R AL - EFEZ T
MASRERNT

Training Areas

Bl aR &8 E
Accounting/
Corporate financial/
governance/ management
updates on laws, or other
ruIes & regulations professional skills
E/ﬂ//ﬁfi %E*f/ﬂ?ﬁ%/
iﬁﬂﬂ&%ﬁﬁ]ﬂﬁ EERHEM
B#EA BHERRE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHREE (EFLLE) v v
(Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bt S 4 (B4 LE) v v/
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson BERBEE (FFE) v v
(Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ERMELE v/ v
Dr. Lam Chat Yu MEFEL v v
Independent Non-executive BYkHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe FRAF{E L4 v v
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2 rRiE+ v/ v/
Dr. Sun Tai Lun BRmEL v v
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the guideline for securities transactions by directors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2014. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the employees was noted by the Company.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, namely Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, is also
the Financial Controller of the Company. He has the day-
to-day knowledge of the affairs of the Company.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policies
and procedures are duly followed. He also acts as the
secretary of the Board committees to ensure that all
records of meeting proceedings, discussion and decision
of such Board committees are properly kept. The
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company
Secretary has completed at least 15 hours’ professional
training by attending the continuing professional
development programmes as well as seminars covering
regulatory updates and professional knowledge about
company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.

All directors could have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES

Board Proceedings

The Board held four regular meetings and three non-
regular meeting during the year ended 31 March 2014
and the principal businesses transacted include:

o Assessing business performance and planning future
business directions;

e Approving interim and final results and reports;

° Approving business acquisition and property
transactions;

o Determining payment of dividend; and
o Approving the continuing connected transactions.

Meeting schedules are normally made available to the
directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings
are given to all the directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary.
The directors receive a regular supply of information
about the business activities, financial highlights and
operations review so that they are well informed prior to
participation in Board meetings.
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The Financial Controller attended all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

According to current Board practice, any transaction with
a material amount will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company'’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors
and Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a partner or former partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s existing external
auditors. Members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter (Chairman)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*

Dr. Sun Tai Lun?

* Independent non-executive director
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The major duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

o Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditors
before submission to the Board;

o Making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, approving their remuneration
and terms of engagement and reviewing and
monitoring the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

o Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures;

o Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices; and

o Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG
Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
and the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2013 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2013;

o Reviewing the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013;

o Recommending to the Board of the re-appointment
of external auditors for the year ended 31 March
2014; and
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o Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
system of the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2014 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 20 March 2012. Members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. Chan Pak Joe (Chairman)*
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Dr. Sun Tai Lun?

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

# Independent non-executive director

The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

o Reviewing structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship;

e  Assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company;
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o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year and the major works performed are as follows:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

o Reviewing and make recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of directors who are
subject to retirement from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting; and

o Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Members of the
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Chairman)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

# Independent non-executive director
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The major duties of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

o Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; and

o Ensuring that no director or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings
during the year and the major works performed are as
following:

o Reviewing and determining the change of
remuneration package for the executive directors
and senior management and the change of
remuneration package for other employees of the
Group for the year commencing 1 April 2014; and

o Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
bonus amount to be distributed to the executive
directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, the Board also established
two board committees in April 2002 to handle the
Company’s general business and acquisition/disposal
of property within a designated threshold respectively,
namely the General Business Committee and the Property
Acquisition/Disposal Committee. The composition of two
committees is all the executive directors of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the General
Business Committee approved the transfer of shares by
way of written resolutions.
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee EENZESEREHELE

Members

The individual attendance record of each director at UTRHEZ-ZE—NE=F=+—HILEFE"
Board meetings and general meetings during the year fARESHEZESERBRRAGHHFELE:

ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

2013
Annual General
Board' Meeting?
—E—-=F
Name of Directors EEpE =% 4 BRRBFEKRG?
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)* EMBEE (£FE)* 6/7 0/1
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart THOESE (EBELLE)
(Managing Director) 717 171
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bt S5t (H4EE) 717 11
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson* ERMBEE * 5/7 0/1
Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin*" BREREE 11 N/A
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* PRAB{E 4 * 77 171
Dr. Lam Chat Yu** MEFEL * 6/7 0/1
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* 2 FREL 717 11
Dr. Sun Tai Lun* BAmEL 717 171
* Non-executive director * FHITES
# Independent non-executive director # BYEHITES

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 17 July 2013.

* Dr. Lam Chat Yu was re-designated as a non-executive *
director of the Company with effect from 27 August 2013
following the conclusion of the annual general meeting
held on even date in which an ordinary resolution in
respect of his re-election was approved thereat.
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The individual attendance record of each member at
committee meetings during the year ended 31 March
2014 is set out below:

UTREBEZ-Z-NF=ZA=+t—-HLFE"
BERREHEEEES RN HELE:

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee? Committee* Committee®

Name of Directors EEHS BEREEY REEEY FMHEEES
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* PRAAE L& * 212 171 212
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* 2| 7rRiEt 2/2 1 2/2
Dr. Sun Tai Lun* BAmEL 2/2 11 2/2
Mr. Tai Sai Ho BitREE N/AS 171 212
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FiELE N/AS 171 2/2

* Independent non-executive director

Notes:

1 During the year, there were 4 regular Board meetings and
3 non-regular Board meetings.

2 The annual general meeting was held on 27 August 2013.
3 Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter was the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

4 Mr. Chan Pak Joe was the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

5 Dr. Sun Tai Lun was the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

6 Neither Mr. Tai Sai Ho nor Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
were members of the Audit Committee.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Financing Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements. In preparing the financial
statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have
been applied, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors
on the financial statements of the Company are set out
in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” section of this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate
internal control system to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets, to prevent and detect
fraud and error, and to ensure the quality and timely
preparation of internal and external reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear lines of responsibility and
appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management, who are accountable for
the conduct and performance of the respective business
divisions under their supervision.

The directors review monthly management reports
on the financial results, statistics and project progress
of each business. Monthly management meetings are
held to review business performance against budgets,
forecasts and risk management strategies. Any major
variances are highlighted for investigation and control
purposes.
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A centralized cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group's investment and borrowing activities.
There are established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. The aim is to keep
the expenditure level in line with the annual budget
and within the cost budget of an approved project.
Expenditures are subject to overall budget control
with approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending
on the nature and value, procurement of certain goods
and services are required to go through the tendering
process. No individual in the Group, irrespective of their
rank and position, are allowed to dominate the entire
expenditure process from commitment to payment.

During the year under review, the Board confirmed
that there were no significant weaknesses and areas
for improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures taken.

Auditors’ Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the

Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out
below:
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HK$
B
Audit Services EZ R A% 2,060,000
Non-audit Services IEEZ R
Reviewing the financial results and EHEE-_ZE—=FNA=1+H
report for the six months ended EREANEEEERRE
30 September 2013 360,000
Others Hib 37,000
TOTAL s 2,457,000
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of the
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before
the meeting. Voting at the 2014 annual general meeting
will be by way of a poll. The results of the poll will
be published on the day of shareholders’ meeting by
posting on both the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s
websites.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(@) on the written requisition of any two members of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin
Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
Hong Kong) specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company; or
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(b) on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee) deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block
B, Shatin Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Shatin, Hong Kong), specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the board of directors (the “Board”) does not within
21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by
the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a director at general meeting, the
following documents must be validly served on the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal office in
Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong) within the
period commencing on the day after despatch of the
notice of a meeting appointed for election of director
and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
meeting, (i) notice in writing signed by the shareholder
of his/her intention to propose such person for election
(the “Nominated Candidate”), (ii) notice in writing
signed by the Nominated Candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected and (iii) the biographical details of the
Nominated Candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules for publication by the Company.
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Constitutional Documents

A copy of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company has been published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. There has been
no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2014.

Communication with the Board

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may communicate
with the Board by addressing their enquiries and
concerns to the Company Secretary through the
following channels:

By mail

Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

Unit 1, 4/F, Block B,

Shatin Industrial Centre,

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,

Shatin, Hong Kong

By email
info@hanison.com

By telephone/fax
Tel: (852) 2414 3889
Fax: (852) 2490 3341

To promote effective communication, the Company
also maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.
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The Directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures are set out in notes 47, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 104.

An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents per share amounting
to HK$9,654,000 were paid to the shareholders during
the year.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.2 cents per share for the year ended
31 March 2014 amounting to HK$17,162,000 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on 3 September 2014. The proposed dividend
will be paid on 17 September 2014 following approval at
the annual general meeting.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out in note 16
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserve of the Group
during the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 108.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’'s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2014 comprised the
aggregate of share premium and retained profits of
HK$336,739,000 (2013: HK$333,547,000).

Under the Articles of Association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserves
set aside from profits which the directors of the Company
determine is no longer needed. With the sanction of an
ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account subject to a solvency
test as set out in section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21
September 2011. Pursuant to the Company’s new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted and
became effective on 21 September 2011, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors), full-
time employees and consultants of the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or its associates are eligible to participate
in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

(a) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967 shares of the
Company is available for issue under the Scheme
which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme and represents 9.09% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.
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(b) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(M

(2

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme
or any other share option schemes adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless
otherwise approved by shareholders of the
Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), would result in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in
any 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares on date of
grant in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

(b) BE2REZBRERE LR

(M

()
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(9]

(d)

(e)

(f)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board or the
relevant committee thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board or
the relevant committee thereof must specify the
minimum period(s) (if any) and achievement of
performance target(s) (if any), for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised in whole or
in part.

Period open for acceptance of an option

The offer of grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days after
the date of grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
Option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.
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(g) Basis of determining exercise price of the
Option

(h)

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the higher of:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

No option has been granted under the former share
option scheme and the Scheme since adoption.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or
similar rights as at 31 March 2014 and there has been no
issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
Dr. Lam Chat Yu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

Mr. Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 17 July 2013.

Dr. Lam Chat Yu was re-designated as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 27 August 2013
following the conclusion of the annual general meeting
held on even date in which an ordinary resolution in
respect of his re-election was approved thereat.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Chan Pak Joe, Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter
and Dr. Sun Tai Lun shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All remaining
directors continue in office.

The term of office of each independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements. For the
year ended 31 March 2014, the emoluments of the
senior management, whose biographical details are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” section of this annual report and
include three of the five highest paid individuals analysis
presented in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, fell within the following bands:
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 71, is the chairman
and non-executive director of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in
property development. He is the chairman and executive
director of HKR International Limited (“HKRI"). Mr.
Cha is an independent non-executive director of New
World Development Company Limited (“NWDCL"),
Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT")) and
Hongkong International Theme Parks Limited (owner
and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a
director of a number of public and private companies
in Hong Kong and overseas. HKRI, NWDCL and CREIT
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Cha holds an honorary
doctorate degree of Social Science from City University
of Hong Kong. He is a Justice of the Peace. He is a
brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson who is a non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Cha is also a
director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and
the executive chairman and CEO of Mingly Corporation
(*Mingly”), a company under the control of members of
Cha Family.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=F & WHEE

EERER

]

EEREE

=

ERMBEE T ARRIEERIEHIT
BEE-FR-—ANNEMAKRESR EWESR
RIARELELR -EXEABTBEEHR
SEERAB([EBEE ) 2EERYTE
B FEAAFERBERERATE ([FHER])
EEEEER (BE)ERAR (BEEXET
([BEEEET]) 2EEB) REBEE T ELY
BERAT (BEBEBETRRELREZIEERKY
BIZBIKHTES UREIZHAEFERE
MBRIADRBRZEEZ -HBEE FFiHR
REEEEETINERBERSFERA
(B LH-BEEXEFEEBHT K
BoioEYeNBBETE-FARNTFEML-
ERERERBERECZRR ERBEAEAR
ANRINFERITES  TRREBEFFRBERG
([BEFREBE®ED]) EXVEBFEIRBARQAHN
FERR -BRETRACM Trust (Cayman)
Limited ([CCM Trust J) 2EE REFSK
HERFIEXVBEARRARZEERR  BIh A
BHEEZERERAB ([BH]) 2HITERE
RER KATKREREMEHRHZ AT

FEREAIZZERAERAT | 2013/2014 F3F

81



82

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE=gHEE

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 68, joined the Group
in 1989 and is the managing director of the Company.
Before he joined the Group, he was a director for several
listed companies and a director of HKRI (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange) until his resignation in
December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive experience
in the construction and real estate fields. Mr. Wong
holds a bachelor degree in science from San Diego
State University and a master degree of science in civil
engineering from Carnegie-Mellon University in the
United States of America. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 62, was appointed
as a non-executive director in November 2001. He is a
non-executive director of HKRI (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange) and a director of Mingly Corporation (a
company under the control of members of Cha Family).
Mr. Cha is also an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited and a non-executive
director of China International Capital Corporation
Limited. Mr. Cha is active in many non-profit making
organizations including serving on the Counsel and
Finance Committee of The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson who is
the non-executive chairman of the Company.

Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2001. Mr. Chan has been an executive director
of The Luk Hoi Tong Company Limited since 1973. Mr.
Chan is the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary” of Tsinghua
University in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). He
is also the Vice-Chairman of “Love Relay Grant-in-Aid”
of Fudan University in the PRC since September 2005. His
community services include having served as a director of
YMCA and as a member of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee of the Hong Kong Housing Society.
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Dr. Lam Chat Yu, aged 62, joined the Group in November
2001 and was re-designated as a non-executive director
on 27 August 2013. He has extensive investment
experience in the technology sector, including 15 years
in Silicon Valley, California, the United States of America
and over 16 years in Asia. Dr. Lam is also a non-executive
director of Mingly Corporation (a company under the
control of members of Cha Family) and an alternate
director of Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited for Mr.
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson. Dr. Lam earned his doctorate
in management from The Sloan School, Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Dr.
Lam was a Vice President at C.M. Capital Corporation
in the United States of America, where he specialised
in software venture companies and listed technology
companies in the United States of America.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 2004. Dr. Lau is an Associate Professor of
the Department of Accountancy and Law of the Hong
Kong Baptist University and an Associate Dean and BBA
(Hons) Program Director of the School of Business of
the Hong Kong Baptist University. He holds a bachelor
degree in commerce from Saint Mary’s University in
Canada, a master degree in business administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a doctorate degree
of philosophy in accounting from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario (CPA, CA) in Canada,
a member of The Certified Management Accountants
Society of British Columbia and Yukon (CMA) in Canada,
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (FCPA), and an associate member of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (ATIHK). He was also
a president (1992-1993) of the City Lions Club of Hong
Kong.
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Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
in November 2001. Dr. Sun is the chairman of China-
Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited, whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an
independent non-executive director of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, until 1 June 2013. Dr. Sun has extensive
experience in the photographic products industry.
He holds a bachelor degree in pharmacy from the
University of Oklahoma, the United States of America,
and a doctorate degree of philosophy in business
administration from Southern California University for
Professional Studies, the United States of America. He is
the Vice Patron of the Community Chest of Hong Kong
since 1999, the Court member of City University of Hong
Kong, the Honorary Fellow of City University of Hong
Kong and Chapter Honoree of City University of Hong
Kong Chapter of Beta Gamma Sigma. Dr. Sun also serves
as the chairman of the Advisory Committee on Travel
Agents. Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
1999 and appointed as The Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 63, is an executive director and
the general manager of the Group. Mr. Tai joined the
Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in public
and private sectors of the building and civil engineering
industries in Hong Kong. He is also a director of all the
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tai holds a master degree
in business administration from Asia International Open
University in Macau, a master degree in construction
management from University of New South Wales in
Australia and a bachelor degree in civil engineering from
National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors (FHKIoD)
and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers
(FHKICM).
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Senior Management

Mr. Au Yiu Man, aged 53, joined the Group in 1990. He
is a director of the Interior and Renovation Division of
the Group and has extensive experience in the building
industry in Hong Kong. He holds a higher diploma in civil
engineering (municipal) and endorsement certificate in
design of reinforced concrete & steel structures from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 44, joined the Group in
1999. He was appointed as a director of the Building
Materials Division of the Group on 1 October 2010 and
is currently a director of the Construction Division of
the Group. Mr. Cheung has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. He holds a BSc in
surveying from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chow Ka Fung, Matthew, aged 45, joined the
Group in 1998. He is a director of certain divisions of
the Group and oversees the Property Development
Division, Property Investment Division as well as
Property Agency and Management Division. Mr. Chow
specialises in property development, investment,
marketing, management and project management in
Hong Kong and the PRC. He holds a bachelor degree
in land management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Chow is a Registered Professional Surveyor
(General Practice) under the Surveyor Registration Board
(RPS). He is also a member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).
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Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 63, joined the Group in 1989.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. Mr. Chuk has extensive experience in
planning, estimating, tendering and quantity surveying
in the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor
degree in civil engineering and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Ms. Chung Lai Ling MaryAnne, aged 52, joined the Group
in 2006. She is a director of the Health Products Division
of the Group and has broad experience in various
capacities in Hong Kong. She holds a BA in mathematics
for commerce from York University.

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 49, joined the Group in 1998.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. He has extensive experience in quantity
surveying consultancy and construction contracting. He
holds a professional diploma in quantity surveying from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Registered
Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor Registration
Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 48, joined the Group in 2007.
He is a director of the Building Materials Division of
the Group and is the general manager of Million Hope
Industries Limited. He has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee holds a
higher diploma in mechanical engineering.
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Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, Casey, aged 63, joined the Group
in 1996 and is the Company Secretary and the Financial
Controller of the Group. He is also a director of the
Building Materials Division, Interior and Renovation
Division and Property Agency and Management Division
of the Group. He has extensive finance and accounting
experience in various industries. He holds a bachelor of
business degree in accounting and a master degree in
business administration from Edith Cowan University
in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of CPA Australia (CPA
(Aust.)) and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and Association of
International Accountants (FAIA).

Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 55, joined the Group in 1990 and
is a director of the Construction Division and Interior and
Renovation Division of the Group. Mr. Lun has extensive
experience in the construction field in Hong Kong and
the PRC. He holds an associateship and a higher diploma
in the building technology and management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 54, joined the Group in
1989. He is a director of the Construction Division,
Building Materials Division and Interior and Renovation
Division of the Group. He has 32 years of experience in
the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a diploma
in management studies, a post-experience certificate
in building studies and a higher certificate in structural
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a bachelor degree in construction management
and economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests of the directors and
chief executive in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:

EEZERG -HREOHRESER
BigE

RIE-mOE=A=1+—H EERESTTH
AEBEARDBAZROERMBEESREE
RBIEXVEREISURBFRA D B ETMA
RRBLTARESETES R ZEZET
Bl ([Z#E<pAl ) BAEARATREBERFT &
WA

Long position in shares of the Company RAEXTRBZEFR
Number of ordinary shares Total % of
EERBRMER number issued
of ordinary share
Name Capacity Personal Corporate Other shares capital
interests interests interests EER BB
®E % AR AR HfttE s BHEE ROEIHL
Cha Mou Sing, Payson (1) Beneficial owner 735,712 3,574,272 115,666,069 119,976,053 22.37%
EHE ERBEEA Note (a) Note (b)
(2) Interest of controlled K5t (a) BiEE (b)
Corporation
ZEHAR 2 ER
(3) Beneficiary of discretionary trusts
HEETEZZEA
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson  Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - 117,865,219 117,865,219 21.98%
ERE BEEETE2ZHEA Note (b)
)]
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (1) Beneficial owner 4,499,285 3,416,780 - 7,916,065 1.48%
FiE ERZEEA Note (c)
(2) Interest of controlled corporation W& (c)
SREFAR 2R
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 456,018 - - 456,018 0.09%
Fitx EREBA
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Notes:

(@) The shares are held by Accomplished Investments Ltd., in
which the relevant director is deemed to be interested by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

(b) These shares are held under certain but not identical
discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson are among the members
of the class of discretionary beneficiaries.

() Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in the
Company arise from the fact that owns 50% of the share
capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which holds 3,416,780
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of
the directors and chief executive of the Company or
their associates held any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to the Model
Code, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of
the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such rights during the year.
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By &E

(a) WIEFHFRBEKRFEXVE ZERH
H-BEEESHRABREREZAT
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL

SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, in addition to those interests
as disclosed above in respect of the directors, the
interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under

FERRZHER

MEVERNT

Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

REQXTARMDZHFR

R-ZB-NOF=A=1+—B RLEXFKER
RESZ RN TERRNADFRH RE
EROTEERBERESZRBERGIEXVEE
3B6MRAT AR R ARBZEHMEFE 2 ERT

Number of % of issued
Name Capacity ordinary shares share capital
ERITRAE
8 5% ZERBE Aok
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 262,794,667 49.0%
(“Great Wisdom™) (Note 1)
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited EREEA
(I'Great Wisdom ) (PFffsE1)
HKRI (Note 1) (1) Beneficial owner 262,795,006 49.0%
HEEE (MEE1) BEREREA
(2) Interest of controlled
corporation
ZTEHQATzERE
CCM Trust (Note 2) (1) Trustee 366,277,599 68.3%
CCM Trust (FfEE2) BFEA
(2) Interest of controlled

corporation
ZEEAT 2R
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Notes:

(1

(2)

Great Wisdom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKRI
and therefore HKRI is deemed to be interested in the
262,794,667 shares held by Great Wisdom in accordance
with the SFO. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou
Daid, Johnson, being directors of the Company, are also
directors of HKRI.

These share interests comprise 103,482,593 shares directly
held by CCM Trust, 262,795,006 shares indirectly held
through HKRI. As CCM Trust controls more than one-third
of the share capital of HKRI (held as to approximately
41.48% by CCM Trust), it is deemed to be interested in the
respective share interests of HKRI. CCM Trust is holding
these shares as the trustee of certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which members of the Cha Family
(comprising, inter alia, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, being the directors of the
Company) are among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha
Mou Sing, Payson is also a director of CCM Trust.
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Great WisdomJ3&BEE 22 EWB AT
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M Great WisdomfT548 2262,794,6678% B%
DR EEELR AR EEERBLERER
BERETBEBEENES-

HERDEZEIEHRCIM TrustEEEE 2
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors of the
Company in businesses which compete or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the principal
businesses of the Group (the “Competing Business”) as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules

were as follows:

EENREREGEPCHER

RAFR ARABAESNEMEFAEEETEHE
BEERBEARFMHRARAREME ([
FHEK])  MRELHRAUVETREZEM
ERPHEA2ERUT

Name of
Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business
Esns ACIEE EEMtE REMER
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BE=ET) (PFizE2)
Cha Mou Sing, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development
Payson class of discretionary beneficiaries and investment
of certain but not identical (b) Property management,
discretionary trusts of which the leasing and marketing
trustees are deemed substantial services
shareholders of HKRI under Part XV
of the SFO
BIRE BBEZ EREXEE RETTEANEETEZH () YMEBERRRE
BEHAARZKRE MBRBEFRSRE (b) YXEE -HER
BERPIEXVED  ZEEFEZEREABRR IS E R
REBEETIERR
NWDCL Independent non-executive director of (a) Property development
NWDCL and investment
(b) Property management,
leasing and marketing
services
it R FHRCEBIFBTES (a) MEBRRRE
(b) ¥xEE -HER
™ 5 #E E R
CREIT Independent non-executive director (a) Property investment
of Eagle Asset Management (CP) (b) Property management,

Limited, the manager of CREIT

BEEXET BREEEE (ER)ERAFA(BEE (@)
EEAEE) 2BUFNITES (b)
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Name of
Name of director company Nature of interest Competing business
EEpE AEER EmME REMER
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(HMgEET) (HtzE2)
Cha Mou Daid, HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the (a) Property development
Johnson class of discretionary beneficiaries and investment
of certain but not identical (b) Property management,
discretionary trusts of which the leasing and marketing
trustees are deemed substantial services
shareholders of HKRI under Part XV
of the SFO
BEME BB BREXEE  RETTEANBEEZE () YVERRERRE
BERAARZKE MBRBEESZRE (b) YxeEE -HER
ERBIEXVED  ZEEREZETAER IS ERE
Notes: B &E

(1) Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
are non-executive directors of the Company, who are
not involved in the daily management of the Group.
Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its
business independently of, and at arms length from the
above mentioned competing business.

(2) Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries,
affiliated companies or by way of other forms of
investments.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors is
interested in any business apart from the Group’s
businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group.

(1

()

ERBAEREREEEDARRFHTE
B REYVESEREEIBTEETF-
It ANDRREMEE ERBFF R AR
EMEBTIZAFRAEE -

REEBUEBNBARIBBLALE
REBEMIREFAEH -

Br EXPrIREE SN BB ESMEMEARE
EREEIBEARFHERNATRARTELEZ
EMER (BRAEEEBIN) hER#ER -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS EFENSVRBEREX SRz
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED 2
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group REBEZE-ZZT-NF=ZA=+—HLEEE &K
entered into the following transactions which constituted SEETTTIRS  MRELEWRAE14A
continuing connected transactions of the Company under E ' AQAFZERZHERAFERERS

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1) Construction and Renovation Services (1)
Framework Agreement

As HKRI, together with its wholly-owned subsidiary,
holds approximately 49% of the issued share capital
of the Company, and is, therefore, a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules, the
various construction transactions (“Construction
Transactions”) and renovation transactions
("Renovation Transactions”) entered into or to be
entered into between HKRI and its subsidiaries
("HKRI Group”) on the one hand and the members
of the Group on the other hand constitute
continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions with HKRI") for the
purposes of the Listing Rules.

HKRI and the Company entered into the
Construction and Renovation Services Framework
Agreement dated 20 December 2012 (the “2013
C&R Agreement”) which governs the outline terms
upon which HKRI Group and the Group proposed to
be engaged in various Construction Transactions and
various Renovation Transactions during the three
financial years ending 31 March 2016 with total
values to be subject to the following annual caps
(“Cap") respectively.
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The Cap and the total income recognised by the
Group in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions with HKRI for the year ended 31 March
2014 are stated below:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=E & HEE

REE-Z2-WE=A=+—HILFE
W ERRAEEEDEEBEE ZFE
BER S 2 R ABENT

Income
Recognised

by the Group

for the Year Ended
31 March 2014

BE-ZT—@F

=B=+-—H

Type of Transaction Cap IEFER
R 5 HE A ERR HEEBERZWA
HK$ HK$

B B s

Construction Transactions BERS 320,000,000 126,994,000
Renovation Transactions HIERS 50,000,000 1,152,000
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(2) Project Management Service Agreements

and Site Supervision Agreements

On 2 April 2012, Hanison Project Management
Limited (“"HPML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and BEEEREMHESRQ
A (Translation: Haining Fusheng Real Estate
Development Limited) (“Haining Fusheng”) and
BEZYEMESBMR AT (Translation: Haining
Jiafeng Real Estate Development Limited) (“Haining
Jiafeng”)(collectively “Haining Project Companies”)
(Note a) have entered into cross-border project
management service agreements (“Cross-border
Project Management Service Agreements”), non-
PRC project management service agreements (“Non-
PRC Project Management Service Agreements”)
(collectively "PM Agreements”) and site supervision
agreements (“Site Supervision Agreements”)
pursuant to which HPML will provide project
management services in both Hong Kong and the
PRC (“Project Management Services”) and site
supervision services in the PRC ("“Site Supervision
Services”) to the Haining Project Companies.

On 31 July 2013, HPML and the Haining Project
Companies further entered into new site supervision
agreements (“New Site Supervision Agreements”) to
supersede the Site Supervision Agreements for the
revision of the annual caps for the Site Supervision
Services.

The Company completed the acquisition to acquire
49% interest in Haining Jiafeng on 30 June 2011
and Haining Jiafeng (Note a) becomes a joint
venture of the Group. Despite this joint venture is
not regarded as a connected person of the Company
in accordance with the Listing Rules and only the
provision of Project Management Services and Site
Supervision Services to Haining Fusheng constitutes
continuing connected transactions for the purpose
of the Listing Rules, the Board decided to consider
the transactions (including the annual caps) with
the Haining Project Companies altogether as
continuing connected transactions given the nature
of the works and the fact that Haining Fusheng and
Haining Jiafeng are also indirectly owned as to not
less than 30% by CCM Trust.
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The transactions for the provision of Project
Management Services and Site Supervision Services
to Haining Project Companies are only subject
to announcement and reporting requirements
and no independent shareholders’ approval of
Hanison is required under the Listing Rules. The PM
Agreements, the Site Supervision Agreements and
the New Site Supervision Agreements, its terms,
the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
annual caps (including the revised annual caps for
the Site Supervision Services) on the total value of
the continuing connected transactions with Haining
Project Companies during the three financial years
ending 31 March 2015 were approved by the board
of directors of Hanison and announcements in
relation thereto was made on 2 April 2012 and 31
July 2013 respectively.

The Cap and the total income recognised by the
Group in respect of the continuing connected
transactions with Haining Project Companies for the
year ended 31 March 2014 are stated below:
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ABEEBEARRHEEE EERBER M

BEEBRE2RSZEABT EHHEAUN
ANERBERRE WABEESEBERIE
BuBRRzHAE-HEEESRE HhBE
BEKERRNMBEESLSKER H
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§—£$5H5+—H¢E@$§WZ
BERERSBEZFELR (BEL
ﬂﬁ%ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁiﬁimjaﬁﬁ%
AIREEEREA HENASED R
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=+—HHE-

REBEZE-ZE-—NE=A=+—HILEE
A ERRAEERIESEIER QAT Z
BEBEEXS W ABEMT

Income
Recognised

by the Group

for the Year Ended
31 March 2014

BE-Z—NE

=RA=+-—H

Type of Transaction Cap LFEER

X5 EH ERR AEEBEIRZWA

HK$ HK$

e o

Project Management BHEEEBRBERS 4,913,000 3,788,000
Services Transactions

Site Supervision WEREBRERS 7,013,000 5,507,000

Services Transactions
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
directors engaged the auditor of the Company to
perform certain work on continuing connected
transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has provided a letter to the directors of the Company
and confirmed that, for the year ended 31 March
2014, the above continuing connected transactions:

(a) had received the approval of the directors of
the Company;

(b) had been, in all material aspects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group for
transactions involving the provision of services
by the Group;

(c) had been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements governing
such transactions;

(d) had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for
the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

The independent non-executive directors reviewed
the continuing connected transactions described
in (1) and (2) above (collectively the “Continuing
Connected Transactions”) and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to (or from) independent third
parties; and
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(iii) in accordance with the agreements governing
such transactions on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Note:

a. BEFEERRE#MEBPRRADT is an indirect subsidiary of
CCM Trust. BEZEFEESBRR QA is a joint venture
of CCM Trust and the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for undertaking the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the company was entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 58% of the turnover of the Group
and the largest customer is an independent third party,
accounted for about 20% of the turnover of the Group.
Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective associates, or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) has any interest in any of the
five largest customers of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2014.

The five largest suppliers of the Group in aggregate
accounted for about 12% of the total purchases of the
Group for the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE & |EE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges
relating to the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
Managing Director
24 June 2014
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Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group"”) set out on pages 104 to 241, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Bz AR S

HHanison Construction Holdings Limited
(EBRIZZERERAR)ZERER
(REEHETMHA T ZHERLE])

R B ED B 58 X F#&Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (B f5RIZZRBRAF)
(TERAFAEREMBAR (KB IEEE])H
REIMME2MBEZ2FEMBHRK BERZ
Z-NMF=ZA=+—-HZHREHERREX &
ZEZALEEZHEEBRER GEEEREM
2ARRR GRERREEBRRASHERDY
FURFTESTBRBEREMRAER

ESHGAMEBERRARBEZRE

BERRAZESARERBEEBEHMAENR
2 &R W EE R RIRRE B D B RA
ZHRERAERRGSVBHRR REFELESE
ROFZRM UREZEBESADREGESH
BHRRALBRZBERNIES - UEESHE
BRAFEHNRFHERMEB 2 ERE
R BRI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Y& 7 #% & Bl i &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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BEEGEVBERRUFHEERAIFZR
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HEBRESCERERREHER
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2014

BR

TERBMRS GEUBRRERETBYHK
BRELZENEEHEATHRR EXRER=-F
—OFE=ZA=+t—-RZ#BRRE BEXREE
EZALFEZSANRESR  UEERREE
DNARBI 2 WBEREZRERER

Y e AERAS ST
BIEEEED

=58
—E-MFEARAZ=THA

EREAIZZERAERAT | 2013/2014 F3F

103



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

I:I \/
l\\/T\ B fm
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—MFE=ZA=+—-HLFE

2014 2013
—E—UF —E—=
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
MEE BEEF T BT T

Turnover EHER 7 1,626,525 1,554,479
Cost of sales THE A (1,377,469) (1,290,467)
Gross profit EF 249,056 264,012
Other income Hbg A 9 37,025 5,435
Other gains and losses Hitl# R & B 64 (338)
Marketing and distribution costs ™MiEERER D HE R (32,721) (44,281)
Administrative expenses ITHRAX (125,368) (121,982)
Gain on change in fair value of REWEZAFEEHZ

investment properties g 55,736 104,489
Share of (loss) profit of an DEEEE N T (EE)ER

associate (264) 839
Share of profit (loss) of MEEELERR (BE)

joint ventures 3,530 (546)
Finance costs B E A 10 (7,736) (5,731)
Profit before taxation BREERER 1 179,322 201,897
Taxation BEXH 13 (15,306) (16,711)
Profit for the year AEERR 164,016 185,186
Profit (loss) for the year THANLTELREEER

attributable to: (F8):

Owners of the Company PIN/NETEZ 2SN 155,698 188,265

Non-controlling interest FEIERR RS 8,318 (3,079)

164,016 185,186

Earnings per share - basic BRER-EA (GBL)

(HK cents) 15 29.0 35.1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBnkEMEEmEEE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-NE=RA=+—HLEE

2014 2013
—E-mE =—ZE-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit for the year RERERF 164,016 185,186
Other comprehensive (expense) HfbZ2 M (X H) WA :
income:
Items that may be subsequently ARERZEH/EEEHZ2EE
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising REBIEBEEZERERE
on translation of foreign
operations (334) 1,810
Total comprehensive income AEEZTEHWRALZE
for the year 163,682 186,996
Total comprehensive income THATEERFEZAERBA
(expense) for the year (i) 458
attributable to:
Owners of the Company FiNTNCTE Z =N 155,364 190,075
Non-controlling interest FERER 8,318 (3,079)
163,682 186,996
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
kR B IR R

At 31 March 2014
R-ZE-—MFE=R=+—H

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E—-MmE —E—=
=A=+—-8 | =ZB=+—H
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
MEE BET T BET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REY% 16 804,040 747,090
Property, plant and equipment  #1¥ =Kk &X & 17 71,360 108,341
Prepaid lease payments FEAHEENIE 18 6,789 7,024
Interest in an associate /N 72%@ 19 20,974 21,238
Interests in joint ventures Aﬁﬁ%z%m 20 155,574 129,592
Pledged bank deposits 2R ITFR 30 49,795 24,401
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 34 702 848
1,109,234 1,038,534
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BRPZGEME
for sale 21 794,832 815,553
Properties held for sale BIESEWE 84,416 31,886
Inventories T8 22 23,795 31,412
Amounts receivable on EWEHTRRE
contract work 23 78,844 122,017
Progress payments receivable FE WA FE SR IR 24 69,155 76,522
Retention money receivable FELlﬂ%Iﬁ 25 125,916 114,691
Debtors, deposits and EWFHE -ZEk
prepayments FE{TIRIE 26 123,944 42,412
Prepaid lease payments FEAHEERIE 18 224 218
Amounts due from joint ventures FELBZA“Aﬁé" 27 24,979 449
Amount due from an associate FE U B 2 A B 2008 27 2,132 1,921
Investments held for trading ?ﬂ’ﬁﬁazké 28 364 372
Taxation recoverable ] 3R [E %18 548 1,753
Derivative financial instruments T4 LA 29 89 277
Bank balances and cash RITEREE S 30 323,444 293,338
1,652,682 1,532,821
Assets classified as held forsale 2D ¥EAF{ELEERE 31 - 8,500
1,652,682 1,541,321
Current liabilities =R
Amounts payable on e & #H TR
contract work 23 208,683 68,566
Trade and other payables FE A 5018 R H At FE S FRIB 32 398,824 379,401
Taxation payable J?EHEIE 8,740 20,832
Bank loans — amounts due RITER ——$W
within one year FE1T 33 699,300 810,700
1,315,547 1,279,499
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 434 Bt #& Ak 3%

At 31 March 2014
R-E—NE=A=+—H

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —E-=
=BA=+—H =B=+—H
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
M & BET T BT T
Net current assets RBEEFEE 337,135 261,822
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERTEEE 1,446,369 1,300,356
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other long-term payable Hith R HI B FRIE 37 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a non-controlling FE{YFEIE AR IR ERFKIE
shareholder 38 70,957 63,600
Deferred tax liabilities EiEHEEE 34 7,908 6,118
93,118 83,971
1,353,251 1,216,385
Capital and reserves EAR#E
Share capital &N 35 53,632 53,632
Reserves R 1,294,380 1,165,832
Equity attributable to owners of ZAQ T #EE AEGER
the Company 1,348,012 1,219,464
Non-controlling interest FERER 5,239 (3,079)
1,353,251 1,216,385

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to
241 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 24 June 2014 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
IS
DIRECTOR
EZE

F104EEF2MEI 2 HEMKHR K8
EENZE-NEANAZ+TNAREREE
B WHTIHESKREE:

Tai Sai Ho
Hit=x
DIRECTOR
EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REY ot LIES

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-NME=A=+—-HALEE

Property Non-
Share  Contributed Special  revaluation  Translation  Goodwill Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
Ra  BARE®  BHBE NXEREE  RERE  BERE  ZhEH &t FERER  BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EMTn Rt BMTn BETn BMTn EMfn EMTn E¥Tn E¥Tr
(Note 36) (Note 36)
(360  (HE36)
At 1 April 2012 WZE-Z4mA-H 48,756 13,645 21,941 982 4,881 (78) 961,203 1,051,330 - 1,051,330
Profit (loss) for the year REERR (HR) - - - - - - 188,265 188,265 (3079) 185,186
Exchange differences arising on BESMEBEER

translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - 1810 - - 1810 - 1,810

Total comprehensive income (expense) REE2EBA (XiH)
for the year ag - - - - 1,810 - 188,265 190,075 (3,079) 186,996
Bonus shares issued BRI 4,876 (4.876) - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid BHZRE - - - - - - ) @) - )
At 31 March 2013 W-E-Z%=ZfA=1-AH 53,632 8,769 21,941 982 6,691 (18) 112152 1,219,464 (3079 1,216,385
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - 155,698 155,698 8318 164,016

Exchange differences arising on BESMEBEER

translation of foreign operations EREH - - - - (334) - - (334) - (334)

Total comprehensive (expense) income REERE (X KA
for the year fak] - - - - (334) - 155,698 155,364 8318 163,682
Dividends paid BfiZRE - - - - - - (26,816) (26,816) - (26,816)
At 31 March 2014 WZE-ME=A=1-A 53,632 8,769 21,941 982 6,357 (78) 1,256,409 1,348,012 5,239 1,353,251

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/wx Eiiuw@ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-NE=RA=+—HLEE

2014 2013
—E-NmF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities REZEBEEHEHER
Profit before taxation BRFLEDRF 179,322 201,897
Adjustments for: T
Share of loss (profit) of an associate DIEEEE N REE ORF) 264 (839)
Share of (profit) loss of joint PMEEERE CRA) BB
ventures (3,530) 546
Dividend income SN PN (6) (9)
Interest income FMEUWA (1,448) (635)
Interest expense FEFZH 7,736 5,731
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZEBZITE
plant and equipment 6,469 6,704
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BERREZ
plant and equipment Y &= (29,580) (57)
Gain on change in fair value of BEVMX 2 ATHE
investment properties oA (55,736) (104,489)
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESBEARFLHEEEZ
as held for sale &= (4,000) -
(Gain) loss on change in fair value of {TEMBEIEZAFE
derivative financial instruments 282 (lm)EiE (72) 427
Loss (gain) on change in fair value BFEBEEZ2REZATE
of investments held for trading B2 2 BB (W) 8 (89)
Reversal of impairment loss on Y3 BE KRB 2 RE
property, plant and equipment R - (2,309)
Reversal of impairment loss on FENEERE 2 REEERE
prepaid lease payments - (412)
Impairment loss recognised SRR ERRIERERSE
on trade debtors 4,936 3,000
Operating cash flows before EESRHAICEERERN
movements
in working capital 104,363 109,466
Decrease in inventories FERD 7,617 102
Increase in properties under BRPZEEMEZEM
development for sale (24,070) (44,947)
Decrease in amounts receivable FEWEHN T RRERD
on contract work 46,742 52,617
Decrease in progress payments P& W E SR IR R A
receivable 7,367 32,018
(Increase) decrease in retention EWRE S (380) B
money receivable (11,225) 4,815
(Increase) decrease in debtors, R E IE Bek
deposits and prepayments FEATFRIE (3 h0) R A (86,468) 159,665
Increase (decrease) in amounts &N ITRREZ I CR)
payable on contract work 140,117 (9,010)
Increase (decrease) in trade and JEH IE& Hib e
other payables nOA) 19,423 (8,737)
Decrease in derivative financial assets ?STGEEJJ%?EEZ?EQ‘ 260 -
Decrease in derivative financial TEBREEZRD
liabilities - (3,110)
Cash from operating activities RELEXEBR2BHE 204,126 292,879
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BT EBFEH (24,257) (4,877)
Interest paid 2R E (15,475) (14,417)
Net cash from operating activities RELEEXB RS FEHE 164,394 273,585
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4&8 IR e nEx

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—DNF=A=+t—-HLFE

2014 2013
—Z—mF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from investing activities REREXEBZRER
Interest received 2 U FI 1,448 635
Dividend received from investments EWRIFEEEZRERE
held for trading 6 9
Dividend received from joint ventures BWEERERE 5,800 -
Purchase of investment properties nNEREWE (1,214) (335,209)
Purchase of property, NEME -BERZE
plant and equipment (5,662) (5,889)
Proceeds from disposal of investment H&EREYEFTEFE
properties - 70,308
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BER
plant and equipment FIBFTSRIR 62,343 68
Proceeds from disposal of H:'.’Eﬁiﬁj‘%?ﬂ’lftﬂ%ﬁﬁ
assets classified as held for sale Fri8 Rz 12,500 -
Deposit received for disposal of EUQ.‘:H%&’%W%J%
investment properties - 1,250
(Advance to) repayment from (ER)ERTHELT
an associate (211) 379
Advance to joint ventures BXRTEE JJ:% (24,530) (203)
Loan to a joint venture EEDECER (28,454) -
Capital distributions from joint BELESD J[’Eﬁzl-‘
ventures - 10,000
Placement of pledged bank deposits  FHEEFRITIER (25,394) (24,401)
Net cash used in investing activities ARREXEB 2R FHE (3,368) (283,053)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEXEBZRER
Dividends paid IREERR B (26,816) (21,941)
Repayment of bank loans BEIETER (129,400) (110,600)
New bank loans raised HERITER 18,000 187,000
Advance from a non-controlling FERBRER
shareholder 7,357 63,600
Net cash (used in) from financing (AR REMEEKE 2B SR
activities (130,859) 118,059
Net increase in cash and cash RERBESZEEMFRE
equivalents 30,167 108,591
Cash and cash equivalents FUReRBELEE
at the beginning of the year 293,338 184,924
Effect of foreign exchange rate changesE £ &) > &/ & (61) (177)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRBESEE
at the end of the year, RERTLEBRES
representing bank balances and cash 323,444 293,338
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter
22 of the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”), which is the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
building construction, interior and renovation
works, supply and installation of building materials,
sale of health products, property investment,
property development and property agency and
management.

AU BRARME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-NE=RA=+—HLEE

—KER

ARIRBNEREEAZE -+ =EA
Ak (CBB-FFEBIR) EHE
HEEMAT A - MERRERAT
HROREEHA RS FERAT ([
R b RARZEMPERRE
TR A F R D T
B o

FEMBRRVBERS BEIALT
ZIjJAE‘b

RAAD—RREZRAF -HWBLQ
AZEIEXBRBETEE RHKES
TR -HEEZEEZENS REERE
B MERE VMEBRRRYEAERE
Ho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 16537 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new or revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by

BRI REBITZEEME

wEER

RAFE  AREEERRATIIE RS
FHED D &R 2 #R] RAEMERT 2 BB B

T35 %8 o

the HKICPA:
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial EBUBREEDN GKeRKER
statements R
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements BRMBHRELED HERH
-3
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other ERUBBREEN REOBEREZEE
entities -y
Amendments to Consolidated financial ERUBRELEDN HKEUBERER HRAZER
HKFRS 10, statements, joint BB B REMEBER KR
HKFRS 11 and arrangements and g ] BEMIES
HKFRS 12 disclosure of interest in E+-HRER
other entities: Transition RS ER
guidance ETZR2BIR
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement BERAMEHREEN QAYEZGE
F+=5
HKAS 19 (as revised Employee benefits BEBETER BERERF
in 2011) %
(20115 EE3ET)
HKAS 27 (as revised Separate financial statements EBETER BIUBBHRE
in 2011) EZTLR

HKAS 28 (as revised

Investments in associates and

(2011 £&453T)
BB e EL

BENARGELEIRE

in 2011) joint ventures FZT N
(20115 £485T)
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting EANMBREED BKE-KENBEEERME
HKFRS 7 financial assets and financial FtHeBiITx 8fF
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HKAS 1 comprehensive income E-R2BIK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
“Consolidated and separate financial statements”
that deal with consolidated financial statements
and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation - Special
purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an
investee when (a) it has power over the investee,
(b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and (c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All
three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control
was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Additional guidance
has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company have assessed the
control in respect of its investees under the new
definition in HKFRS 10 and concluded that the
application of this standard will have no material
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements.

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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—OFE=ZA=t—-HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint
ventures”, and the guidance contained in a
related interpretation, HK(SIC) — INT 13 “Jointly
controlled entities — Non-monetary contributions by
venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified and accounted
for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types of
joint arrangements - joint operations and joint
ventures. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKFRS 11 is determined based on the rights
and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements
by considering the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed
by the parties to the arrangement, and, when
relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint
operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS
31 had three types of joint arrangements — jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled operations
and jointly controlled assets. The classification of
joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily
determined based on the legal form of the
arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that was
established through a separate entity was classified
as a jointly controlled entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= M 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11
(Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint
ventures and joint operations are different.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments
in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including
its share of any assets jointly held), its liabilities
(including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly),
its revenue (including its share of revenue from
the sale of the output by the joint operation) and
its expenses (including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly). Each joint operator accounts
for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues
and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint
operation in accordance with the applicable
standards.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the classification of the Group’s investments in joint
arrangements in accordance with the requirements
of HKFRS 11. The directors have determined that the
Group’s current investments which were previously
classified as jointly controlled entities under HKAS
31 are classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11
and continue to apply the equity method.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is
applicable to entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements with respective to the Group's interests
in associates, joint ventures and subsidiaries with
non-controlling interest (please see notes 19, 20 and
47 for details).

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about,
fair value measurements, and replaces those
requirements previously included in various HKFRSs.

The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad, and applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, subject to a few
exceptions. HKFRS 13 contains a new definition
for ‘fair value’ and defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions.
Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements
prospectively. Disclosures of fair value information
are set out in notes 6 and 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new
terminology for statement of comprehensive income
and income statement. Under the amendments to
HKAS 1, a statement of comprehensive income is
renamed as a statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and an income statement
is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made
in the other comprehensive section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the existing option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes.

Except as described above, the adoption of the
other new or revised HKFRSs has had no material
effect on the amounts reported and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—DNF=A=+t—-HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendment to
HKFRS 11

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

Amendment to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 36

HKFRS 9

118

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle’

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle?

Mandatory effective date
of HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?

Accounting for acquisition of
interests in joint operations®
Investment entities*

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation
and amortisation®

Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial
assets’

Financial instruments?

VAN
fra
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 5= B 5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to Defined benefit plans:
HKAS 19 Employee contributions?
Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and
HKAS 32 financial liabilities*
Amendments to Novation of derivatives and
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge

accounting*
HK(IFRIC) = INT 21 Levies*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014.
3 Available for application — the mandatory effective

date will be determined when the outstanding
phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 amended
in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition and further amended in
2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

REMBRERME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is available for earlier application and the
mandatory effective date will be determined when
the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have impact
on classification and measurement of available-
for-sale investments reported in respect of the
Group’s financial assets but not on the Group’s
financial liabilities. Upon the adoption of HKFRS
9, available-for-sale investments as at the date of
initial application are required to be measured at
fair value, with fair value changes either accounted
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. The
new requirements for hedge accounting are not
expected to have material impact to the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the financial
performance and financial position of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
the investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. A fair value measurement of
a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

J Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interest. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

REMBRERME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises
the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest, with any resulting difference
being recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss
attributable to the Group. The amounts previously
recognised in the other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities, i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r4& B 7% 3 3% Fff 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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—OFE=ZA=t—-HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 "“Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interest that is present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interest are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that
qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is
classified. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate,
with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of associates and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the non-current asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for
sale of such asset and the sale is highly propable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Investment properties classified as held for sale is
measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts, returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from construction contracts, interior
and renovation contracts and building materials
installation contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method by reference to
the value of work carried out during the year as
determined by quantitative surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised when
the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrual on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property

An investment property is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation. The fair
value, at the date of transfer, which is the deemed
cost of the property for subsequent accounting is
in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and
equipment”. The property interest held under an
operating lease which is previously classified as
investment property under the fair value model is
continued to account for as a finance lease after the
transfer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land
and buildings held for own use are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front
payments to lease medium-term leasehold land
interests in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Inventories
Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes land cost, development costs and directly
attributable costs including, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties
and are classified under current assets. They are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising prepaid lease payments for lands and
development costs, are included in properties under
development for sale until such time when they
are completed. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all anticipated cost to be
incurred in marketing and selling.

Others
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by surveys of work
performed. Variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt
is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts
receivable on contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts payable on contract
work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability,
as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are
included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under progress payments receivable or
debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf 153 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBR @)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial
assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, and changes in fair values arising from
remeasurement are recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
progress payments receivable, retention money
receivable, debtors, refundable deposits, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from an
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Loans and receivables are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables,
the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r4& B4 7% 3 3% Fff 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE=
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—OFE=ZA=t+t—-HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

or

o it becomes probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

. disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade debtors,
where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to the
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf 153 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHBR @)

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities excluding derivative financial
instruments

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, other long-term payable, amount due to
a non-controlling shareholder and bank loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fee and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 B #s= Mf 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r4& B4 7% 3 3% Fff 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE=
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—OFE=ZA=t+t—-HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment loss on assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

e MBwARME

3.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

FESHEBEX &)

B (&)

EERBRERGRESVBRRAEERE
&z lREEET EERBUER FT A 218
AREELE RS ZHETETURR
BIE IR IR R B — R B ERBR
P 2R T LARERD MIEERIREE —
AR A P 4R B B 2= 2R 1T T LARE R, -
HELUE BB SR 75 A T B2 Hi 3R LUK 8RR 40
B EZREAR -HARZHEE2BHE
IS RAHMEERBBEREEZR
R0 (RBEORMN) MR EER
BBFIREENZBERT  BEEER
SEATE T URER -

BRI A 55 (B T 42 B B i = ER IR 1) % R B
EZFEE/DAERT RGRERD - RNEE
ERRMBRARARBE QAR Z2RERR
BELECEBIEENERTEREE
BREARELHESE RERZERE
ez B 9 w075 B B = FE AV IR SE Y
HEE RERAREA R AERBOUGTI L
) A I By 2= B A9 R 25 4F 4RI TR B R AT
RS R B O SRR

EEBHEE 2 REERAREHRY
TR RED AT BT EE
AR N A BRFREFERIDEER
fR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting periods.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment property”,
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current
and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r4& B4 7% 3 3% Fff 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2014
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—OFE=ZA=t+t—-HALEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the investment
property portfolio of Group’s subsidiaries and
concluded that none of the investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
“sale” presumption set out in the amendments to
HKAS 12 is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has
not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not
expected to have tax consequence on disposal of
those investment properties.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deductible from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.

FESHEBEX &)

B (&)

MATERERAQVPERETEZREY
EFEENELEHBEREMNS  AQFAE
ERRAKENBLARANKRENEAS
RETELEREMRUEERE LA
BEERENEANMBREESERE
B MARMUHESN 2 AREEEHE
BREE AR R AESRANE RS
FPERISE125R 2 BT AR [HE RRR
BRES Bt ARAKETEHHE
ZERENFEERBER  RNEBWE
BRARENELAFEZBIIELERE

EE KA

Wi ZRJEENBEERERELH
EHARRERKENSEREENE
EELANBERERNDFABRBEENK
N BEERREECAHAEERERAR
FHERL -HEEEERAFESERE
ERRXATETERREFREAIR
BB BREBRENMCHEERAN
B o

FEHMEERNARNEEMENERERA
EEE’L‘A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®iBE &)

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued) SNEE (4%)

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated MEIGEUBRENS  AEEEIIE
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of BrEERBEYRBEHREAER
the Group’s foreign operations are translated into REAEREEZZ25EY (NE) MW
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) HWARZ HAIRZHE 2 FIIE R
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of HE-E4AvEREZRE (WA IHEIRAEH
the reporting period. Income and expenses items 2 EWBAL B ERER P ZE L F#EE
are translated at the average exchange rates for (FEFERER (WEA) ) -

the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,

are recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity under the heading of

translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interest as appropriate).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 4. EXEi IR MA&TFABHBEAE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart
from those involving estimation, that the directors
have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors of the Company have reviewed the
investment property portfolio of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates and concluded that
none of the investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, the directors of
the Company have determined that the “sale”
presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS
12 is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the Group is not
expected to have tax consequence on disposal of
these investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 4. EXSAE R AHEEA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2014 at their fair value of HK$804,040,000
(2013: HK$747,090,000) (note 16). The fair value was
based on valuation of these properties conducted
by independent firms of professional valuers using
property valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions of market conditions. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contract is recognised
under the percentage of completion method which
requires estimation made by the management.
Anticipated losses are fully provided on contracts
when identified. The management estimates the
contract costs and foreseeable losses of construction
based on the budgets prepared for the contracts.
Because of the nature of the activities undertaken
in construction businesses, the management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract
costs in the budget prepared for each contract
as the contract progresses. Where the contract
revenue is less than expected or actual contract
costs are more than expected, additional losses
may need to be recognised. As at 31 March 2014,
the carrying amounts of amounts receivable on
contract work and amounts payable on contract
work are HK$78,844,000 and HK$208,683,000 (2013:
HK$122,017,000 and HK$68,566,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of trade debtors

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss for trade debtors, the Group takes into
consideration its estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss for trade
debtors is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying
amount of trade debtors is HK$29,469,000 (2013:
HK$19,593,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts
of HK$10,585,000 (2013: HK$5,649,000) disclosed in
note 26.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank loans disclosed in note
33, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
profits.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.
(Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and new share issues, as well
as the issue of new debt and the redemption of
existing debt.

BamBRER

RARESTEHMNHERRE ERLL
WAz — 80 EBEBEEHARER
AETHEBENER ERESHEER
SEEBEBRERERBITHR  URBT
HEXREOREER FTEEREEN
Rige

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. UEIR
Categories of financial instruments Bt i T EE R
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E—-mE —E—=
=A=+-8 | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Financial assets B EE
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 364 372
Loans and receivables (including &N U FIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BffEeRREEE) 701,769 538,570
Derivative financial instruments f$T4£ BT A 89 277
Financial liabilities Bk a s
At amortised cost 1 85 p AS 970,049 1,058,477
Other long-term payable Hth & HA B FRIE 14,253 14,253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
progress payments receivable, retention money
receivable, debtors, refundable deposits, amounts
due from joint ventures, amount due from an
associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, derivative financial instruments, trade and
other payables, other long-term payable, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder and bank
loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk
The functional currency of the group entities is

mainly HK$, the currency in which most of the
transactions are denominated.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR &

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities, included retention money receivable,
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits and derivative financial instruments, of the
group entities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

BEEREEEEREX (&

EWmEbk (&)

FEBEZERNBEHRUINESEZ

%

BER

%

EEEERRRES B
WRR  RITESRRE  BEEMRITHE

RRITEF B TAENREERENT

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NFE=R=+—H —E-=Z§f=ZH=t—H

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BE =L BE =L

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T BET T BET T

Macau Pataca (“MOP") BT 639 - 643 -
Australian Dollars (“AUD") BT 83 - 403 -
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 65,147 - 36,944 -
United States Dollars (“USD") &t 1,684 - 2,527 -

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise. The Group uses
foreign exchange forward contracts to manage the
Group's foreign currency exposure in relation to
foreign currency forecast sales and foreign currency
denominated monetary items. The Group does not
currently designate hedging relationship on the
foreign exchange forward contracts for the purpose
of hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against
foreign currencies of RMB. The financial impact
on the exchange differences among other foreign
currencies against HK$ is expected to be immaterial
to the Group. The followings present details of the
Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2013: 5%) increase and
decrease in RMB against the functional currency
of each group entity. 5% (2013: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in RMB. The sensitivity analysis
includes only the outstanding monetary items
denominated in RMB and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2013: 5%)
changes in RMB. If RMB weakening against HK$ by
5%, the post-tax profit for the year will decrease by
approximately HK$2,720,000 (2013: HK$1,542,000).
For a 5% (2013: 5%) strength of functional currency
of each group entity against RMB, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit
for the year.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to the Group’s variable-rate bank loans which are
linked to the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
("HIBOR") and bank balances at the prevailing
market deposit rate. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR &

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider the Group's
exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period. The Group's

BEEREEEEREX (&

MERmEb (&

ARBEBZEIAEERITESAE
R RERIY T AR BRAFRRITE
BRAREHEN - AEEHF RER 2
RETDIRERBE AR ZSRITERK

A 2 R R AR ERE - 24T I RR IR
FHARNKRBESERBREFEDAR

sensitivity to interest rate risk has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank loans at the end of the reporting period. BE - BRRAEEMZEREEE K&
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount B A & 3R E B R B R R 3 b 2 U E 0
outstanding at the end of the reporting period T

was outstanding for the whole year. The Group's

sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the

reporting period while all other variables were held

constant is as follows:

2014 2013
—E—-UF —E—=F
Reasonably possible change MRS IR Hh B4 1L 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
50%F 508 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Decrease in profit for the year as ANEEGZFIF D —
a result of an increase in the AR RZE EFH508F
interest rate by 50 basis points (2,920) (3,385)
Increase in profit for the year as 2N & j& A # /il —
a result of a decrease in the A F =T BR503 T
interest rate by 50 basis points 2,920 3,385
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2014 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the majority of counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with
75% (2013: 83%) of the total progress payments
receivable was due from the Group’s three (2013:
three) largest customers, engaged in property
construction business in Hong Kong, within the
construction segment.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group's investments held for trading include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong. These listed
equity securities are subject to market price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the investments held for trading
are set out in note 28. The management considers
that the market price risks of these investments are
not significant to the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank loans
and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2014, the
Group has available unutilised borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$397,617,000 (2013:
HK$461,366,000). Details of bank loans are set out
in note 33.

e MBwARME

6.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments that settle on a
net basis, undiscounted net cash outflows are
presented, based on the contractual maturities as
the management considers that the contractual
maturities are essential for any understanding of
the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. BBEITH &=
Financial risk management objectives and MERREEBERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity tables RBAESR
As at 31 March 2014 R-B-mF
=A=+-A
Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 year years years  cash flow  31.3.2014
®
—E2-mF
mETYE  RERS AR =ZA=1+-H
ERFZE FR-F 125 25 ReReH REE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bfit A®Tr  BETx  B%TR  BBTr  BETx

Non-derivative financial FITEMBEE

liabilities
Trade and other payables ERTER M

EfRE - 182,005 17,787 - 199,792 199,792

Bank loans - variable rate *  SRITEHR-FE* 1.87 712,361 - - 712,361 699,300
Other long-term payable HitREEARE - - - 14,253 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a non- A EERRERE

controlling shareholder - - 70,957 - 70,957 70,957

894,366 88,744 14,253 997,363 984,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MBI H =
Financial risk management objectives and BERREEEZERBUR (&
policies (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued) REBES R (&)
As at 31 March 2013 RZE-Z=F
=R=+-H
Weighted
average  On demand Total Carrying
effective  or less than 1-2 2-5 undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 1 year years years cash flow 31.3.2013
iy
—2-=K
T RERY A#E =ZA=t-H
ERFIE FR-F 128 258 RERAE RHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3£ 574 Bt 1 & f&
Trade and other payables ERRER M
FETRR - 145,832 38,345 - 184,177 184,177
Bank loans - variable rate * BTER-FE* 1.97 826,637 - - 826,637 810,700
Other long-term payable 2R EEAHE - - - 14,253 14,253 14,253
Amount due to a non- IR R IE
controlling shareholder - - 63,600 - 63,600 63,600
972,469 101,945 14,253 1,088,667 1,072,730

* The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted
cash flows of variable rate bank loans are the
interest rates at the end of the reporting period.

* FERTERZEFRERRERAR
AR RDHERRZRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. MBIR @)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

The amounts above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rate differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 1
year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$78,000,000 (2013: HK$353,800,000). Taking into
account the Group'’s financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank loans as at 31 March 2014 will be repaid
within five (2013: six) years after the reporting date
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the
aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HK$83,192,000 (2013: HK$370,883,000).
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BRREREEEERBXK (&)

RBEER (#)

EREHAFFAEMBRWIBIEZS
B HRTBRIEY BB SR
B2 AREBEEERELED -

EU BB BEREREERK
RZBRTERDINATRERG DR
—F AR -R-_ZE—NF=A=1+—
B ZERTERZATELASHAES
178,000,000 (ZE—=F B
353,800,0007t) ° 5 & A~ & @ = B # AR
o EBBUWFARAERBRTETEENSG
RERNBER -BEHE R=-ZE—0T
F=RA=+—HREBEEERBRMSE
ZHERERBH ZERITERSNR
EHHERF(ZE—=F ~F)RE
B-EE AERINEBEBESHRHBER
A 7B83,192,000T (ZE—=F : B
370,883,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices and ask prices respectively;

o the fair value of derivative financial
instruments of foreign currency forward
contracts are determined using quoted
forward exchange rates and yield curves from
quoted interest rates matching with maturities
of the contracts; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

6.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

MEIR #
NEE

MHEERMBEBEZAFELIET
FAEE:

s HBEERRREGERERKRTERT
SEENNEEERVKEEZD
FESEHSMBENEAERE
HEBEE;

o HNEHESHNITEMBIAEZAY
B2 REMERBERREERE
PR ARz B AR E &

e HMUBEERMBEB(ITET
AN 2 AFERBERBER
ERDNNLOREBRAEE -

RARESFRAR RESUBRRIZBE
AR M BEEERMBEEE2IRE
EEAQAFEMRSE

EREAIZZERAERAT | 2013/2014 3

165



166

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r4& B4 7% 3 3% Fff 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE=

—OFE=ZA=t+t—-HALEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values
of these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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E(LERFAZEERMREBAZE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. MBIR &

Fair value (Continued) NF{E (#)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and REEMEEUAFEFEZEAEE
financial liabilities that are measured at fair MBEERMEEENAFE (&)

value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) and key
Financial assets 31.3.2014 hierarchy input(s)
R=-T—NF
=ZA=+—-H2
MBEE DE¥{E RV ERHR HEFERETEBAZH
Investments held for HK$364,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market.
trading
— Listed equity securities
in Hong Kong
HIEEEZRE 7B #5364,0007T E—R SEBMIZEARE-
-REBLETZRAFES
Derivative financial HK$89,000 Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
instruments flows are estimated based on
- Foreign exchange forward exchange rates (from
forward contracts observable forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted forward
rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.
TTEMKIA 75 #589,0007T B BRBER - ARRBERDIRBERIER
—-IMNEBMEEHN (REBEDRNVAITBREHESE) R
BRERER BRRMREEHFNE
ERBERMFTR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.
Fair value (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

MEIR #
NFE (#)

BREFHERENAFEFEZEAEHE
MBEERMBERN D FE (A)

Relationship of

Fair value as at  Fair value  Valuation technique(s) and Significant unobservable inputs to

Financial liabilities 31.3.2014  hierarchy key input(s)  unobservable input(s) fair value
RZZ2-mF

ZA=t—-HW AYE EXTTEE TABRBALZH

BHEE MVE ER HERTERTEDAZH BARY HEAFENER

Other long-term  HK$14,253,000 Level 3 Discounted cash flow. Expected rate of return The higher the

Future cash flows are
estimated based on
the probability that

the specified level of

accumulated net profit
after tax of the project
carried out by the joint
venture can be achieved
within the time specified
and the expected rate

of return applied by the

Group to the project.

payable (note)

The Group determined
such probability based

on the profit forecast of
the project carried out

by the joint venture. Key
assumptions for the profit
forecast included pre-

tax profit margin of the
project.

BRASR - ARBER 21
ENERGEREMET
EERBERBREREE
KF 2 BEBEFERIN A
EMRASERZEE IR

RNBHRHEHE-

FEEREZIEERER
SELXMETNER 2B
R BN 2 EER
RBEZER Zﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@

| VeI

EtREEMFUE 514,253,000 £=R
(BHEE)

Note:No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of
changes in the relevant unobservable data under
discounted cash flow as the management considers
that the exposure is insignificant to the Group.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

expected rate of
return applied by the
Group, the slightly
lower the fair value.

applied by the Group
and pre-tax profit
margin of the project
carried out by the
joint venture.

FEERAERDGE FEEERRHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

In estimating the fair values of long-term payable,
the Group uses discounted cash flows method and
has taken into account of management’s experience
and knowledge of market conditions of property
development industry in the PRC when determine
key unobservable inputs to the discount cash flows.
The designated team reviews the pre-tax profit
margin of the project carried out by the joint
venture to determine the probability and calculate
expected rate of return applied by the Group.
Where there is material change in the fair value of
the long-term liability, the cause of the fluctuations
will be reported to the management of the Group.

There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3
during the current and prior periods.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial liabilities

There is no movement in the fair value of the other
long-term payable from 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-NEF=ZA=+—-HLEE

MEIR #
NEE (&)

BREFMHERNDAFEFEZEAEH
MBEERMBEBH A FVE (&)

FEEGERPABMTEND FEIEK
RERRERATERERIEEREYF
BB RATRED N 2 EBRAMAE - U
REMBRETNEBZFATERBAZ
- BEEBSEHSEREMETHER
B 2B AR A B LURE A e R T
EEARAEENRPEHRER ERHMA
BN FEHREAEE  ZRBZRE
HEarEEEERER-

RAHERBERRE  E—-—R F-KK
FEZRUBTAEHARBER-

KRBEBAANGEES M B HRR R H
AR M EEERMBEEEZIRE
EEEQNFERSE-

E=RATFEHBT2HBEEEYEE
M-E-=FNA-AE-F-—ME=
B=t-B HitRMENHEZATE
ik

EREAIZZERAERAT | 2013/2014 3

169



170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

7. TURNOVER 7.

Turnover represents the aggregate of the revenue
earned from construction contract work, interior
and renovation contracts, supply and installation
of building materials, sales of goods, gross rental
income from property investment, sale of properties
and provision of property agency and management
services during the year, and is analysed as follows:

ERXE

LREETARBEESHIR KR
BEAH HERZEEEMH HES
M MEREZEBESWAN PEHFER
REMEAEREERBRMIZWA 2
BEDHWT :

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Revenue from construction BEEYIEBZHA
contract work 1,006,992 886,148
Revenue from interior and EMREBESHZIBA
renovation contracts 50,844 29,761
Sale of building materials BEMRZEESE 25,769 31,000
Revenue from contracts for TERBZEMBENZHBA
installation of building materials 213,922 195,025
Sale of health products BEERMZEESEH 55,283 56,074
Rental income from property MEREZHERA
investment 26,583 20,138
Sale of properties MEZIHESEH 233,084 325,800
Property agency and management ¥ £ & B8 R 2 WA
service income 14,048 10,533
1,626,525 1,554,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. #MEH
The Group is organised into seven operating AEBTIEREHE A TLE BE K
divisions: construction, interior and renovation BREBIRE BEMBEERTE &
works, trading and installation of building BERMZEE YVERE YERERY
materials, sales of health products, property XREREERBE 2RME - AEEULE
investment, property development and provision of DEARERTAEER LR D RAT
property agency and management services. These B (AXTEREREE)ETHERU
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports PERESEBZERRFMIERZR
its financial information internally and are regularly W] o
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance.
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PHWAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s TRIPTAEERKESE 2R
revenue and results by operating segment: AREEN D -
For the year ended 31 March 2014 BZ-Z—WE=A=+—HL#F
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management total  Eliminations  Consolidated
NERE
BE  KHREB  BEMR EEER  NERE  DEER REE  SE#: b &4
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000
AMTn  BETn BETn BRIz BETn BETn BETn ¥tz B¥Tn A¥Tn
TURNOVER EXB
External sales i 1006992 50844 239691 55283 26583 233084 14048 162655 - 1626525
Inter-segment sales PEEBHHE 144518 163674 17,500 - 1,748 - 3,147 330587 (330587) -
Total @it 1051510 214518 257191 55283 28331 233086 17,195 1957112 (330587) 1626525
Intersegment salesare  HEEHHHED
charged by referenceto £ B Eo
market prices.
RESULTS &
Segment result Gt 14,105 359 3928 269 87084 70480 502 182,387 - 1R
Unallocated expenses FABXH (3,065)
Profit before taxation ~ FRBLATIER 179,322
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. SWEH =)
(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued) (a) PHBAREE &
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-Z—=F=ZA=+—HL#HF
E
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment

Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated

MERE
BE  £BREE BEiA BEER NERE NEER REE PEE sk G4

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BRTR  EBTR RERTR BRTR BRTR BRTR ERTn BRTR ERTR ARTR

TURNOVER EER

External sales HIMEE 886,148 29,761 226,025 56,074 20,138 325800 10533 1,554,479 - 1554479
Inter-segment sales PREBHBE 155,353 150,676 46,136 8 1,748 - 3,152 357013 (357,073) -
Total @it 1,041,501 180437 272,161 56,082 21,88 325800 13685 1911552  (357,073) 1554479

Intersegment salesare ~ AEEHHHEN
charged by referenceto £ {EFE o

market prices.
RESULTS ES |
Segment result PEEE 9,446 1,648 2,598 1,331 100,956 89,242 512 205,733 (287) 205,446
Unallocated expenses &2 EX it (3,549)

Profit before taxation ~ FRBATIER

201,897
The accounting policies of the operating BERED BB ETBEREAER
segments are the same as the Group's CEFTBE - (HRHE3) o2
accounting policies described in note 3. BXBERRBEIEEEZEE
Segment results represent the results WARDEEBREBEET TR
from each segment without allocation of MEBARZITHBEA LI EER
administration costs incurred by head office FEERERREZRUMEERS

and the inactive subsidiaries. This is the BR&RRAEZEH
measure reported to the chief operating

decision maker for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

assets and liabilities by operating segment:

As at 31 March 2014

8. HIEEH w)

TRHAATEEZ

BE

(b) 7 HEEHRKE

RE@EDH:

R-ZE—-NE=A=+—H

—E-MEZA=+—-HLEE

KEPBZERE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management ~Consolidated
NERE
BE  EBREB  BEME REER  NERE NEER REE g8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETR BETR BB BT BETR BB BB BETR
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PREE 421,688 59,714 164,194 37,352 871,555 1,112,136 93,278 2,759,917
Unallocated assets FRABEE 1,999
Consolidated assets GREE 2,761,916
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities HEERE 387,498 27,511 88,927 4,130 355,243 466,436 808 1,330,553
Unallocated liabilities FHEEE 78,112
Consolidated liabilities GREE 1,408,665
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 BF #s = Mzt

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—DNF=A=+t—-HLEFE

PTHEEEHREE (&)
R=-B—=F=H=+—H

Property

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. HEEH #w)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b)
As at 31 March 2013
Interior and Building

Construction ~ renovation materials

Health Property Property  agency and
products  investment  development management

NERE

Consolidated

BE  EHMREE  BEME  REER WERE NEIR RER &4
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETR ek S BB BT BB BETR BB BT
ASSETS iE
Segment assets 2BEE 414233 49,419 180,714 39,113 829,904 996,055 66,768 2,576,206
Unallocated assets ROBEE 3,649
Consolidated assets SREE 2,579,855
LIABILITIES &f
Segment liabilities 2EEE 250,326 18,225 115,085 4,806 360,724 524,003 709 1273878
Unallocated liabilities *AEEE 89,592
Consolidated liabilities GREE 1,363,470
For the purposes of monitoring segment WER

performance and allocating resources between
segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than central bank
balances and cash of head office and
other inactive subsidiaries, taxation
recoverable and deferred tax assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other payables of
head office and the inactive subsidiaries,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. SWMEH =)
(c) Other information (0 HiEHR
Year ended 31 March 2014 —E-NE=ZA=+—HLEE
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  RHRAH BEMR REER NERE NEER REE &8

HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BRTR  RRTR  BWTR  BMTn BRTR BRTR ERTR BHfx

Amounts included in the BEEPEEEIIE
measure of segment results ~ BEZEE:
or segment assets:

Depreciation of property, N BEREEZNE

plant and equipment 1919 38 268 528 1,170 - 2,546 6,469
Gain on change in fair value of RENF2AFEZHZ

investment properties g - - - - (55,736) - - (55,736)
Loss on change in fair value of HB{EEEZREZATE

investments held for trading 2B Z&#E 8 - - - - - - 8
Gain on change in fair value of #T£BBIEZATE

derivative financial instruments 282 Wi - - (72) - - - - (72)
Impairment loss recognised ~ BEREWFERERFE

on trade debtors - - 4,936 - - - - 4,936
(Gain) loss on disposal of LENE BERREZ

property, plant and equipment  (IK%) &8 (2,200) - - 6 (27,363) - (23) (29,580)
Gain on disposal of assets HESNBARBELEEEL

classified as held for sale g - - - - (4,000) - - (4,000)
Interest income FISWA - - (1) (1) (32) - (1,374) (1,448)
Share of loss of an associate ~ AEBEAREE - - - - 264 - - 264
Share of profit of joint ventures 2 E&E R EER (3,448) - - - - (82 - (3,530)
Finance costs HBER - - 1,479 - 5,691 566 - 7,736
Additions to non-current REXRBEE (L)

assets (note) - - 2,624 84 4,163 - 5 6,876
Interest in an associate BENRzER - - - - 20,974 - - 20,974
Interests in joint ventures RELEVER 3417 - - - - 152,157 - 155,574

Amounts regularly provided to  FEfEEABEEBEH
the chief operating decision ~ B EBLE
maker but not included in REREZEE:

the measure of segment
results:
Income tax expenses BEXH 1,857 524 466 - 2,510 9,397 492 15,306
Note:Non-current assets exclude pledged bank MEE: FRBEETEFEDIEMRT
deposits, deferred tax assets, interest in an ERELEREBEEE BHEQ
associate and interests in joint ventures. AEEREELEER-

EEAIEZERBERAT | 2013/2014 F35k 175



176

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(9]

Other information (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013

VAN
fra

8. HEEH #w)

7% R I

() HteEHR (&

—B-=F=A=t-HLFE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  £BREL  BEME  BEER  NERE UEERE REE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Tr  B%Tn  EETn  BMTn  E¥Tn  BETn E¥Tn BETx
Amounts included in BEEDEXEIIE
the measure of segment BEZEH:
results or segment assets:
Depreciation of property, Nk BERREZNE
plant and equipment 2,366 38 457 1,277 5 - 2,561 6,704
Gain on change in fair value of REN¥2AFEEEZ
investment properties W& - - - - (104,489) - - (104,489)
Gain on change in fair value of BEEEZREZATE
investments held for trading 282 (89) - - - - - - (89)
Loss on change in fairvalue ~ $T4£8BIEZATE
of derivative financial 2HER
instruments - - 427 - - - - a7
Impairment loss recognised on  CHRZERFBHERE
trade debtors - - 3,000 - - - - 3,000
Gain on disposal of property, ~ HENE BER
plant and equipment ELPAS (57) - - - - - - (57)
Interest income FISBA - - (16) (1) - - (618) (635)
Share of profit of an associate 2% 2 AER - - - - (839) - - (839)
Share of (profit) loss of joint ~ HMEAERE (BH)FE
ventures (1,201) - - - - 1,747 - 546
Finance costs BHER - - 212 6 3,420 183 - 5731
Additions to non-current assets FEFFBEE (KT
(note) 3,458 - 1,045 702 335,420 - 473 341,098
Interest in an associate BENAZER - - - - 21,238 - - 21,238
Interests in joint ventures RELEER 5,769 - - - - 1383 - 12959
Amounts regularly provided to  FEfEE A BEEBEH
the chief operating decision ~ ERHEELE
maker but not included in REE2EH:
the measure of segment
results:
Income tax expenses (credit) ~ HIEXH (5t A) 492 193 294 (24) vyl 14,741 588 16,711
Note:Non-current assets exclude pledged bank Mat: FERDEETBEDIEMRT
deposits, deferred tax assets, interest in an FROEEREBEE BEQ
associate and interests in joint ventures. AZERREELEER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. NEEH =&

() HteEHR (&

(c) Other information (Continued)

i EE R

Geographical information

The Group’s turnover which is generated
from customers located in Hong Kong, the
Company’s place of domicile, amounted to
HK$1,567,292,000 (2013: HK$1,531,481,000).
Accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s
turnover by geographical market based on
geographical location of customers has been
prepared.

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
by geographical location of assets is presented
as follows (Note):

EREENEXEATEREER
(FTEHE) WEF  BUERRER
FrinBUBRAEUMETIS D
B REEBEFNEXEARY
1,567,292,000T (ZE—=%F 8
#£1,531,481,0007T) °

AEEFABEERBEE 2 IE
UEDHEHRMNT (M)

2014 2013
—E-NE =—ZE-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Hong Kong (place of BE(MEHE)
domicile) 903,245 854,676
The PRC A 155,492 158,609
1,058,737 1,013,285

Note:Interest in an associate and interests in joint
ventures are analysed by geographical location
of their respective operations.

Non-current assets excluded pledged bank
deposits and deferred tax assets.

BT

BELNRAEBEREEREZ

B Bl U H g
ED# o

IR B

FMBEETBECERRT
FREEEVREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Other information (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years individually contributing over 10% of the

8. DEEH =
() HEER (&

BREIEEFZEHN

REBEFER  REEBZEF 2K
ABR - BRASEBEXRETND

total turnover of the Group is as follows: 2T BRRIWMT:

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Customer A (note) BEEER (M) 327,543 329,713
Customer B (note) BEZ (M) 269,519 57,208
Customer C (note) FEER (M) 15,625 180,073
612,687 566,994

Note:Revenue from construction contracts income
within the construction segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e L e

N =

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

OTHER INCOME 9. HftrA
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other income includes: Ht g A B¥F
Dividend income =N N 6 9
Interest income FIEUWA 1,448 635
Storage income FREWBA 325 778
Sales of scrap materials BERHEH & 1,043 353
Gain on disposal of property, HEWHE BMEREZHE 2GS
plant and equipment 29,580 57
Gain on disposal of assets HESBEABFLHEEEZ WA
classified as held for sale 4,000 -
Reversal of impairment loss on M BERZEZRERE
property, plant and equipment  # [ - 2,309
Reversal of impairment losson  FBHEERIEZ R EEIERE
prepaid lease payments - 412
FINANCE COSTS 10. B RA
2014 2013
—E-nmEF —E2-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest on: LT ZRE:
Bank loans wholly repayable BAREFANBHEEZ
within five years (including RITER(BERER
bank loan with repayment on EEERRZIBITER)
demand clause) 15,475 14,417
Less: Amount capitalised WBRPZEEME
in properties under EERLzZEH
development for sale (7,739) (8,686)
7,736 5,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BRIRBIER

2014 2013
—ET-NmEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation has been  BREAERCHEBRE (5t A) -
arrived at after charging and
(crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(i)) EE8 £ (FffzE12())
Fees we 775 775
Other emoluments Hithf & 13,905 12,744
14,680 13,519
Other staff costs H{th 8 TR
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER 197,357 190,402
Retirement benefits scheme RIRERIGH B
contributions 11,795 10,732
Total staff costs ETIHAEEE 223,832 214,653
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERZBZTE
plant and equipment 6,469 6,704
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET £ 2,060 1,910
Impairment loss recognised on ERERNERRIERERE
trade debtors 4,936 3,000
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BEREZHE 22K
plant and equipment (29,580) (57)
Gain on disposal of assets HEPBEARELHEEEZ WS
classified as held for sale (4,000) -
Net exchange loss (gain) FHELEE (&) 94 (105)
Contract costs recognised as TR AHERAR
expense in cost of sales 1,193,102 1,039,462
Costs of inventories recognised as 17 & A5t A 85 & B A8
an expense in cost of sales 174,772 240,061
Gross rental income under KEHEHSWABTE
operating leases (26,583) (20,138)
Less: Direct operating expenses B RAFEREEHESKAM
that generated rental SIEMEELE XN
income during the year 2,669 5,117
(23,914) (15,021)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 1. BRRAER &)
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sub-leasing income 2 HEWA (325) (778)
Less: Direct operating expenses & RAFEREE 2 HWA M
that generated sub-leasing ENEEEE N
income during the year 47 38
(278) (740)
Expenses included in cost of BERENIBAARNZEZE:
contract work:
Depreciation e 3,345 5,324
Release of prepaid lease FEHEERIE 2 #H
payments 224 218
Rentals under operating leases  &&HEZHE:
in respect of:
- plant and machinery o 7,231 8,452
- others —Hft 1,155 473
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS

(i) Details of directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
nine (2013: nine) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2014

1N.EF - THEERESHS

(i)

UTREERTRARNE 2
EALE

ENSIEMAE(ZE-—=F N
BIESZERMEMT

BE-—FE—NFE=A=+—HLE
E

Other emoluments
Hite

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments

HER IERR RIKEA
e Hitr @A #@e HE 3 Bye
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETR BETR BT

(Note)
(&)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson ~ &#E - - - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart ~ EtE - 2,940 5,600 a1 8,981
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~ &#&E - - - - -
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin* & @ * - - - - -
Chan Pak Joe B A ik 225 - - - 225
Lam Chat Yu WET 100 - - - 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 27 225 - - - 225
Sun Tai Lun YN 225 - - - 225
Tai Sai Ho At - 1,847 2,800 277 4,924
775 4,787 8,400 718 14,680

* Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin resigned as a director of the
Company on 17 July 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Details of directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration are as follows:
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2013

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

NR.ESF - THERRESHS

(&)

()

LTRESERITHARME 2
HiE:(#/)

BE-_E—=FE=A=+—HLtH
E

Other emoluments

Hitii <

Performance Retirement

Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments

ek THERR RIKER
ik HitE A ZBe BE S B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BET T BETT

(Note)
(&)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson ~ &#H&E - - - - -
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart  E S - 2,801 5,000 420 8,221
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ~ &#& - - - - -
Cha Yiu Chung, Benjamin Zf## - - - - -
Chan Pak Joe B Atk 225 - - - 225
Lam Chat Yu WETF 100 - - - 100
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2R 225 - - - 225
Shen Tai Hing* WA - - - - -
Sun Tai Lun B 225 - - - 225
Tai Sai Ho gtrx - 1,759 2,500 264 4,523
775 4,560 7,500 684 13,519

Note: The performance related incentive payment is
determined based on the performance of the
individual and the Group’s performance and
profitability for the year.

* Shen Tai Hing resigned as a director of the
Company on 1 April 2012.

A IERREBESRBRBEZFEN
BAZRBARAEB 2 RRER
RBENTEERT

* O RABR-ZE--FNWA-A#
EXR DB EEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

0]

(i)

Details of directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration are as follows:
(Continued)

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart is the Managing
Director of the Company who undertakes the
roles and duties equivalent to a chief executive
and his emoluments disclosed above included
those for services rendered by him in this
capacity.

No director waived any emolument for both
years.

Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid
individuals included two directors (2013: two
directors), details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2013: three) highest paid individuals
were as follows:

1N.EF - THEERESHS

(#&)

()

(i)

LTRESERITHARME 2
HiE:(#/)

ITHERARANESALEE H
ABERBBERTRARMN LS
HHM < E BEMEELBEmR
HRB B -

TR b 0 8] 6 FE 3 S 5 B TSR AR B
ﬁ o

EEME

TEE AEReHFATEEWA
EE(ZE—=F MBESE) &
MEEBEZHMEFBEN L -H
BB (ZE—=F . ZR)BaFHF
ATzBE&mT:

2014 2013
—E-NmF —E—-=

HK$’'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries and other benefits & &k H 13 F 2,880 2,643

Performance related ITERBRBE

incentive payments 3,100 2,700
Retirement benefits scheme E{RERI5H B

contributions 432 396

6,412 5,739
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (#)
(Continued)

(ii) Employees’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of the aforesaid employees
were within the following bands:

=
RS

7% R I

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

(i) EEME (&

NR.ES-THERREEHS

LRSS 2B E BN T 54 R :

2014 2013

—E2-NEF —E2—=F

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 ##51,500,0017T — &%2,000,0007T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 7% %52,000,0017T — % #2,500,0007T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 ##2,500,0017T — &% 3,000,0007T 1 -

During the year, no emolument was paid by
the Group to the directors or highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon

RAFE AEETEGESHE
BHEEXNME EREBMA
REBRMARNEE 2 2E - B

joining the Group or as compensation for loss e
of office.
13. TAXATION 13. RIEZH
2014 2013
—E—F —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEH
Current year rEE 13,697 17,128
Overprovision in prior years BAFEHERE (327) (185)
13,370 16,943
Deferred taxation (note 34) EERIE (MFEE34) 1,936 (232)
15,306 16,711

Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

MEEESBRNESH UG ERFTER
#16.5%5T & -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—DNF=A=+t—-HLEFE

13. TAXATION (continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rate prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
Profits tax arising in the PRC is calculated at 25% on
the assessable profits for both years.

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

VAN
fra

7% R I

13.AXH =

HEHMBEEEEMEENTIE  RIZEH
AEECERBRAEN -MEFEZ
o ] 1 3 P 15 B0 DA FE SR B R 925 % 51
ﬁc

FEREXHEAGSEER KRB
MEERNT -

2014 2013
—E-NF —Z2-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Profit before taxation R Al % Al 179,322 201,897
Tax at the domestic income tax AR RIEFH E16.5% 2 Fi1E

rate of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) (ZE—=%:165%) 29,588 33,313
Tax effect of share of loss (profit) FE{hEE N TEE C&F) 2

of an associate Bigge 43 (138)
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss EEEE ¥ (EF)) FiEz

of joint ventures Bz E (582) 90
Tax effect of expenses that are ~ AEFTERFEF R HIRZ

not deductible in determining HEZ B

taxable profit 1,779 1,603
Tax effect of income that is not AR ERFEF B EZRH 2

taxable in determining WAZBKE

taxable profit (14,674) (17,392)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax CEAZRIARERZHEBEERZ

losses previously not recognised i & (950) (1,005)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERZHEERE 2RSS

recognised 1,362 626
Tax effect of different tax rates of MiE A TR EM B ZEEEEN

subsidiaries operating in other ~ FEMZE ZH i &

jurisdictions (933) (201)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (327) (185)
Taxation for the year FEHEBEXH 15,306 16,711
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

14. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution during the

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

14. 2

FREEIABCORBEZRENT

year:
2014 2013
—E-MmE —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Ordinary shares: EE
Interim dividend for 2014 —E-NEFEHRE
- HK1.8 cents per share —BRBE1.8L
(2013: HK1.8 cents per share (ZB—=5 . =28—=
for 2013) BRBE1.80) 9,654 8,777
Final dividend for 2013 —E-=FRERE
- HK3.2 cents per share —BRBE3.210
(2013: HK2.7 cents per share (ZE—ZF . Z8—=F
for 2012) BRB¥2.71L) 17,162 13,164
26,816 21,941

A final dividend of HK3.2 cents per share totalling
HK$17,162,000 in respect of the year ended 31
March 2014 (2013: final dividend of HK3.2 cents
per share totalling HK$17,162,000 in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2013) has been proposed
by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in general meeting.

o

EEEERREBE-_Z-—NE=ZA
S+t —HBZAHERESRBEE3. 24
S HB®17,162,000T (ZE—=F: &

BE-ZF=ZA=t-BLEZRER

BEERBEE3.2Ml & B ¥17,162,000
TT)  ERZREBATRERABREARE L

HEAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
for the year is based on the profit attributable
to owners of the Company for the year of
HK$155,698,000 (2013: HK$188,265,000) and on the
536,315,641 shares in issue for the two years ended
31 March 2014.

There were no potential ordinary share in
existence for the two years ended 31 March 2014.
Accordingly, no diluted earnings per share has been

BEREF

TEESREREINDIBRERATER
NP4l & % F 78 #5155,698,000T (=
T — = F:%8%188,265,000T) R EZE
—Z-ME=A=+-HILMEFES
F2536,315,641 R EBITRMFTE

BE-ZE—NF=ZA=Z+—HILWMEF
EYHEBET#HEFECTER At
WHEESREGRBERF -

presented.
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. R BEWYE
HK$'000
BT T
FAIR VALUE AFE
At 1 April 2012 W-—Z——FmA—H 415,910
Additions (Note a) ~E (MiEEa) 335,209
Disposals HE (70,308)
Transfer to property, plant and EHRZYE - BMEREZE (MEEb)
equipment (Note b) (29,710)
Transfer to assets classified ERESBEABEHEEE (HEE31)
as held for sale (Note 31) (8,500)
Gain on change in fair value NFEEZH 2 WG 104,489
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%=HA=+—H 747,090
Additions wNE 1,214
Gain on change in fair value N EEZH 2 WG 55,736
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NE=A=+—H 804,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 21 September 2012, Excel Pointer Limited
("Excel Pointer”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire an investment property for a
consideration of HK$318,000,000. The transaction
was completed on 30 November 2012. On 1
November 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of the 40% issued
share capital of Superior Choice Holdings Limited
(“Superior Choice”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company and immediate holding company
of Excel Pointer, to Sky Champion International
Limited (“Sky Champion”) for a consideration of
US$4, representing the relevant carrying value of
the 40% equity interest in Superior Choice at that
time. Immediately upon the completion of the
disposal of 40% equity interests in Superior Choice
on 17 December 2012, Sky Champion provided a
shareholder’s loan of HK$63,600,000 to Superior
Choice. Details of the shareholder’s loan were set
out in note 38.

At 3 October 2012, the Group had vacated all
tenants of certain investment properties and
commenced owner’s occupation. The investment
properties were transferred to leasehold land and
buildings at its fair value of HK$29,710,000, which
was determined on the basis of a valuation carried
out by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL") as at the
date of transfer.

The carrying value of investment properties
represents properties in Hong Kong under medium-
term leases and long-term lease of HK$459,040,000
(2013: HK$420,090,000) and HK$345,000,000 (2013:
HK$327,000,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

16. R EME (&

B EE

(a)

(b)

RE

REZB-—ZHFABR=+—H AQF2
EMEAREARBRAB (TERDE
Y BB UEE318,000,0007T
WE—EREYE XN —=F
T—A=tTHER -R=ZB—=F+—
B—HB REETYEEHREHEERD
A2EMBARIRERAZEBEZRLD
A Superior Choice Holdings Limited
(I'Superior Choice ]) Z240%E 2 1T%
AFRDBEBRERAR (TRB]) » RE
ABAZE T (HERE KSuperior Choice
H40% IR AR 55 2 FE (L M EABREI(E) ©
R-E-——-F+-A+tBEEHALEE
Superior ChoiceZ40% R A= % > X
S ENBE [E) Superior ChoiceiR it —Z 4 E
7 #63,600,000C ZBRRER - RRE
M2 HEHAMIE3S -

R-ZB——F+A=H AEEELE
DRENEZFMEHRFRBBRER 7
EREVFEREHELHREFZA
P& 58 %29,710,0007T » bt T3 4R #5 fh
ERTERAB ([FEBTHELER
EZESAZMEMEE-

MEZREAERELRERZH

HHEENRHEBENE BEDHNA

78 #459,040,000T (=& —=

LB

420,090,0007T) % % #345,000,0007T
(ZZ— =% :78%327,000,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r4& B4 7% 3 3% Fff 5%
For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE=

—OFE=ZA=t+t—-HALEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2014 and 2013 and the dates of transfer
from investment properties to property, plant and
equipment and assets classified as held for sale has
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by JLL, an independent property
valuer not connected with the Group. JLL has
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation of properties amounting to
HK$118,000,000 (2013: HK$110,200,000) was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties. The valuation of other
properties amounting to HK$686,040,000 (2013:
HK$636,890,000) was arrived at by reference to the
income capitalisation method which is based on
the capitalisation of the net income potential by
adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which
is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations.

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3
fair value measurements

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. All investment properties of
the Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair
value measurement.

There are no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy during the year.

16. REME (&)

TEEBREVER-_ZFT—NFE=A
=+—HARk= i——i A=+—H
UREREVFEEERZENE -BERK
ERERZIEARBFEEHEEEZH
HeAFEDDHBIMEMLAEMMTE
BITREAZHEET HEHTER
SEVERE WTAESBEERKRAERNE
HEEEEENREYEETHE
SEZRENMECTERZEREERZ
Y EEEHB 118,000,000 (==&
— = :78%110,200,0007t) ; H bR
ABRABZERG EHEZNEEESD
75 1£686,040,000T (ZZE —=F 1 B
636,890,0007t) ' kxR IRIBHRAE
BNERLEREBERAFEEER
It ERHHEERZIMNERREEZ
TR FEEAHE RIS B AR o

RFPESERARE=RAFEFEZ
BE

REBPABUEERETEE - WU
WESRERNBERENZWEERR
BRAREWE W BRAFERNAIIR.
FEERMERENEERBE=RAF
EFtEME.

FRAEQFESRETERBIEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Level 3 valuation methodologies

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

16. REME =
E=-RMEESRE

Below is a table which presents the significant TREJNERTABRBAZE:
unobservable inputs:

Investment properties held by

the Group in the consolidated

statement of financial position Fair value Significant unobservable inputs
REEHBHRR RS

EEBRAEZREME DVE EXTAHERAZY

Direct comparison method Adjusted market price (per square foot) (Note)

=834 93 KRENEES (BRER) (K&

Agricultural HK$118,000,000 HK$200 - HK$429

Rit 781#118,000,0007T B #2007C-8 %4297

Capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate Market rent (per square foot)
BX{HE BER{ck® mERE (B¥FR)
Commercial HK$357,430,000 4.50% - 5.00% HK$11.50 to HK$56.78
[GES 7 #:357,430,0007C B 11.507T - B%56.787C
Industrial HK$328,610,000 4.25% - 4.50% HK$4.84 to HK$13.00
I% 7 1328,610,0007 #4847 - BH#13.00T
Note: Adjusted market price per square foot has taken into Mz SEENSFEARHERESDZEES

account of property — specific adjustment including

MENETRARE BFVE  THEER

location, land quality and timing of reference RASEXGLE2FE-

transaction.

Fair value measurement of investment properties REYESATFTEAEHEHTEESRE
is positively correlated to the market rent and FENESEFRTEAS S TEAEMY
adjusted market price per square foot and MEEANcE 2 EEMAEMLE-

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014

B=E

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

—E-NF=ZAZ+-HLFE

e MBwARME

17. %X BER®RE

Leasehold Furniture
land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
HELH
kEF HBERRHE HGAREE £ RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR
COST %
At 1 April 2012 RZE-_ENA—-H 73,678 73,350 15,360 14,695 12,538 189,621
Exchange adjustments ExAR 366 158 39 3 2 588
Additions hE - 427 3,397 741 1,324 5,889
Transfer from investment BEREMEEY
properties 29,710 - - - - 29,710
Disposals/write offs HE B - (26) (807) (532) (658) (2,023)
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=%=B=1+—-H 103,754 73,909 17,989 14,907 13,226 223,785
Exchange adjustments E=HE (85) 31) (14) - 17) (147)
Additions nE 360 1,184 793 2,815 510 5,662
Disposals HE (31,065) (6,000) (80) (3,154) (316) (40,615)
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-mE=RA=+-A 72,964 69,062 18,688 14,568 13,403 188,685
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2012 R-E--#WMA-A 15,265 63,325 11,758 8,133 9,104 107,585
Exchange adjustments EXHE 38 70 28 1 15 152
Provided for the year FERE 3,131 3,339 1,926 2,403 1,229 12,028
Eliminated on disposalsiwrite & /i i i $
offs - (15) (807) (532) (658) (2,012)
Impairment loss reversed REFEEE (2,309) - - - - (2,309)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE-=f=ZA=+-H 16,125 66,719 12,905 10,005 9,690 115,444
Exchange adjustments ERRR (40) (24) (11) - (6) (81)
Provided for the year FERE 3,679 1,307 1,690 1,936 1,202 9,814
Eliminated on disposals o 5 B L 8 (1,205) (6,000) (62) (425) (160) (7,852)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-ME=ZA=+—-H 18,559 62,002 14,522 11,516 10,726 117,325
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 R-Z-mE=RA=+-H 54,405 7,060 4,166 3,052 2,677 71,360
At 31 March 2013 RZE-=%=8A=1+-H 87,629 7,190 5,084 4,902 3,536 108,341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME BERRME &

(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment LEYE BERZBEDRKBESRER
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the BEEGERE FHOT:

following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of HELTH BEBIKREWFH

and buildings the relevant lease period REF H-t+Za+%F

from 20 to 50 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of #£1E EEBENERFH

improvements the lease period or 5 years REF (UBEERE)
Other assets 5 years Hith&EE REF
The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings MRADE T EREE B %522,908,000T (=&
comprises properties in Hong Kong except for — =5 : 78%24,014,0007T ) i 7A 1 Bl /Y
certain buildings amounting to HK$22,908,000 BTN HET M REFHREBNYEL
(2013: HK$24,014,000) which are located in the PRC. BoURBERTENESPHEE-

The properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC
are under medium-term leases.

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. BB HRIE
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-mE —E-=
=A=+-8 | =B=+-8
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The Group's prepaid lease AEEZENEERIERE:

payments represent:

Leasehold land in the PRC RABZEE L
Medium-term lease REIRE 7,013 7,242
Analysed for reporting UHRERBNZDM:
purposes as:
Current asset mEBEE 224 218
Non-current asset IRBEE 6,789 7,024

7,013 7,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

19. BEAFIZHER

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-0OF —ZF-=
=B=+—H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of unlisted investment in RIELTEE R 2RENS
an associate 16,576 16,576
Share of post-acquisition profit, 2 {EUWKER ZEF
net of dividends received (REWZBRE) 4,398 4,662
20,974 21,238
Details of the Group's associate as at 31 March 2014 S —mME=ZA=t+t—HAKR=ZF—=
and 2013 are as follows: F =St+—-BEREEBRE QR ZFE
mT
Place of Attributable
incorporation interest and
Form of and principal proportion of
business place of Class of voting power
Name of associate structure operation shares held held by the Group Principal activity
AEE
HMEHER ARG BERAERR
BENRAZER EBRBEA TREXME Ehl RER LA TEXB
2014 2013
“E-mEF|ZE-=F
Hoi Bun Godown  Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property
Company Limited company investment
BEERERDA BRAR BE EER MERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements

==
]

I

o

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity

e L e

N =

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

19. BEBLATFIZCHEE #

FEEBENT W BERBREAS W
T THMBERBENZREBHHR

pi- 42|

-

4w b2 B N R B SRR TR &

BENAERARRENGEUBRRA

method in these consolidated financial statements. ARo
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEF T BT T
Total assets EEH#E 46,565 47,083
Total liabilities BERE (4,617) (4,608)
Net assets EEFE 41,948 42,475
Group's share of net assets of rEBREGHENRNEREFE
the associate 20,974 21,238
Revenue A 681 1,054
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BE)&A (528) 1,678
Group's share of (loss) profit and AREEREEELEZE QT
other comprehensive (expense)  (E518) BRI R HEt2mE
income of the associate () WA
for the year (264) 839
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

7% R I

Share of post-acquisition profit D {hUEBEEF R EM2EUEA
(REWZBRE)

and other comprehensive
income, net of dividends

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES SELECER
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-mF —E—=
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
HMET T T T
Cost of unlisted investments in RIELETEEDREZ
joint ventures BE KA 115,977 115,977

received 11,143 13,615
127,120 129,592

Loan to a joint venture —BEELECZEN 28,454 -
155,574 129,592

Loan to a joint venture is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The Group has no intention to exercise its right to
demand repayment of this loan within the twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
The directors believe the settlement of this loan
is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as
they are, in substance, a part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture as working capital
of the joint venture. Accordingly, the amount is
classified as non-current asset and included in the
Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose
of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The joint ventures are accounted for using equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

—BRELEXCERREERR RERE
BEERM - AEELEZQRNHEH
RKTZBERARTEERERZERN -E
EMEERITRERZERETSEE
EEEELZERBLTEERGELHE
ZEREN-—BH  FRZAELEZE
BET Rt 2RI EAFRBEE
REEEAEEZSELE 2 HER
RUEGS BN RIIER

BELERARBENGEYBRRA
BE o

5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 EELEZHEE #)
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 March R-ZFE-—HNFEF=A=+—-BR=-ZF—=
2014 and 2013 are as follows: FZA=t—HBEXREEEELEZHE
mT
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation  Class of proportion of
Name of business and principal shares voting power
joint ventures structure  place of operation held held by the Group Principal activities
SMRLLE  FAERG rEEEERTER
RELECER  EBEBKA RIEEXHHY <¥:] REZE LA TEEY
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-ZF
Hip Hing-Hanison  Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for a
Joint Venture 13k EE 5 TEA basement, podium and
- EBERE LT transfer plate at Tung
Chung
URRBZLE - FTERED
EeRETR
Hanison-Hip Hing ~ Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture W EE i TER townhouse development
B - EEE at Tung Chung and
property development at
Nos. 1 & 1E La Salle Road
URERZBLEEERR
DRHEIRIEBRZNERE
ZRETR
Hip Hing-Hanison  Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture 13k EE &k TER superstructure work at
18 - B E Tung Chung
URRBz LERETR
Hanison-Hip Hing  Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction for
Joint Venture W EE ) TER superstructure work at
- HEARE N Hong Kong International
Airport
URAEBEREE 2
LERETR
Crown Cosmos  Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding in
Investments Limited company Hong Kong LRk Hong Kong
BFREBRAH BRAR ZEBRLZEE/ER REBETREEREHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

4= AR

A B mRNE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 EELEZHEE #)
(Continued)

Attributable

Place of interest and

Form of incorporation Class of proportion of

Name of business and principal shares voting power
joint ventures structure place of operation held held by the Group Principal activities

SMAIEE  FERG rEEEERTER
RELEZER  EBEBKA REIBEXHY L<¥:] REEE LA TEEY

2014 2013

ZE-mE —E-ZF
Poly Rising  Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% 50% Property development in
Development Limited company B EBR Hong Kong
HERRERAR BRAR REBETNERREHR
Hip Hing-Hanison  Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction at
Joint Venture W EE E# TER Lam Tin
- BEBEE AR URERZEELR
Hip Hing-Hansion  Unincorporate Hong Kong N/A 50% 50% Building construction at
Joint Venture W EE e TER Tin Shui Wai
- BBHE LR URRKECRETR
Haining Jiafeng Real  Limited liability The PRC  Registered 49% 49% Property development in
Estate Development company R capital Haining, the PRC
Limited ("Haining BRAF FER R EEEETNE
Jiafeng") REER

BERLRHE
BRAR (DEERE])

AG Acquisition M Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 25% N/A Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company RERLHEE EBR TER Hong Kong
BRAF REBETREERES
AG Acquisition O Limited liability ~ British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 25% N/A Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company KBEELES EER TER Hong Kong
BRAR REBETREEREHR
Eltara Limited  Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 25% N/A Property development in
company E# EBR TER Hong Kong
BRAH REBETNEBREY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint ventures is set out below.

All of these joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

20. S8 EZHEHE &)

AEBSECLECVBERRBERI W
_F o

FEGELEERABRENGES MR
RARRe

statements.
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Current assets REEE 728,168 406,259
Current liabilities RBEE (491,408) (162,590)
Non-current assets EREBEE 3,690 1,882
Net assets EEFE 240,450 245,551
Group's share of net assets AEES h2EEFE 127,120 129,592
Net profit (loss) for the year REEF =AM (EE) 6,912 (1,165)
Group's share of profit (loss) AEBSE2FERA (FE)
for the year 3,530 (546)
Dividends received from BEKREETERE
joint ventures 5,800 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 16537 3% M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE

At the end of the reporting period, total cumulative
borrowing costs capitalised in the properties under
development for sale were HK$39,200,000 (2013:
HK$31,987,000).

The carrying value of properties under development
for sale comprises properties in Hong Kong under
leases as follows:

21. BRERhZHFEME

RBEBAR BERECRBREFAZEF
ENMERNZEZBBERLLGER B
#£39,200,000T (=& — =
31,987,0007T) ©

DB

BRRPZEGEMREZRABENLRER
B FR s JIRMT

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—ZE—-F —E—=
=ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEETF T BT T
Long-term lease REEE 467,150 508,657
Medium-term lease hEFEE 327,682 306,896
794,832 815,553

The amount is expected to be recovered more

FAHZRBAERBERREFADORT =

than twelve months after the end of the reporting & A 7 T E o
period.
22. INVENTORIES 22. K
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—F-NE —E—=

=B=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Building materials 2 AR 11,693 13,385
Health products - finished goods #2EE fm — 2K M 7,902 13,794
Others — finished goods Hith— - m 4,200 4,233
23,795 31,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

23. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) 23. Bl (EMF)EHIERE
ON CONTRACT WORK
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —E-=
=A=t+—-H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contract costs incurred plus FIEEZE XA
recognised profits less & 0% R
recognised losses ERREE 6,351,637 5,503,256
Less: Progress billings B EERR (6,481,476) (5,449,805)
(129,839) 53,451
Analysed for reporting HEBRNZOHM:
purposes as:
Amounts receivable EWEHN ITREMIE
on contract work 78,844 122,017
Amounts payable on &N ITRENRE
contract work (208,683) (68,566)
(129,839) 53,451
Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on FEW (FE) G ITRERIEME VRS
contract work are expected to be settled within B ARERREN T —ERANEE-
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 16537 3% M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

Progress payments receivable represent the amounts
receivable, after deduction of retention money, for
construction services which usually fall due within
30 days after the work is certified. Retention money
is usually withheld from the amounts receivable
for work certified. 50% of the retention money
is normally due upon completion of construction
services and the remaining 50% portion is due upon
finalisation of construction accounts. Retention
money receivable is expected to be settled within
twelve months after the finalisation of construction
accounts (note 25).

BERBHE — R

24 BIGERERIA

FEWGE EFURIEENRRE S & 2K
ARIRESERER
ZTHRXMN - BERCBHETIREZEY
FIE - RES-RERNE HFEDIZ
ETEBERERB T TRHRE  MHER
B 2O TRAIRERBERRRERE
ZH - BRWRE S TAMENESEIRE KR
BRETEARBE (MFE25) -

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—F-NE —E—=
=BA=+—-8 | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEEF T BT T
Progress payments FEYGEE RIERE :
receivable from:
Subsidiaries of HKR International &HEBEE£FREBERAT
Limited (“HKRI”) (Note) (TEEEE]) 2B AF
(FHF&E) 6,030 8,183
A related company in which —RBHRARARHHESZEFN
certain directors of EzR N
the Company have control 8,155 3,013
Third parties $=F 54,970 65,326
69,155 76,522

Note:HKRI has been regarded as a holding company

MiaE: REBEERATBUYBRELASE

having control over the Company upon its adoption
of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”.

TR GEUBH/RERIE HEHERD
AABZERDRILERZSIE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

(Continued)

Management closely monitors the credit quality of
progress payments receivables. 84% (2013: 94%) of
the progress payments receivable that are neither
past due nor impaired are considered to be of good
credit quality based on historical repayment from
the debtors. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is
as follows:

et e

N =

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t-HLFE

24. BUEERIE (&

EEERYEREREERBZEER
EARFEAN(ZE—Z=ZF:94%)2
PE S FE SR IE N S B HR SR 0 TARIE B
BAZERELEMS FEEEZERAR
i o AEEMENZ S ERITE MK

an °

FEWCEE R 2 BREQ DT T -

31.3.2014 31.3.2013

—E-NEF —E-=F

=B=+—-H | =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Within 30 days =+H®A 58,116 72,125
31 - 60 days =t+—&Xx+H 11,039 2,130
61 — 90 days AT—ZhTH - 2,267
69,155 76,522

The following is an aging analysis of progress

BB BB RAERE < B WOE B RUE 2 Bk

payments receivable which are past due but not BROMWT
impaired:

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NE —E-=F
ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
31 - 60 days =+—ZXTH 11,039 2,130
61 — 90 days AT—ZhTH - 2,267
11,039 4,397
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE=

25.

26.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014

Z-_ME=ZA=+—-HILFE

RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 25. Bl rE &
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E—-UF —E—=
=B=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Retention money receivable from: EWREEHRH :
Subsidiaries of HKRI EAEE KB QT 28,383 33,185
Third parties g£=F 97,533 81,506
125,916 114,691
Amount receivable within one year — & X U FIE 86,199 60,355
Amount receivable after one year —F&EWRTIE 39,717 54,336
125,916 114,691
DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 26. BB - e RAFMRIE
PREPAYMENTS
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E—F —E—=
=B=+—H =A=+—H
HKS$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade debtors FEURFRIE 29,469 19,593
Other receivables HibpE W skia 72,252 2,449
Deposits ®e 9,753 10,788
Prepayments A FIE 12,470 9,582
123,944 42,412




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= M 5

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Proceeds from property sales are receivable
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. Retention money receivables in respect
of construction services are settled in accordance
with the terms of the respective contracts. In
addition to the payment of rental deposits, the
Group is required to pay monthly rents in respect of
leased properties in advance. For other businesses,
the Group generally allows a credit period of not
more than 90 days (2013: not more than 90 days) to
its customers. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group will internally assess the credit quality
of the potential customers and define appropriate
credit limit. Other receivables are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable on demand.

Management closely monitors the credit quality
of trade debtors. 67% (2013: 59%) of the trade
debtors that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality based on their historical
repayments. Included in the trade debtors balance
are trade debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$9,688,000 (2013: HK$8,119,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. There are no balances included in
other receivables which are past due.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

26. Bl -HERAMNRIE

(&)

REMEEERWAERENREER
BZNRAE ZERBIBRRE S
BEBSHNRAEE AEBKRIMN
HEREN TERHEERENEN
Al -ERHMER AEE-KRETH
EEAZRATH (ZZ2-—Z=ZF:FZR
At R)ZBRERM -EEATEF 280

FEEBBEERF 2 EEERERNIBIT
fl WEERT S BIE AR - AW IR
TR R R RRERKEE-

EEEERYERERFEZEEER
Hhe7% (ZZB—=%F:59% ) EUR1E
BE AR SEREE  MIRBEREL M
5 GEEEZRHF -BERAEEERIK
T8 45 BR R TH B 42 XA 78 #59,688,000 7T 2 FE
WFhE (=& — =4 :78%8,119,0007T)
AR & HA R © 180 8 1 A8 52 [ 3 R mh ELRT
BEEEELRE AEESENZSER
A KRG - Hib N ARIEN BMELE
OBz ko
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

4= AR

A B mARNE

26. BRI/ - HERFAMTRR

(&)

& W R TE 2 BR e 0 AT T AR I A R 5 B
REH2BRZEAHMR2ZUT:

31.3.2014 31.3.2013

—E-mF —E-=F

=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Within 30 days =+HR 18,367 5,200
31 - 60 days =+—ZxtH 6,583 2,727
61 - 90 days At—ZhTH 409 4,050
Over 90 days HiBh+H 4,110 7,616
29,469 19,593

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors

SR B ERERE 2 BWFIEZRE D

which are past due but not impaired: M :

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —F—-=

=A=+-8 | =A=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =+HR 495 191
31 - 60 days =+—ZXKTH 4,708 307
61 - 90 days At—ZhTH 389 5
Over 90 days HBh+H 4,096 7,616
9,688 8,119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Included in the above trade debtors are amounts
due from related parties of trading nature as

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t-HLFE

26. Bt IR B R AT RIEA

(&)

12 A _E FEUR SRR 55 FE U BB A + B
B5ME Y AN AT

follows:
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-lmE —E—=F
=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Related companies in which HARA B D ESESIN
certain directors of the NG|
Company have control 305 -
A joint venture —BEghx 497 456
Indirect wholly owned CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
subsidiaries of CCM Trust ("CCM Trust”) 2 [E M B A =
(Cayman) Limited (MIEE)
("CCM Trust”) (Note) 1,491 1,366
Subsidiaries of HKRI BEREECHBAT 1,152 -
3,445 1,822

Note:CCM Trust is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

ek CCM TrustB AR AT ZEEBRK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

26. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Movement in the impairment losses recognised on
trade debtors:

4= AR

A B mARNE

26. BEHRR - HERFAMTRR

(&)

EWFENE RARERSIEEE:

2014 2013
—E-NF e

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Balance at the beginning of FH &R
the year 5,649 2,649
Impairment losses recognised ERANREEE 4,936 3,000
Balance at the end of the year FRER 10,585 5,649

Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors with
an aggregated balance of HK$10,585,000 (2013:
HK$5,649,000) which have either been placed under
liquidation or in financial difficulties or in dispute.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Out of the Group’s trade debtors a balance
amounting to HK$1,988,000 (2013: HK$1,822,000)
is denominated in RMB, a currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity.

BERECRIAEVRENREBEYH
4% 85 44 5878 510,585,000t (= &E — =
F . B%5,649,0007T ) A 1B B E 2 FEU
B ZREZEWREEE RIS
HIRRERFEP AEERERZELE
BRIFE KT -

AEEZEWIES  LEREESE Y
Mz EEIEZEGRBIUA
R HI{E 2 #51%1,988,000T (Z&E—=

WEEE

£ 1 38%51,822,0007T) ©
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27.

28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 5= B 5

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT
VENTURES/AN ASSOCIATE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

Investments held for trading comprise investments
in equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange

27.

28.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

BRESELR BELFRE

ZAR IR - R B R I 2R ANEE

FERBZRE

KFEEEZRE BERBXFRLHmZ
RAEZIRE 2 N FERBY364,0007T

whose fair value amounted to HK$364,000 (2013: (ZZF—=4%:8%372,0007T) °
HK$372,000).
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 29. TEMBIR
INSTRUMENTS
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —E-=F
=A=+-—H =A=+-—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
The Group's derivative REBMZITEME
financial assets comprises: EEBRE:
Foreign exchange forward HEHEEHN
contracts 89 277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 16537 3% M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 29. TEMBIR &)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REBERR ZEBEUTIHEREEDN
the following foreign exchange forward contracts UEBAREBRBHFERIMNEHERINE
in order to manage the Group's foreign currency PIEEMIE B M5 R FMNE R B o 37 BEAR
exposure in relation to foreign currency forecast SETEAHIPESTIMENINERESD
sales and foreign currency denominated monetary EETMEAHER - NMERHESHETER
items. The Group does not currently designate MEIWMT

hedging relationship on the foreign exchange
forward contracts for the purpose of hedge
accounting. Major terms of the foreign exchange
forward contracts are set out below:

As at 31.3.2014 R-ZE-NFE=A=+-—H

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate

ERSH EIHH AR

Sell USD500,000 31 July 2014 RMB6.47 to RMB6.50: USD1.00

= I 5 7t500,000 ZE-IFLA=1t—H AR¥6472ZAK%6.50 1 £7T1.00

As at 31.3.2013 R=-B—=%=ZA=+-—H

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rate

EREH FHA AR

Buy RMB990,000 8 April 2013 HK$1.25: RMB1.00

B A AR%990,000 —E-=ZFWANR B#1.25 1 AR®1.00

Buy AUD203,000 24 April 2013 HK$7.91: AUD1.00

B AR 203,000 TE-ZFNAZ+TIA  E¥7.91 :12T1.00

Buy AUD 100,000 21 May 2013 HK$8.03: AUD1.00

B AR 7T100,000 —ZT-=FHA=+—8  #¥8.03:®T1.00

Sell USD500,000 29 October 2013 RMB6.47 to RMB6.50: USD1.00

& 1 52 7£500,000 ZE-ZF+tAZt+hBE AR¥647ZARY6.50 : £51.00
The Group's derivative financial instruments which AEBUEBESEEER 2 EEME UM
amounted to HK$89,000 (2013: HK$232,000) are ZEBINEZTEMB I AERNETS
denominated in USD, the currency other than the BE2B%89,000Tt (= —=F: 8%
functional currencies of the relevant group entities. 232,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less at interest
rate of 0.01% (2013: 0.01%) per annum as at 31
March 2014.

The Group’s bank balances that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities are set out below.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t-HLFE

30. RITHEBRREA S

RITEHRRESEEAEEFE2RE
REHRRRITERZBHALDR=MBEAH
SEAZEBMRITER R-ZE=—NF
ZR=+—HAF¥HFEFEE0.01% (==
—=%F:0.01%) °

FEBELEBEEEER 2 LRI
ZEBIEZRITHEREIIMNT

31.3.2014 31.3.2013

—E-NmF —E—-=
=A=+—-8 | =ZB=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
MOP BT 639 643
AUD BT 83 363
usD Ep 1,595 2,294
RMB ARHE 12,216 7,829

At 31 March 2014, bank balances and cash of
HK$25,395,000 (2013: HK$18,767,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market.
The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the
government and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. Deposits amounting to HK$49,795,000
(2013: HK$24,401,000) have been pledged to secure
the bank loan borrowed by a joint venture and are
therefore classified as non-current assets.

RZZBE-NE=ZR=+—H B®¥
25,395,000t (=2 —=ZF B ¥
18,767,0007T) Z IRITHEBRRBEERAR
HWOIE  ZERIETERERTSERAR
B ARBERZHEBRFREREPE
EHERESAZPEBRFERNINE
BRI R o

EIRFRTERERFEREAEER
TEEMERFRIONER -LEAR
B #549,795,000T (ZE—=F : B¥
24,401,000T) 2 FFREE T BIEER

BECEMENBTER Bt2EA
FREBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 16537 3% M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

31. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 31.

SALE

On 22 February 2013, a sale and purchase
agreement (“the Agreement”) was signed between
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and an independent third party to dispose of
certain investment properties at a consideration
of HK$12,500,000 and a deposit amounting to
HK$1,250,000 was received by the Group in March
2013. Completion of the transaction shall take
place in July 2013 as set out in the Agreement. At
31 March 2013, the fair value of the investment
property is HK$8,500,000. The fair value has been
arrived at on the basis as disclosed in note 16. The
transaction was completed in July 2013 and a gain
on disposal of HK$4,000,000 is recognised in profit

SHEBFEHERE

R-ZZF-—Z=F5-A=+=H &2"2
EMBLARNEBYE AL EEHE
(M#H&]) LR E B %12,500,0007T H
EMHDRENE  FAEBER_F—=F
= AU EN £ 5878 %51,250,000 T KIET & ©
BREBEIZEN_E—=FtARK-
MRZZBE-—=FE=ZA=+—10 ZREYH*
9 A F B A& 8 158,500,000 - A FE T
RIEBEMF162EEMEE RFER-F
— =%+ A5/ K% E%4,000,0007T 2 H
EWRERBETER

or loss.
32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. BEfRARAEECEMRER
31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —E-=
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade payables FEHRIR 100,215 89,890
Retention payable - amount EAREE ——FR&
payable within one year P FRIE 81,790 55,942
Retention payable — amount EHREE ——F#%
payable after one year FEA RRIB 17,787 38,345
Accrued operating costs and FEstEEMARE R
charges 89,278 74,674
Accrued costs for construction FEGtEE TR
work 98,741 107,198
Temporary receipts i BF Uk B 2 TR IR 3,960 4,571
Deposits received B WEZE 7,053 7,531
Deposit received for disposal of BUWEHEREMERSE
investment properties - 1,250
398,824 379,401
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

The aged analysis of trade payables based on the

et e

N =

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t-HLFE

2. BENREARRECEFMNRE &

BNERZRER (REERH) oW

invoice date is as follows: T

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-mF —E—=

=A=+—8H =B=+-—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 30 days =tHRK 90,499 79,055
31 - 60 days =+—Zx+H 3,535 1,708
61— 90 days ANT—ZATH 1,122 3,226
Over 90 days HEA+H 5,059 5,901
100,215 89,890

Included in the above trade payables are amounts
due to related parties of trading nature as follows:

ELENRENEREEVEBRALR
BEMEZHIRFIBUT

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —ZE-=
=A=+-8B | =ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
A subsidiary of Mingly Corporation®& H & BEE R ER 2 7
(Note) ZME AT (MEE) - 4,467
Subsidiaries of HKRI EREXCHMEB LA 17 3
17 4,470

Note:CCM Trust is a substantial shareholder of Mingly
Corporation.

MizE: CCM TrustBEDEBEEZEREBRAT 2

FERR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 BF# = M st

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z-—DNF=A=+t—-HLFE

33. BANK LOANS 33.

The bank loans are repayable as follows:

HMITER

FEEEZRITERIAMT

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —ZE-=
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Carrying amount repayable (Note): FEEZIRTEE (M) :
Within one year —F R 621,300 456,900
In the second year REZF IN 5,000 326,800
In the third to fifth years inclusive RE=ZFHFR
(BEEEWMF) 73,000 3,000
After five years HFE#® - 24,000
699,300 810,700
Analysis of carrying amounts: BREEDH:
Amounts due within one year —FREBOEARDEE
shown under current liabilities ZEX 621,300 456,900
Carrying amount of bank loans ~ BERKEHRET —FER
that are not repayable within EEEMFRRBRER
one year from the end of EBEZRITEREKREE
the reporting period but contain (RABEBETZ%)
a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 78,000 353,800
699,300 810,700
Amounts shown under PEAFRBDEEZLH
non-current liabilities - -
699,300 810,700
Secured 2K 446,300 530,700
Unsecured EIK A 253,000 280,000
699,300 810,700

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled
repayment dates set out in the respective loan
agreements.
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

BANK LOANS (continued)

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
assets of the Group, which are disclosed in note 40.

In 2013, a bank loan was raised by the Group for the
acquisition of an investment property during the
year. The bank loan is pledged by the investment
property and is guaranteed in proportion by
the Group and the non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary.

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings
which are mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The interest is charged at a range from
HIBOR + 0.75% to HIBOR + 2.25% per annum (2013:
from HIBOR + 0.75% to HIBOR + 2.90% per annum).

The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Group’s loans is 1.87% (2013: 1.97%) per annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

33.

34.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t-HLFE

BITENM (=&

ZERTERUREEE TEERN
FER M40 iR 5

RE-ZB—=%F  AREHZ -FRITER
REEFAWE —IRIREWE - ZFRIT
ERUREMEEER KRB EEE -
BB B iz IR AR IR SR R L B R

AEBZRITERFTERBEIEZZ
HAEER - FRNEREBRITRER
B hn0.75% £ &F ERITRIZEFREM2.25%
AE (ZER-=Z5 HFBRTEAX
IKEMO7TS%ERBRTEZEREM
2.90% ) °

AEBERZMEFHIERFANES
1.87% (ZE—=5:1.97%) °

BIERIR
WIGEMBIRRRES 2 TIEESEE

ERBECERIEHE - UT HERIM R
ERIEER IR BR 2 D47

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E—-mE —E—=

=ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 702 848
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (7,908) (6,118)
(7,206) (5,270)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 16537 3% M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 34.;EFEIA (&)

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

FEEIZEERARE (BE) KRS
BRzAFEHLMEEZZEBMT

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
i
B E BBER B
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETR BETR

At 1 April 2012 RIE-ZFWNA—H 9,635 (4,133) 5,502
Charge (credit) to consolidated REZEEGFEERZRT

statement of profit or loss X (FEA)

for the year 1,241 (1,473) (232)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE-=F=A=+—H 10,876 (5,606) 5,270
Charge to consolidated statement ~ RAFEZEBEREP

of profit or loss for the year S 350 1,586 1,936
At 31 March 2014 R-E-NE=ZA=+—H 11,226 (4,020) 7,206

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has unused tax losses of HK$99,831,000 (2013:
HK$106,987,000) available for offset against
future profit. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$24,364,000 (2013:
HK$33,976,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$75,467,000 (2013: HK$73,011,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. All the
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

RSN AEBRAZHBEEERS
7 %599,831,000T (ZE—=F : B¥
106,987,0007T ) » A A E 3K 88 K 2R 2 &
R o B B IE E5 18 78 %5 24,364,000T (=
T — = F :j8%533,976,0007T ) HERIEFE
MIBEE BN TR RRZEF 8
AR H T IE BB 175,467,000t (=
T — = F:78%73,011,0007T) B RIELE
REEE FIAABRZHEEEEE
PRE[AEEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 474 Bf 153 5= B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t-HLFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. k&
No. of shares HK$'000
R A BT T
Authorised: ERE
Shares of HK$0.10 each FRB®0.10T 2R B
Balance as at 1 April 2012, R-E——-FMA—B-
31 March 2013 and —ZE-=F=A=+—-HK
31 March 2014 —E-WE=H=+—H
2 LR 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRHRE:
Shares of HK$0.10 each BRBY¥0.10T 2K D
Balance as at 1 April 2012 R-E——-FHA—H
ZHEER 487,559,674 48,756
Bonus shares issued FAEBITAR
during the year 48,755,967 4,876
Balance as at 31 March 2013 NR-B-—=F=ZA=+—-8BK
and 31 March 2014 —E-NE=A=+—H
2 ER 536,315,641 53,632

By an ordinary resolution passed on 20 November

2012, the issued share capital was increased by way
of a bonus issue by applying HK$4,876,000 charging
to the contributed surplus account in payment in
full at par of 48,755,967 shares of HK$0.10 each on
the basis of one bonus share for every ten shares.

All bonus shares rank pari passu with the then

existing shares in all respects.

BE-—ZT——F+—-BA=-tHBEBAzE
BRER BARQGABARREPELE
4,876,0007t  IZBIEHFE TR0 A &
T—RAR 2 B2 > 31748,755,967 =
REEBE0.10TEMERN ZALRR - 12
BT

FBEAREREROESTHERRE
RER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE=

Z-—ME=ZA=+—HLEFE

36. RESERVES

37.

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital
of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued at the time of the
group corporate reorganisation, less the par value
of the bonus shares issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the
aggregate of contributions from the then
shareholders of the companies comprising the
Group and other subsidiaries of HKRI before the
group corporate reorganisation.

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLE

The amount represents the contingent consideration
payable of HK$14,253,000 for acquisition of a joint
venture during the year ended 31 March 2012.
Details of the acquisition were set out in the Group's
consolidated financial statements as set out in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended
31 March 2013. The fair value of the contingent
consideration at 31 March 2014 is estimated to be
HK$14,253,000 (2013: HK$14,253,000) because the
management considers that it is highly likely that
the specified level of accumulated net profit after
tax of the project carry out by the joint venture can
be achieved within the time specified.

e MBRERME

36. f# i

37.
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REBEZHABS ERARABRBZE
M QR RSB QR 2 RANREE R
RASEEARAQACBRTROEE
ZEF BERDBERITARZEE

FEEZBRFEREAKRAEE 2
ARRAEBEARNE B EENHE A
BRARSERRRZBRAEERE-

H fth &= A FE 1 R IR

NEE-E——-—FE=ZA=+—HLEE
WEEECECENIAREBESERAB
#514,253,0007T ° W BB 2 FE B E FIE A
AQARBE=—E—=F=ZA=+—AH1
FEZFRZ2AEEREHMBHRRA
HREEEZREGECEETZEB
MR BB FRRBE s IE E R
RNEIEEKE BER-_F—NE=
B=+—HB RAREBZAFELTTH
7B #514,253,000T (R=ZZE—=F B
14,253,0007T) °



38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount is unsecured and non-interest bearing.
The amount will be repayable after at least twelve
months from the end of the reporting period on
a date to be mutually agreed by the Group and
the non-controlling interest of a subsidiary. Details
of the shareholder’s loan were set out in note 16.
Advances of the HK$63,600,000 were made during
the year ended 31 March 2013 and further advances
of HK$7,357,000 were made during the year ended
31 March 2014 by the non-controlling shareholder
to finance its share of development expenditure.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and was terminated
on 21 September 2011. Pursuant to the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted and became effective on 21 September
2011, all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/
or its associates are eligible to participate in the
Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the
participants who have been granted options
under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

38.

39.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

FE £ IR R BX R R IR

ZRETEER RAUE - AEER—
EHRBARZIEREZEEREZ
REERBEHRAERLDT-BRE
BE RRERZHBEHNRMFE16-
R-B-=F=ZA=+—-BLEFESH
B #63,600,000t KRR =T —MHF
A=+ BHLEEE-—SERBE
7,357,000 CHFIZERBRIEBDERRE
BHEXHMNRE -

Rig B 2 51 &

ARBERNBRESENR-ZTZT-F
—RZHERMARR=-ZF——5NA
“t—HRE-REAQBAMOBRE
& ([ZE]) (R=ZZ2——Fh A
“t—HERARER) ADE - EKHE
DNAR/BHELNRREES (BES
NHHTES) 2RESRBERGSES
Bzt 2B

ZatE 2 BNRERARBE AT EERE
REURBARADEER2SHEE &
HBARDBRAER 2 HE LR
SRERRDNARERR 2ERRN S

EEARAARERD ZEEMS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a)

(b)

Maximum number of shares available
for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of approval of the Scheme. A
total of 48,755,967 shares of the Company is
available for issue under the Scheme which
represents 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme and represents 9.09% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report.

The overall limit on the number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options)
under the Scheme or any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company
in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares in issue unless otherwise
approved by shareholders of the
Company.

e MBRERME

39. B HE st B (&
(a) AIEBITZRHHBE LR

(b)
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B E BT T ERRITH
R B TERBRZEHE
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STEIMT B IT I ARARATRRMOEAEE
48,755,967M% » 1 %t BN ER 4 B
ARRZEBITRAEANI0%REE
RAFERBPZARATEBHITRA
#99.09% o

RIEZETE R A D BRI H S
FrEREmEARTEBREMET
e 7] BT 2 A D AR BENE
BREANATKHEEITZARAR
130% 2 IR

EBHREZERERBELR

(1) BRIFERDBRRS ERLE -
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RARITEBRE)BTEMD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant (Continued)

(2) Where any grant of options to
a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the
Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of
the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the shares on
date of grant in excess of HK$5.0
million,

such grant of option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of the
Company who are not connected persons
of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange.

(c) Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an
option is granted or such shorter period as the
Board of Directors or the relevant committee
thereof may specify.

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

39. MRBxIERT & (&

(b) BE2HEEZBERERBFELR

(9]

(#&)

(2 MEAAQRABRZEERRIEL
HITESREZBEZHE
AT (ERR EWmHRAZE.01
RIREBRE SEZRNE
ERHEBAH (BFZA) LT
A+=—ERHBERZALTER
EREREZFEBREET
FMEBITRAUBITZRMG

(i) EEHEEBITRSD
0.1%50 £ &

(i) #{E8BE%5,000,000
T(REBRERHEE
B8R 2z W & &
5

RHEZABRERIISAQF
RER (WHRARBRZBEEALT
(EERBXPrz EmRAD )
TRt

REBRECAIBRG 28
PR
HRHBEREZETFHERE

EERFHEEEEECREN
fi o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HILEE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d)

(e)

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board
of Directors or the relevant committee thereof
must specify the minimum period(s) (if any)
and achievement of performance target(s) (if
any) for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised in whole or in part.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 20 September 2021 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme.

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the highest of:

)

(ii)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

No option has been granted under the former share
option scheme and the Scheme since its adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

41.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's
bank loans were secured by the Group’s assets as
follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

40. SEE W

RABEYRR  UAREE 2 EEFRTE
FZERNT

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-NF —ZE-=

=A=+-8B | =ZA=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Investment properties REYE 661,800 613,500

Leasehold land and buildings HELHREF 24,613 38,885

Pledged bank deposits 2EARITER 49,795 24,401
Properties under development BRPZEEME

for sale 467,150 508,656

Assets classified as held forsale S EABELHEEE - 7,200

1,203,358 1,192,642

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions
in respect of allegations of copyright infringement
and defamation have been taken against certain
subsidiaries of the Company carrying on its health
products business. No further steps have been taken
against the Group in respect of such actions after
the court hearing for directions to appoint experts
and exchange witness statements since 2004. At 31
March 2014, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that in view of the uncertainty, it is not
practicable to assess the financial effect.

41. RRAR/

RZZEEME=ZA=+—HLEFER &
REAIETHEREEREBZHBE LR
BB ME R F S 2 B R IR A ET
B B-ZEZENFREEERRIBEA
FRIMEAZIERKRME  ESHABE
HAEEZE-—STH R-T—NF=
B=+—HB AQATEERE BRET
BEM MRS L EETE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

42. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following commitments:

e MBRERME

42, FXKiE

RARERR  REBEBAUTERERE

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—g-mE | —F-=%
ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(i) Capital expenditure () BERACTNERREGS I
contracted for but not WRIEHEBEZEARZE:
provided in consolidated
financial statements in
relation to:
Acquisition of property, BEYX BERSZB
plant and equipment 2,030 -

(i)

In addition, the Group had also committed
with another joint venturer to contribute the
joint venture by means of shareholder’s loan
to finance the expenditure of property under
development if called.

Capital expenditure authorised but not
contracted for

As at the end of both reporting periods, the
Group had also committed to contribute
HK$231,500,000, representing 23.63% of
the anticipated project costs, for the joint
development of a site in So Kwun Wat, Hong
Kong.

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

43. EEHERIE

ABEA

RARSREIR  REBEIRBE T AUHELE
HEEHERYECAEREEERE
AEWT

2014 2013

—E-E —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FRw 6,633 4,482
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZFHF (BEEEWE) 2,995 3,328
After five years EE#® 7.280 7,400
16,908 15,210

Minimum lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for its office properties, warehouses
and shops which amounting to HK$808,000,
HK$1,757,000 and HK$4,972,000 (2013: HK$846,000,
HK$1,862,000 and HK$5,647,000) respectively.
Average leases are negotiable and rentals are fixed
for lease term of three years.

There are certain lease agreements, according to
which the Group is committed to pay the higher
of a minimum guaranteed amount or a monthly
payment equivalent to a prescribed percentage of
a monthly sales as rental. The minimum guaranteed
rental payments are included above. The respective
contingent rental payment for the year ended
31 March 2014 amounted to HK$443,000 (2013:
HK$475,000).

REREEREELAEEARLIENE-
PEREHENZ2ES 2B AR
#£808,0007T * 78 #1,757,0007C & 7% #&
4,972,0007C (== — = £ : /£ #£846,000
TT 78 #1,862,0007T & 78 #5,647,000
L) e —MREATUER  HER =61
EREFTE.

E—EHEESHN REAKEZABIT
RERRESENLASRE (ZRNERA
EEBCEEEIERAS) MEPE
SNRIE  REREESFHEEER LR
R BE-_Z-—NE=A=+—HILHF
E - {8 AT € NIE A B %443,000T

(==& — =% :/8%475,000T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE=

43.

44,
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EZ-—ME=ZA=+—-HLFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments in respect of the
investment properties:

4= AR

A B mRNE

43.

EEHEsRE =2

H#EA

RAERERR ARECHEFTHN B
BEREVFXCHRREASNOT

2014 2013

—ZE—F —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within one year —FR 21,420 20,340
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE—ZFLFE (BREEEWMF) 19,086 5,153
40,506 25,493

Leases are negotiable for lease term of three years.
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong on 1 December 2000,
the Group has maintained the defined contribution
scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and has obtained
an exemption satisfying the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
("“MPFO").

To comply with the MPFO, a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme"”) with voluntary
contributions has been established. New employees
must join the MPF Scheme since its commencement
on 1 December 2000. The Group contributes 5%
to 10% of the relevant payroll costs for each
employee to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000 (increase
to HK$25,000 effective 1 June 2013) for the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

44,

BORTRER FHR=F-
iB th#E FU B R

BER-ZEZEZFT_A-—HBBET
BEME LRSS ARECEFRER
FRRGT EURGIFEM R M 2 E R ARG
g W EHRRETEFE LB EIRF
Pl (MRE SR ) 2R 5E -

ABREBER AEBCKRIA
BEMER B ARBEE ([BE
2 ER-_ZEZZTF+-_A—HMBK
BTRESTE®  FESSEMARE
S8 -AEBABVEENRESE
HEEBEIERANBEIZEZBSZ
T BAREETTEEBRAMRKLRS
B#£20,000t (H=ZE—=F<A—H#&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 BF #= M5t

44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The amounts charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represent contributions paid and
payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures

44,

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE_Z-NF=A=+t—-RALFE

BAFERFIEE 2
ERABERANNBZ SEEAEER

ZEFEREE 2L RAE N REN
ZHFR R EARER R SRS FE EHE
EﬁrAHIJ%’EFaﬁZIS%lZ{EEFﬁ/zLI&Z{

arising from employees leaving the Group prior to R RFE2REWMT :
completion of qualifying service period. The amount
for the year is as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NF =—E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contributions paid and payable 213 & A% 12,722 11,665
Forfeiture R UK (209) (249)
12,513 11,416

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, there is no forfeited
contribution arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which were
available to reduce contributions payable.

F=R=t—-HAKk=%—Z=
— B BEESRHRANER
KAl B LURE BB AF 2 3Rz

Pl R
= (1] |
EHCDH)Hi
s 11

°H+E

5
/i

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 434 Bf 153 3% M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position, notes to consolidated financial statements
24 to 26, 32 and 37 and disposal transaction as
described in note 16, the Group also entered into
transactions with the following related parties
during the year:

45. A LT REBREZ S

BRRGAMBERIRIBE BB ALE
g AR RMFT24E26 32K37TR
MizE16fmill 2 HER I REBERIR
HETHEBALERRS:

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Subsidiaries of HKRI and its REBBHEEMBATR
associates: HE8 A
— Construction income (Note) —EEWA (M) 126,994 141,757
— Interior and renovation income ~ —Z&F R4S U A (HEE)
(Note) 1,152 892
An indirectly subsidiary of K ECCM TrustE KB Q7
CCM Trust:
- Project management income —IHEEEWA
(Note) (B &E) 2,841 2,861
— Site supervision service income — i BEERE WA
(Note) (B&E) 4,130 2,101
Joint ventures of the Group: REAEEEERE:
— Construction income —EEIWA 2,199 8,298
- Project management income —IHE BB A (MEE)
(Note) 947 954
— Site supervision service income — i BREERE WA
(Note) (B&E) 1,377 700
Related parties in which certain RERQABHOESES 2
directors of the Company have B A L
control:
— Construction income —FEEIWA 8,805 3,348
- Disposals of investment —HEREWME
properties - 23,828
An associate of the Group: REAKEEHE AT
- Rental expenses —HEEH (681) (819)

Note: These related party transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details are
included in the Directors’ Report on pages 94 to 99.

MizE: HEREIZEA EHRAE4AE
EEZFERERS - E—SHBR
NREBEREFIMEIH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %34 Bf 15 5= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 45. ABATRR RS (&7
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary ARAR]—RENEBARNFEZERBERTS
of the Company has also provided guarantee to HIRITETFHBARWRITEERME
the subsidiary for banking facilities granted by the R BRZFBEHNHEE33 -
bank. Details of the guarantee were set out in note
33.
Compensation of key management FTEEEBEABZHM
personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members AEEEEREMETEERABS ZHH
of key management during the year are as follows: wmr:
2014 2013
—E-NF —ZE-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees e 775 775
Salaries and other benefits FEeRHEMEFR 13,086 12,219
Performance related incentive ITERRERE
payments 14,530 12,790
Retirement benefits schemes BARERH B
contributions 1,906 1,772
30,297 27,556
Details of the remuneration of key management AEETEEEAE (BRERESRET)
personnel, which are the directors and employees, ZHMFBE ENMEE12 0

during the year were set out in note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of
the reporting period includes:

46. XTI HBEEH

REBEHPR A AT 2HBERBRE:

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E—F —E—=
=A=+-8 | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Assets BE
Investment in a subsidiary BER—BEKHEQ R 326,740 326,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ FEUR B 2 T 57518 64,864 61,117
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRERS 660 969
392,264 388,826
Liabilities aE
Other payables and HihEARIBRETTER
accrued charges 241 578
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE/ S 1,652 1,069
1,893 1,647
Net assets EEFHE 390,371 387,179
Capital and reserves B
Share capital i 53,632 53,632
Reserves e 336,739 333,547
390,371 387,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z--NE=ZA=+—HILEE

46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 46. EAFIZHBEH &)
COMPANY (Continued)
Movements in reserves: B EE .
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium profits Total
[N BB RE ZEREA @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETR BETR BETR

At 1 April 2012 R=—T-—ZF
mMA—H 48,756 277,984 52,371 379,11
Profit and total KEERFR
comprehensive income for ZEBA
the year - - 30,009 30,009
Bonus shares issued ERITAR 4,876 (4,876) - -
Dividends paid ENfZRE - - (21,941) (21,941)
At 31 March 2013 R-Z-=F%
=B=+-H 53,632 273,108 60,439 387,179
Profit and total REERFR
comprehensive income for ZEBA
the year - - 30,008 30,008
Dividends paid EfRZRE - - (26,816) (26,816)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—-DF
=B=+-H 53,632 273,108 63,631 390,371
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

4= AR

AP BmARNE

47. T EMB L FEFH

SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal (@) N-—EBE—MNE=A=+—RHAK=Z
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as —=F=ZA=+—H ' ARQAEEE
follows: MEBARFENT
Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERITRAR
LBERA/
g3 Ve amELR/ AEEENL
WEARERE XM REER A ARRAER TEEH
(Note 1) 2014 2013
(M) =T-mE —B-=F
Amwell Investments Limited  British Virgin Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Islands/Hong (EV REER
Kong
RERLHE/BA
Brilliant Advance Limited British Virgin uss$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Islands/Hong VEY REZR
Kong
RERLHS/BA
Camson Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property holding
BEARAT j BT NERBE
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of health
EmEERAR BB BT products
REERES
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BRAERDT BB BT NERE
Exceed Advance Limited* British Virgin us$1 100% - Investment holding
HEBRAR Islands/Hong 125 REER
Kong
RERLHE/ BB
Excel Pointer Limited Hong Kong HK$1 60% 60%  Property investment
ERERDT BB BEIT NERE
Forever Gainer Development Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property development
Limited ; BET ES
XERRARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as

follows: (Continued)

e MBwARME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

47. T EMBLAFERE &)

(@) R=E—NF=A=+—HR=F

—=fF=A=

tT—H AQAEE

MEBRRENT (&)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERTRAR
LERE
3 Ve amELR/ AEEENL
WEARAERE EXH PREER A BRRAESR TEXH
(Note 1) 2014 2013
(M) =T-mE ZB-=F
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
HMERAE BB #10,0007T NERE
Hamfield Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding
HRELXBRAT BB BT NEFE
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary 100% 100%  Property construction
Company Limited &% shares MERE
BBEEERAT HK$1,000
Deferred
shares
HK$60,000,000
(Note 2)
EBR
7B #1,0007
EER B
60,000,0007T
(P=E2)
Hanison Construction British Virgin Us$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Islands/Hong VEY REER
(BVI) Limited (Note 3) Kong
(PaE3) RERLZEE/BE
Hanison Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property construction
EBEERRLT EB BET ES
Hanison Estate Services Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of property
Limited 5B B2 management services

BBENERBEERLF

RENFERRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as

follows: (Continued)

BB EmER M

47. T EMB LT =&

(@) RAZE—mME=A=+—HK=F

—=fF=A=

tT—B AQAEE

MEBRRENT (&)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERITRAR
LBERA/
3 Ve amELR/ AEEENL
WEARERE XM PREE M A ARBRAER TEEH
(Note 1) 2014 2013
(M) =T-mE =ZB-=F
Hanison Foundation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property construction
HEFHETRERAR BB BT VES=
Hanison Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBZERERANE & BT REER
Hanison Interior & Hong Kong HK$4,200,000 100% 100%  Provision of interior and
Renovation Limited e B renovation services
EBEAREBERLA 4,200,0007C R RAEBRE
Hanison (Macau) Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Property construction
B (RP)ERAE P 25,0002 7T NERE
Hanison Project Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of property
Management Limited BB BT leasing and marketing
HEEEERERAT services and project
management
NEHERERRKER
HEER
Hantex Engineering Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Plant maintenance and
BEIREBRLT & BT servicing
BEEEREE
Healthcorp Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of health
BRELEERAT i BT products and
investment holding
REERESRRELER
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 100% 100%  Property development
#EARDF P 78 400,0007 NRBR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as

follows: (Continued)

e MBwARME

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

47. T EMB LT HEN &

(@ R=ZZ2—MFE=ZR=+—BHK=F
—ZHZA=t—-H AQAEE
MEARFENT : (4)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERITRAR
LERE/
3 Ve amELR/ AEEENL
WEARAERE XM REER A BRRAER TEEH
(Note 1) 2014 2013
(M) =T-mE =ZB-=F
Million Hope Industries Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100% 100%  Supply and installation of
Limited N B building materials
XFEXARLA 11,000,0007 HERZREENH
Protic Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BRAERLT ; BT NEBR
Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Sales of health products
ZELRARAT EB BET REERHE
Rich Color Limited British Virgin Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
FEBRAH Islands/Hong (EV REER
Kong
RERLRE/ BB
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BERRAA j BT MEERE
Senior Rich Development Hong Kong HK$10,380 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited & ##10,3807C MERE
FRERERAA
Sunny Oriental Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
NEERAF BB BT REER
Superior Choice Holdings British Virgin us$10 60% 60% Investment holding
Limited Islands/Hong REER
Kong
RERZHE/BE 0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as
follows: (Continued)

47. T EMBLAFERE &)

(@) RAZE—mME=A=+—HK=F
—=F=A=Z+—H AXQAFFE
MEBATEBOT : (&)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERITRAR
LBERA/
3 Ve amELR/ AEEENL
WEARERE XM PREE M A ARBRAER TEEH
(Note 1) 2014 2013
(M) =T-mE =ZB-=F
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of building
RLBRAA B B materials
2,000,0007C RENHES
Team Forward Limited British Virgin Us$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Islands/Hong VEYs REER
Kong
RERLBE/ BB
Top Rising Development Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited 58 BT REER
BERBRARDNE
Trigon Building Materials Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Supply and installation of
Limited e BT building materials
EREENERLT HERZREEME
Trigon Interior Fitting-Out ~ Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Building materials,
Works (Macau) Limited sl 25,0002 7t renovation and trading
EREEARE (RF) REMR-HBERES
BRAF
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
BB BT NERBR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as

follows: (Continued)

e MBwARME

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE

—E-MEZA=+—-HLEE

47. T EMBLAFHERE &)

(@) R=E—NF=A=+—HR=F

—=%=A

=t—HB AQAEE

B AR ENT (&)

Issued and
fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/
incorporation/ registered Effective equity
registration/ capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary operation quota capital to the Group Principal activities
ERITRAR
LERE/
3 Ve amELR/ AEEENL
WEARAERE XM PREEM A BRRAER TEEH
(Note 1) 2014 2013
(M) =T-mE =ZB-=F
Vast Media International Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited B BEIT REER
EEERAERDT
Wisdom Concept Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property development
Development Limited 5B B2 MEERE
BHRBRARAR
Wisdom Mount Investments  British Virgin us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands/ 125 REER
BEARERRAT Hong Kong
RERLHE/ BB
1% (LB ESBRAR  The PRC US$600,000 100% 100%  Trading of health
(Note 4) (Fftz¥4) FE 600,000% 7T products
REERES
EEHREEMB (EN) The PRC HK$39,990,771 100% 100%  Manufacture and supply
AR (Note 4) HE ik of building materials
(FizEa) 39,990,7717¢ BUER IR RN
# Subsidiary which was newly incorporated # RBE-Z-DNF=A
during the year ended 31 March 2014. =+ —BhEFEHALZH
Bra e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—-HLEE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as
follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(1) All being ordinary share capital except
the registered capital for the subsidiaries
registered in the PRC and quota capital for
subsidiaries incorporated in Macau.

(2) The deferred shares are shares whose
shareholders are neither entitled to receive
notices, attend, vote at any general meetings
nor to receive any dividend out of operating
profit and have very limited rights on return of
capital of the subsidiary.

(3) Other than Hanison Construction Holdings
(BVI) Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all other companies are indirectly
held by the Company.

(4) A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or outstanding at the
end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.

e MBwARME

47. T EMBLAFERE &)

(a)

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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BRADTE o 25 A B AL A0 B0 FE 1 O B
BLRAREMERNRERP KL
NHBARBREESRN 25
BEEBRRA

ELERZESAABBEREM
REAESES EREHETATR
RAEREELRRE HEREY
B &L RNIRE 2 REREM
BARRERAKRABRELESR
FREMBIRE

R4 D B H#EFE ZHanison
Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limitedsh » T HAth A GG R AR
AEEERE-

—ENERERERE-

WA E R BARANFEHEE
AEBRSINAFEREREN
BEES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interest:

The table below shows details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company that have
non-controlling interest:

4= AR

A BmARNE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE

—E-MEZA=+—-HLEE

47. T EMBLAFHERE &)

(b)

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting

AR

BEFERESRZFZEHBNE

TRHEFIRRBERFERES 2
FEEEAMBLA:

Profits (losses)

Place of right held by allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation non-controlling interest  non-controlling interest ~ non-controlling interest
FERER
FEERRE PEFHERER
WE DR AR B BERRRLH i (FR) R FERES
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
“B-NE —F-zZf ZB-RE —B-=f -B-NF —B-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  E%Tr  B¥Tr  BETx
Superior Choice and its Hong Kong 40% 40% 8318 (3,079) 5,239 (3,079)
subsidiary (“Superior A

Choice Group”)
Superior Choice z H}i B2 &
(['Superior Choice£E])

Note: Excel Pointer is the wholly owned subsidiary
of Superior Choice and is engaged in property
investment.

Summarised financial information in respect
of the Group’s subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interest is set out below. The
summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intergroup
elimination.

MizE: E&ASuperior Choicez &
BEMBLOR tBWERE-

AEEFERFERED 2B LA
ZHBEMBERINMT o LT B
BERBEAREEAR D F B ME

Bl 2 &%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= M 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-Z-NF=A=+—-HLEFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47.
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have non-controlling interest: (Continued)

Superior Choice Group

FEMBATEE &)

(b) BEEFEREZZFZEHEHE
RAEFE: (F)

Superior Choice &

31.3.2014 31.3.2013
—E-ME —E—=

=ZA=+-8 | =A=+—-8

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Current assets RBEE 1,679 3,386

Non-current assets ERBEE 345,342 327,206

Current liabilities RBEE (333,055) (338,215)

Non-current liabilities FRBEEB (869) (76)
Equity attributable to AARER AELER

owners of the Company 7,858 (4,619)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %74 Bf 153 3= B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-_Z-NF=A=+t—-HLFE

47. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. T EMB L FEHER (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b)

have non-controlling interest: (Continued)

Superior Choice Group

BEHFEREZ I EEENE
NEFFE: (#)

Superior Choice5 &

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZB=+—HL

2014 2013
—E-NF —ZE-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Revenue ON 11,913 4,256
Other gains and losses Hib 2 & E5E 16,867 (8,062)
Expenses X (7,985) (3,892)
Profit (loss) and total KAREE ANEBEFEERF

comprehensive income (BE)RZEWBA (XH)

(expense) for the year 4 zE

attributable to owners of

the Company 12,477 (4,619)
Profit (loss) and total FIEREZEEFEEZAN

comprehensive income (BE)RZEBA (XH)

(expense) for the year BE

attributable to

non-controlling interest 8,318 (3,079)
Profit (loss) and total FERAN (BBE)R

comprehensive income ZEHEA (XH)#%5

(expense) for the year 20,795 (7,698)

During the year, Superior Choice Group
contributed HK$4.2 million (2013: HK$3.4
million) to the Group’s net operating cash out
flows, paid HK$1.4 million (2013: HK$335.3
million) in respect of investing activities and
paid HK$4.4 million (2013: received HK$334.8
million) in respect of financing activities.

£ A+ Superior ChoicefEE & &
EEERFEERSALBE
4,200,000t (ZZ2E—=F . &
3,400,0007T) - B EEBK T HE
#1,400,000T (= —=F 1 B
335,300,0007T) & B R E EHTH
7 #4,400,000T (ZZE—=F:8
#£334,800,0007T ) °
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=t-HL
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mF | ZF-=F —F--F —F--F% =F-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T BETR BET T BETR
RESULTS S
Turnover EEZ 1,626,525 1,554,479 1,234,656 723,242 884,370
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 179,322 201,897 136,077 180,158 123,414
Taxation BB H (15,306) (16,711) (7,910) (4,159) (2,350)
Profit for the year EEHA 164,016 185,186 128,167 175,999 121,064
Profit (loss) attributable to: THATEERR (FE)
Owners of the Company v UNCIEZ=DN 155,698 188,265 128,167 175,999 121,064
Non-controlling interest RS 8,318 (3,079) - - -
164,016 185,186 128,167 175,999 121,064
As at 31 March
R=ZA=1+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-mEF | =F-=F ZF-SF ZE--F SE-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETR BET T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERBE
Total assets EEHE 2,761,916 2,579,855 2,281,897 1,922,489 1,807,327
Total liabilities EEEE (1,408,665)| (1,363,470)  (1,230,567) (982,309)  (1,026,619)
1,353,251 1,216,385 1,051,330 940,180 780,708
Equity attributable to the owners of AT HEE A
the Company PG 1,348,012 1,219,464 1,051,330 940,180 780,708
Non-controlling interest FERER 5,239 (3,079) - - -
1,353,251 1,216,385 1,051,330 940,180 780,708
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A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
FEPYEME
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR A. SEREVERESHSBAR
RENTAL PURPOSES 3
Gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
wmegm/ Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions HERERNH property rEE of lease
R (FHFR) MEME P15 R 5 HAER
1.  Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A, 123,542 Industrial 100% Medium term
Workshops 9-10, 2/F, Block A, (excluding lease
Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B, area
Workshops 1-18 & of flat roofs)
majority portion of
Workshop 23 (including
flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6),
4/F, Block A,
Whole Floor, 5/F Blocks A & B,
Whole Floor, 6/F, Block A,
Car Parking Spaces
V26, V31, V36, V49, V50,
V55, L42, L45 & L53
Shatin Industrial Centre
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit
Shatin, New Territories
R 123,542 T 100% bt
W H (TEEEE
RIEESZE 755 Z &)
DHIFEHD

A —1ET/ER7 -

A T{E[E9ZE10
BEEMIIE T/ER1E5
AERNEI/ERB1Z18K
TER23 2 EEI D
(BREIEBSR6ZETE) -
AKRBERIERSE
ABEREEE
RE{RIEV26 V31 V36
V49 V50 ~ V55 ~ L42
L458 L53
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = E¥¥EE

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR
RENTAL PURPOSES (continued)

Gross

floor/site

area (sq.ft.)

wgmE/

Descriptions HEREENH
BR (FHR)

A. SEARBEVRESHEKWAR

& @)

Nature of
property
MEME

Attributable
interest of
the Group Category
¥ 3 of lease
PEfh R HAER

2. Various lots 142,066
in Demarcation District
No. 76
Ping Che
Fanling
New Territories
R 142,066
HEX 207635
BT ER

3. Leasehold interest in the 2,956
Head-Lease for the residual
term of 30 years commencing
from 1 December 1989 with
an option to renew for a further
term of 30 years of whole of
No. 31 Wing Wo Street, Sheung
Wan
Hong Kong
R—BEEEHER 2,956
BB LRKMAT15EIE
ZHEBEEZN 2 HERER
HEFHBE-NANANLFE+Z=A
— B AP=1+F (XL
BB SN=TFHBAZEF)

4. Various lots 214,106
in Demarcation District No. 128
Deep Bay Road, Yuen Long
New Territories
R 214,106
T BA
R L2 #1285
BT HER

Agricultural

Commercial

[GES

Agricultural

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥ &

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR A. SEREVEFESHEBEARB

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued) & (E)
Gross
floor/site Attributable
area (sq.ft.) interest of
wmeE/ Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions HEREBENH property rEE of lease
BR (FER) MEME PEfh R & HAER
5.  Workshop Unit 5,575 Industrial 100% Medium term
Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on lease
2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark
Nos. L7 & L8

on Ground Floor,

Kin Wing Industrial Building,

No. 33 Kin Wing Street,

Tuen Mun, New Territories

R 5,575 T¥ 100% 1 Hf
P

A3

BRIERNE 245655 TEH

(MEBFEEAR)

Ry TEARIFEL7RL

6. Various lots 60,277 Agricultural 50% Medium term
in Demarcation District lease
No. 132, Tuen Mun, New
Territories
R 60,277 BEith 50% 5
RO
XEHN13255F T ER

7.  CentreHollywood 32,738 Commercial 60% Long term
No. 151 Hollywood Road lease
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
58 32,738 [GES 60% =
ER
{81 Z=5E 78 1519% CentreHollywood
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = E¥ %2

B. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT B. REBZCERIBZFEYME
FOR SALE IN HONG KONG

Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of ~ the Group Category of

Descriptions WEHE LEEHEE completion BRI property r5E lease
R (FAR) (FER) THRER =R NELE EihEH HOER
1. 121 Lots in Demarcation 815,886 Not yet Planning  No definite  Residential 100% Medium

District No. 129 determined in progress plan term lease

Lau Fau Shan

Yuen Long

New Territories

ik 815,886 AEE  BEER EREHI &2 100% "

TRRFL

2491295

121{E 8
2. Various lots 44,588 Not yet Planning  No definite  Residential 100% Medium

in Demarcation determined  in progress plan term lease

District No. 374

So Kwun Wat

Tuen Mun

New Territories

R 44,588 RETE iR ERETE &= 100% i

BHEES

X EH3743

ETHR
3. The Austine Place, 5,790 52,077 Work in 2014 Residential 100% Long term

No. 38 Kwun Chung Street progress lease

Kowloon

hEE 5,790 5,077 IRETH 2014 TE 100% &

BB HI385

The Austine Place
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES =&Y ¥ 2

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT B. REBZCERIBZFEYME

FOR SALE IN HONG KONG (continued) (#)
Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of date Nature of ~ the Group  Category of

Descriptions WEREE HAEEHEE  completion BRI property biN - | lease
B (FER) (FER) TR A& NEME  EAEEE  BOER
4. Various lots 67,315 Notyet  Planningin  No definite  Residential 100% Medium

in Demarcation determined progress plan term lease

District No. 121

Tong Yan San

Tsuen

Yuen Long

New Territories

ik 67,315 KEE  BEER EREHI &2 100% ik

bl

BAFRLEH1215

AETHE
5. Sha Tin Town Lot 12,809 Notyet  Planningin  No definite  Residential 25% Medium

No. 603, Lok Lam Road, determined progress plan term lease

Fo Tan, Shatin,

New Territories

R 12,809 AEE  BENER  EREY &2 25% i

WA

KR GERER

D H i B 56035
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES = E¥¥EE

C. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT C. RPEBERZERIBCHE

FOR SALE IN MAINLAND CHINA ME
Site  Gross floor Expected Attributable
area area completion interest of

(sq. m.) (sg. m.) Stage of date Nature of ~ the Group Category of
Descriptions WEHE LEEHEE  completion BRI property r58 lease
R (EHK) (£5%) TR I B B MEHE EiEER RHER
A development project located 35,680 157,778 Work in Phase 1-  Commercial 49% Medium
at the west of Wenyuan Road progress 2014 term lease
and south of Houfutinggang, Entire Project
Haining City, -2018
Zhejiang Province,
The PRC
RSP EHTE 35,680 157,778 IREFH E-0- [GE 49% i H
BEMBEE —Z-mE
A #ESEEAN H{EER -
—EERER —E-N\E

D. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE D. HEHEZHE
Site Gross floor Attributable
area area interest of
(sg. ft.) (sq. ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions wEREE BREEE property N | of lease
R (FER) (FER) MEME FEfh HOEH
Unsold units at The Bedford, 4,820 31,368 Industrial 100% Long term lease
Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road
Tai Kok Tsui
Kowloon
i 4,820 31,368 I¥% 100% RH
KB 4838 91-935
The Bedfordk &£ E {1
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5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong
BERVPHRIEEEZE LR
HDHIEHROBENE—

www.hanison.
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